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Holcim is one of the world’s leading producers of cement

and aggregates. The Group also supplies ready-mix

concrete and asphalt and a range of other services.

Holcim works in more than 70 countries and employs

almost go,000 people.

Helcim is more globally spread than any other
building materials group and has a strong foothold
in each of its individual markets. Geographic diver-
sification provides stable earnings for the Group.
Solid internal and external growth means we can
expand our market position — in developing and

mature markets alike.

Founded in Switzerland in 1912, Holcim is committed
to global standards in both production and distribution
and also with regard to environmental and social
responsibility. The local Group companies focus

on optimum customer service, which also includes

innovative product-specific services.

Holcim was named “Leader of the Industry” in

the Dow Jones Sustainability Index {DJS!) for the
third time in succession and is recognized as

the cornpany with the best sustainability performance
in the building materials industry. This recognition
confirms that Holcim addresses key issues for the
industry regarding sustainable development.

The Group's recycling and energy saving strategies,
its dialogue with stakehclder groups, its efforts in
occupational health and safety, and its human capital

development received top scores in the DJSI.



' Net income plus
depreciation and
amaortization.

* Net financial debt
divided by tota!
shareholders’
equity.

+ EPS calculation
based on net
income attribut-
able to equity
holders of
Halcim Ltd.

* Propesed by the
Board of Directors.

* Income statement
figures translated
at average rate;
balance sheet
figures at year-end
rate.

Key figures Group Holcim

2007 2006 t% % local
currency

Annual cement production capacity million t 197.8 197.8
Sales of cement million t 149.6 140.7 +6.3
Sales of mineral components ;ﬁilliont l 5.5 6.0 -8.3
Sales of aggregates million t 187.9 187.6 +0.2
Sales of ready-mix concrete million m? 45.2 442 123
Sales of asphalt million t 14.8 15.3 -3.3
Net sales millien CHF 27,052 23,969 +129 +11.3
Operating EBITDA million CHF 6,930 6,086 +13.9 +12.6
Operating EBITDA margin % 256 254
EBITDA million CHF 8,468 6,333 +33.7 +32.5
Operating profit million CHF 5,024 4,385 +i4.6 +13.5
O-perating profit rﬁargin % 18.6 18.3 - -
Net income million CHF 4,545 2,719 +67.2  +66.0
Net income margin % 16.8 1.3 . N
Net income — equity holders of Holcim Ltd milliocn CHF 3,865 2,104 +83.7 +82.9
Cash flow from operating activities million CHF 5,323 4,423 +20.3 +19.1
Cash flow margin % 19.7 18.5
Net financial debt millicn CHF 12,873 12,837 +0.3 -2.4
Funds from operaticns'/net financial debt % 50.2 34.6
Total shareholders’ equity ‘ ' million CHF 21,945 18725  +17.2  +196
Gearing? % 587 68.6 ‘ - 7
Personnel 3132 89,364 88,783 ‘ +0? -
Earnings per dividend-bearing shar.e’ CHF 14.86 8.64 +72.0 +71.3
Fully diluted earnings per share’ CHF 14.73 8.50 +733 +72.6
Gross dividend million CHF 868" 522 +66.3
Gross dividend per share CHF 3.30* 2.00 +65.0
Principal key figures in USD {illustrative)*
Net sales million USD 22,543 19,175 +17.6
Operating EBITDA " million USD 5775 4,869  +186
Operating profit ) - mi.llion usD 4,187 3,508 ‘ +19.4
Net income — equity helders of Hol-cim Ltd million USD 3,221 1,683 +é].4
Cash flow from operating activities million USD 4,436 3,538 +25.4
Net financial debt million USD 11,392 10,522 +8.3
Total shareholders’ equity million USD 19,420 15,348 +26.5
Earnings per dividend-bearing share’ usb 12.38 6.91 +79.2
Principal key figures in EUR (illustrative)®
Net sales million EUR 16,395 15,170 +8.1
Operating EBITDA million EUR 4,200 3,852 +9.0
Operating profit million EUR 3,045 2,775 +9.7
Net income - equity helders of Holeim Ltd million EUR 2,342 1,332 +75.8
Cash flow from operating activities million EUR 3,226 2,799 +15.3
Net financial debt million EUR 7,755 1,973 -2.7
Total shareholders’ equity million EUR 13,220 11,630 +13.7
Earnings per dividend-bearing share’ EUR 9.01 5.47 +64.7
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Over the decades, the Group has built up a wide-reaching
network of companies in the cement segment. Growth in
cement consumption especially in the emerging markets,
coupled with the Group’s commitment to sustainable
development, prompted Holcim to initiate an extensive

capacity expansion and efficiency enhancement program.
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Consolidated key figures for Latin America

Net sales in million CHF 4,010
Net sales in % of Group turnover 14
Operating profit in mitlion CHF 1,001
Cement and grinding plants 29
Aggregates plants _ B

Ready-mix concrete plants 233
Personnel 13,409

Consolidated key figures for North America

Net sales in million CHF 5,365
Net sales in % ofGroufJ tur-r.mc—wer - 19
Operating profit in million CHF 623 J
Cement and grinding plants 19
Aggregates plants 7717173

Ready-mix concrete and asphalt plants 233
Personnel 11,190




Consolidated key figures for Europe

Net sales in million CHF 10,401
Net sales in % of Group turnover 37
Operating profit in million CHF 1,713
Cement and grinding plants 41
Aggregates p]ant_s _ 7 256

Ready-mix concrete and asphalt plants 653

Personnel 22,905

Con

ated Xey figures for Africa Middle East

Net Sales in million CHF

Cperating profit in million CHF
Cement and-grinding plants
Aggregates plants

Ready-mix concrete plants

Personnel

Net sales in % of Group turnover

Consolidated key figures for Asia Pacific

Net sales in million CHF 6,292
Net sales in%ofVGroup turnover 23
Operating profit in million CHF 1.341
Cement and g:inding plants 49
Kggre-gatc;.s- plént.s - 8
R;;ad—y_-r;ix c_c_Jncrete plants 15
Personnel 38,13_3




Cement

Profile

Developments

Cement is manufactured through a large-scale, complex
and capital-intensive industrial process. At the core
of the preduction process is the rotary kiln, in which
limestone and clay are heated to around 1,450 degrees
Celsius and the semifinished product clinker is
created by sintering. In the cement mill, gypsum is
added to the clinker and the mixture is ground to

a fine powder - traditional Portland cement. Holcim
offers customers a wide range of cementitious
materials and also develops customized blends for
special applications. To produce these, other high-
grade materials such as granulated blast furnace
slag, fly ash, pozzolan and limestone are added in

order to modify the properties of the cement.

Aggregates

Profile

In 2007, consolidated cement sales increased by

6.3 percent t0149.6 million tonnes. In addition,

5.5 million tonnes of other mineral components were
sold. Growth is primarily due to the first-time full-year
inclusion of the Indian Group companies. On the
strength of the positive outlook, production capacity
in this major market is being substantially expanded.
Cement deliveries also increased in Europe and Latin
America. North America saw a modest decrease in
volumes, but only imports were down. Deconsolidation
of the South African Group company impacted on
cement sales in Group region Africa Middle East,
However, Group companies on the North African coast

reported a sizable rise in sales.

Developments

Aggregates include crushed stone, gravel and sand.
Production centers around quarrying, preparing and
sorting the raw material. Aggregates are mainly used
in the manufacture of ready-mix concrete, concrete
products and asphalt as well as for road building and
railway tracks. The recycling of aggregates from con-
crete demolition material is gaining in importance at

Holcim,

Sales of aggregates — at 187.9 million tonnes {2006:
187.6) — equaled the high level seen in the previous year.
It must be borne in mind that aggregates sales were
down by 5.4 million tonnes in South Africa alone as a
result of the deconsolidation. Europe saw a strong
increase, driven primarily by Aggregate Industries UK,
which benefited from acquisitions in England, Scotland
and Norway. The volume increase seen in Asia was
largely due to the Thai Group company's entry into

the aggregates sector. While St. Lawrence Cement in
Canada reported a moderate increase, Aggregate
Industries US saw a fall in deliveries of 8.5 million
tonnes due to weak residential construction activity.
Group region Latin America succeeded in virtually

matching previous-year’s sales volumes.

Other construction materials and services

Profile

Developments

Globally, concrete is the second most consumed com-
modity by volume after water. One cubic meter con-
sists of approximately 300 kilograms of cement, 150
liters of water and 2 tonnes of aggregates. Asphalt is
a bituminous construction material used primarily for
road paving. By weight, asphalt consists mainly of
aggregates of differing grain size. Essentially, Holcim's
service also includes construction services and inter-

national trading.

Sales volumes of ready-mix concrete were higherin
Europe, North America and, in particular, Asia. The
Group as a whole reported an increase of 2.3 percent
to 45.2 million cubic meters. Ready-mix concrete is
also enjoying broad-based growth. Buoyed by newly
consolidated companies and the commissicning

of additional ready-mix concrete facilities, deliveries
were lifted in the UK, North America and Asia.

Asphalt sales were, however, lower,




Consolidated key figures for cement in 2007

Sales of cement

Production capacity cement in million t 197.8
Cement and grinding plants 151
teﬁent sales ir; rﬁillion t 149;6
Net sales' in million CHF 17,223
Opérating profit' in million CHF '4.385
Personnei ]

57,671

"Includes all other cementitious materials. .

Consolidated key figures for cement 2007 per region’

Europe 34.3 million t
North America 16.4 million t
Latin America 26.6 mi-llion t
Africa Middle East 14.5 million t
Asia Pacific 64.9 million t
‘Intra-region saleg. =71 million t

Consolidated key figures for aggregates in 2007

Million t
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Sales of aggregates

Aggregates plants 405  Million t
Sales of aggregates in million t 1879 200 .
Net sales in million CHF ‘ -3,190 180 -— .
Operating profitvin milliocn CHF 304 160 i i
Personnel -7,000 140

120 i B
Consolidated key fiéures for aggregates 2007 per region 100 — . .
furope 108.8 million t 80 B . . .
North America 56.9 million t &0 . . . o .
Latin America nsmiiont ., W W B B
Africa Middle East SENTIS B I R N |
Asia Pacific 4.0 million t 0

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Consolidated key figures
for other construction materials and services in 2007 Sales of ready-mix concrete
Ready-mix concrete plants 1,105 Million m?
As—pha-lt;lants 7 . 1;%9 50 . .
Saies-of-ready-mix concréte_in r;w.illion m; 452 49 [ | [ |
Sales of asphalt in million t 148 5, = .
Net sales in million CHF 9535 B |
Operating profit in million CHF 335 10 i . ‘ . .
Perscnnel 24,567

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007



Further strong organic growth and proposal for a
substantial dividend increase. The Group’s major
commitment to sustainable development is being

widely recognized.

Dear Shareholders

Holcim had a good year in 2007. The great majority of targets were reached, and the Board of Directars would
like you to share directly in this success in the form of a higher dividend.

Strong growth
Although economic conditions became more challenging in the second half of the year, the Group's fundamental
strengths were in full evidence. There was strong organic growth and a marked improvement in operating results.

As a result, Holcim has an exceptionally solid balance sheet.

This good performance has allowed Holcim to increase dividend payments regularly. It is our stated intention
to achieve a payout ratio of one third of net income attributable to equity holders of Holcim Ltd. The increase
in gross dividend per share fram CHF 2.00 to CHF 3.30 as proposed by the Board of Directors means that this
target has been fulfilled, excluding the “extraordinary” income derived from the sale of a majority stake in
Sauth Africa,

High profitability in the Group regions
Europe again made the biggest contribution to the consolidated operating EBITDA. The building materials
industry in this Group region benefited from the good business activities in France and the UK, several countries

in southeastern Europe, Russia and Azerbaijan.

North America performed well despite the turbulence in the US financial markets and the sharp downturn
in the real estate sector. The results almost matched those achieved in the previous year. Significant success
factors included higher capacity utilization, cost efficiency of our cement plants and good product pricing.

In Latin America, demand was driven by residential construction and infrastructure projects. Although energy
prices continued to rise, many Group companies nevertheless improved their resukts, especially Colombia,
Venezuela and Ecuador. There was also an encouraging increase in demand in Brazil. The price environment

here remained unsatisfactory, although an improvement was seen in the second half of the year.

The majority sale of Holcim South Africa in accordance with Black Economic Empowerment legislation has led
to a decline in the importance of Group region Africa Middle East as regards size within the Group. On a like-
for-like basis, considerable progress was made in terms of sales and financial results due to a good business

environment in North Africa.




Asia Pacific enjoyed dynamic growth. The two Indian Group companies made the largest contribution to
the regional result. However, the Group companies in the Philippines, iIndonesia, Vietnam, Australia and

New Zealand also recorded a good performance.

Attractive investments for the future

The Group expanded further in 2007. In Canada, Holcim bought out all the minority shareholders of Group
company 5t. Lawrence Cement. This enabled the US operations of 5t. Lawrence Cement to be integrated
into Holcim US. Significant resources were invested in stepping up the Group’s stake in India. This increased
Holcim's shareholdings in Ambuja Cements and ACC to 46 percent and 43 percent respectively by the end
of 2007. Holeim has strengthened its position in Singapore by acquiring Jurong Cement, a major ready-mix

concrete supplier and building materials trader.

Strategy bears fruit

The consistent implementation of our targeted marketing strategy for mature and developing countries has
proved its worth. Today, 75 percent of our production capacity is located in emerging markets. In order to

keep pace with the predicted high growth in these markets, we are currently investing in extensive programs
to expand capacity by 28.9 million tonnes. Holcim expects an additional EBITDA contribution of around

CHF 1.1 billion a year as from 2012 as a result of these expansions. Capacity was already increased by 6.7 million
tonnes in 2007. We also strengthened the aggregates business and gained greater proximity to our customers

through further investment in ready-mix concrete, particularly in Europe and the US.

Concrete as a building material of the future

In terms of volume, usage of the end-product concrete in the world today is greater than any other commodity
apart from water. Concrete is therefore of huge importance to economic development. Given its long !ife cycle,
concrete is one of the most eco-friendly building materials. Sustainable urban development and the creation
and expansion of modern infrastructure would not be possible without it. There is huge pent-up demand

in the growth markets of Asia, Latin America and eastern Europe, particularly in the residential construction
sectar. Together with the Holcim Foundation for Sustainable Construction, Holcim supports research and
development into innovative sustainable solutions in the construction industry. This is all the more urgent
because the built environment accounts for some 40 percent of energy consumption in the world today.
Holcim also underscores its commitment to the environment with intensive research into new technologies
for the production process and environmentally friendly products. The Group is already making a significant
contribution to limiting CO2 emissions, and is on course to hit its target of voluntarily reducing specific CO2

emissions by 20 percent per tonne of cement between 1990 and 2010.




“Passion for Safety” is a priority throughout the Group

Despite making significant progress, our record in terms of occupational heatth and safety is still not satisfac-
tory. In 2007, the number of severe incidents involving employees, subcontractors and third parties increased.
The Board of Directors and Executive Committee deeply regret these incidents and are making every effort to

ensure that extensive accident prevention programs in every Group company will further yield improvements.

Industry leader for environmental protection and social responsibility

For the third year in a row, the Dow Jones Sustainability Index has recognized Holcim as “Leader of the Industry”. ;
This provides independent confirmation that Holcim is committed to sustainability and social responsibility.

Group companies have also won numergus awards, while the Sustainable Asset Management Group (SAM), in
cooperation with PricewaterhouseCoopers, presented Holcim with the “Sector Leader” prize and a “Gold Class” !

distinction at the World Economic Forum 2008 in Davos.

Holcim has a successful partnership with GTZ, the German Technical Cooperation. There are still too many
countries which do not yet have legislation in place regarding the recycling of waste materials in the cement
manufacturing process. Holcim has worked with GTZ to formulate appropriate guidelines and recommend

interested governments to implement them, This has occurred in over 2o Latin American and Asian countries.

Holcim has also entered into a new partnership with The World Conservation Union, the world’s largest network
to conserve the integrity and diversity of nature, We are working together on much-needed standards for
the protection of species with the aim of giving a lead to the whole sector. The first pilot projects have been

successfully started. .

Thanks go to our employees

Motivated employees are important, so we place great importance on providing specialist training and ‘
professional development at all hierarchical levels. Particular attention has traditionally been paid to

our executive training. Holcim has expanded this further by introducing new leadership programs in

collaboration with renowned universities and institutes. .

Our success is based on the expertise and commitment of our employees throughout the world. The Board
of Directors and the Executive Committee would like to thank them for all their hard work. We also would like

to thank all our loyal customers and partners in the wide variety of sectors with which we have links.



Outlook

Itis not easy to judge how far the turbulence in the financial markets will affect the real economy. However,
the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee expect the emerging markets, where three quarters

of our cement production capacity is located, to continue to grow. As a globally active company, we remain
confident. Holcim enjoys excellent geographical diversification, offers innovative praducts and services,

has expert teams, efficient plants and excellent market positioning. In 2008, the Group is expecting to again
reach its long-term growth target of § percent in internal operating EBITDA.

Rolf Soiron Markus Akermann

Chairman of the Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer

February 27, 2008
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Key success factors

Targeted expansion of production capacity strengthens

the Group. Cooperations and partnerships underline our

commitment to sustainable development.

A proven strategy

The strategy of the Group is based on three central
pitlars: focusing on the core business, geographical
diversification and batancing business respensibility

between local and global leadership.

Cement and aggregates as the basis

Holcim is one of the world's leading building mate-
rials groups. The lasting success of Holcim is due to
a stringent product strategy, among other things.
The emphasis is on the production and distribution
of cement and aggregates — both key basic materials
for construction, The main focus of investment ac-
tivities and value creation is the processing of raw

materials. It is highly capital-intensive and ties up

Central pillars of value creation

assets over the long term. Because of the continued
demand for new production facilities and the higher
building cost index, capital expenditures for cement
production have risen substantially. The production

of cement and aggregates requires a great deal of

process know-how.

Investment policy and product range are adapted to
suit the market maturity of a country and the local
customer needs. In the emerging markets, emphasis
is on building up and expanding cement production.
As an economy becomes mare mature, vertical inte-
gration becomes moere significant. The ready-mix
concrete business s established first in major urban

centers. In mare mature markets, the range of

Goal L _Creation of value
-
i i
| Geographic Local management
Strategy Product focus | diversification Global standards
. = Ptk
I
Sustainable |! Carporate
environ- Better cost [ Permanent |Human social
mental manage- [ marketing |resources |respan-
Mindsets ~ _ _____ [|performance|ment innovation Jexcellence |[sibility
Base .
® Holcim Ltd Creating added value is Holcim's paramount objective, an cbjective

that is based on the three strategic pillars and determines guide-
lines in the functional sectors. The most important foundation on
which everything rests s a workforce that gives its best on a daily
basis.



products is even maore diversified and includes
aggregates, asphalt and concrete products. Because
of the high degree of regulation in industrialized
nations, it is strategically important to have high-

grade, secure raw material reserves,

Global presence

Holcim is a globally active company. The Group
operates in more than 70 countries, employs a work-
force of some go,000 and has production facilities
at over 2,000 locations. This geographical diversifi-
cation stabilizes earnings, as it helps to balance

cyclical fluctuations in individual markets.

Net sales per region 2007 2006
Million CHF

Europe 10,401 37.3% 8,673 35.1%
North America 5365 19.2% 5,520 22.3%
Latin America 4,010 144% 3,675 149%
Africa Middle East 1831 66% 2086 8.5%
Asia Pacific 6,292 22.5% 4,745 19.2%'

In 2007, the emerging markets in eastern and south-
eastern Europe, Latin America, Africa, the Middle
East and Asia accounted for 48.3 percent of Group
net sales. Holcim considers these growth markets to
be very important in the context of its expansion

strategy.

Net sales mature versus emerging markets

100%
so%  A4TT%
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Emerging markets
B Mature markets

In India, ACC and Ambuja Cements have been
successfully integrated into the Holcim Group. In
the year under review, Holcim acquired a further
share package from the founder families of Ambuja
Cements. In accordance with the national takeover
code, Holcim was obliged to tender a public bid

to all shareholders for a further 20 percent of the
share capital. As of December 4, 2007, Helcim

owns 46 percent of the share capital of this Group

company.

With the majority takeover of Jurong Cement, Holcim
has secured its market position in the dynamic city
state of Singapore. This company mainly sells ready-
mix concrete, but it is also active in the areas of

slag, special mortar products and bagged cement.

The Group has sold the majority of its stake in
Holcim South Africa under the South African Black
Economic Empowerment strategy. This ensures that
the company, renamed AfriSam, can continue to see

optimum development within its market area.

Capacity expansion

strengthens leading market position

Holcim currently has 28.9 million tonnes of commit-
ted and approved cement expansion projects. In the
year under review, Holcim commissioned Group-
wide 6.7 million tonnes of capacity, 4.6 million of
that in India alone. By the end of 201, it is esti-
mated that plant expansions and construction of
new facilities will have increased Group cement
capacity to around 227 million tonnes, thus creating
a strong foundation for future growth. All facilities
meet the highest technological standards in terms

of costs and environmental efficiency. New capacities
are usually built in existing plant locations, where the
Group companies have robust market positions and

secure raw material reserves.




As a result of expanding production (see table below) Strong local roots

in the amount of CHF &.5 billion, Holcim expects an The extraction of large quantities of raw materials,

annual EBITDA contribution of around CHF 1.1 billion  the operation of capital-intensive cement plants

as of 2012; CHF 550 million per year already from and the distribution of building materials to a local

2010. or regional market require a strong presence in the
relevant areas and awareness of the consequent

The Group is also investing in the areas of aggregates  responsibility.

and ready-mix concrete. Projects and acquisitions

are concentrated on Europe and North America, and In order to fully exploit our potential, Holcim has
for ready-mix concrete in the major urban centers standardized all key corporate processes. This allows
in Latin America, Africa and Asia. local management to concentrate on market and

cost leadership, on basic and advanced training
for senior managers and staff and on nurturing

relations at the local level.

Approved capacity expansion within the Group in million tonnes 2008 to 2011°

Projects 2008 2009 2010 20N Total
Holcim France Benelux 0.6 0.6
Holcim Romania 1.5 0.6 21
Alpha Cement {Russia) 2.1 2.1
Garadagh Cement {Azerbaijan) 1.7 1.7
Further projects in Europe 0.3 0.4 0.7
Total Europe 1.8 1.2 2.5 1.7 7.2
Holcim US 4.0 4.0
Total North America 4.0 4.0
Holcim Apasco {Mexico) 1.6 1.6
Further projects in Latin America 0.2 0.2
Total Latin America 0.2 1.6 1.8
Further projects in Africa Middle East 1.2 1.2
Total Africa Middle East 1.2 1.2
ACC (India) 0.6 4.2 2.1 6.9
Ambuja Cements {India) 7.5 7.5
Further projects in Asia Pacific 03 0.3
Total Asia Pacific 0.9 11.7 2.1 14.7
Total Group 3.9 171 6.2 1.7 28.9

* Status as at February 27, 2008.



Innovative products for an extended customer base
Holcim is stepping up the pace of innovation along
the entire value chain. Increasingly, tailor-made
solutions are being offered to make sure that the
product range meets customer needs at the local
level. Halcim is committed to using new cementi-
tious binders that are more competitive and sus-
tainable than other products. Composite cements
containing special mineral components in addition
to clinker and gypsum are therefore being produced
at Holcim. Across the Group, the proportion of over-
all sales taken up by composite cements has con-
tinued to rise over the past few years: they currently
account for 67 percent, whereas traditional Portland
cement only accounts for 27 percent. Product inno-
vation, in combination with targeted services, is also
helping customers to achieve progress in terms of
productivity gains (see chapter on innovation on

pages 26 and 27).

Clinker factor

19%0
% of clinker in cement

2000 2005 2006 2007

Margin targets per segment

The Group is aiming to reach the higher EBITDA
margin targets set in 2006 to be achieved by 2010.
Comprehensive programs aim to increase productiv-

ity, which have already had‘a positive effect in 2007.

EBITDA margin target 2007 2006 Goal
Cement 32.6% 32.6% 33%
Aggregates  203%  207%  27%
Other construction -

materials and services 7.0 % 6.0% 8%

Over the past few years, the greatest progress has
been made in the cement and mineral components
segment. In spite of increased energy costs, Helcim
is close to the margin target. The increased use of

alternative fuefs and mineral components as well as

global resource management have both contributed

significantly to this.

In the aggregates business, the systematic identifi-
cation of potential for improvement in production
and distribution at the level of the individual
operational units has shown its first results. Holcim
remains optimistic that the targets envisaged will

be reached by 2010,

The other construction materials and services
segment is also heading in the right direction.
The standardization of business processes and
systems for the production and distribution of
ready-mix concrete, asphalt and concrete products
has had the desired effect.



Value chain

Supply Demand
Sales channels
Basic materials Applications in the
processing Transactional Transformational  End-users construction sector
Direct sales
@(ﬂﬁmmmmg mreielE Ready-mix concrete c | Housing
. E enera
Cement Traders contractors
Minieral components _ Concrete products Masons
I f-buil
Wholesalers Self-builders Commercial/irdis
Cement and aggre- - X 1
gates are the basis ' Mortars | building i
—concrete and Ay Retailers
asphalt bring us
closer to the end- Saiid, gravel, stone, Asphalt . Civil engineering
consumer. recycled aggregates Direct sales contractors Infrastructure i

© Holcim Ltd

Sustainable value creation as paramount objective

As one of the world’s leading producers of building
materials, Holcim aspires to be the most respected
and attractive company in this community of quality
suppliers. The return on invested capital should
exceed the Group's after-tax weighted average cost

of capital (WACC) of 8 percent on a sustainable basis.

Measured according to Holcim Value Added (operat-
ing profit - standard capital costs X long-term net
operating assets), the Group has created substantial

added value in the past.

Holcim Value Added (HVA)

HVA befare taxes in million CHF' ROE?
1,000 10.2% 11.6% 15.1% 15.8%  15.9%* 25%

800 B o - _20%
600 15%
400 0,,,—0/0”—_0_¢—_4J 10%

oo _ _ _ 5%

0 _ 0%

-200 o

-400

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

! Excluding cash and cash equivalents, goodwill amortization
and before extraordinary charges.

* Goedwill amortization discontinued from 2005 onward.

* O-line represents a WACC before tax of 11.8 percent.

* Excluding the majority sale in South Africa.



Higher payout ratio

The Group’s solid positioning should also bear fruit
for shareholders. The Board of Directors determined
in 2003 that a payout ratio of one third of Group net
income attributable to equity holders of Holcim Ltd
should be reached in the medium term. With the
rise in dividend for the 2007 business year proposed
to the annual general meeting, Holcim has achieved

this goal.

An empiloyer who both nurtures and demands

Holcim aims to be an exemplary employer, able to
recruit, motivate and retain the best staff. Clear
management principles and systematic career
development opportunities for staff provide the
basis for optimum performance. Holcim demands
commitment, but by the same token it also recog-
nizes hard work. In particular, this means operating

a system of performance-related pay.

Over the last few years, the number of Holcim
employees has increased strongly. New employees
should be integrated quickly and effectively into the
Group. Training is key in this area, and Holcim has
worked with high-profile universities to establish
new methods of employee development through the
introduction of a new leadership program (see also

chapter on human resources on pages 38 to 43).

Complex questions demand partnerships

Holcim takes its corporate responsibility very
seriously and recognizes the significance of the
World Business Council for Sustainable Develop-

n

ment’s “triple bottom line”. The three dimensions of
sustainable development - the economic, ecological
and social - have thus been incorporated into our
business strategy for years (see also chapter on
environmental commitment and social responsibility

on pages 34 to 37).

Holcim has continuously reduced its CO2 emissions
per tonne of cement produced by optimizing
processes and products. Holcim's current emission
levels are very low compared to those of its global
competitors. The use of alternative fuels helps us
to achieve these ambitious goals. To speed up this
process, Holcim also works in partnership with GTZ,

the German Technical Cooperation.

In 2007, Holcim signed a cocoperation agreement
with IUNC - The World Conservation Union. Over the
next few years, standards are to be formulated in
partnership with IUNC to protect biediversity in our

raw material processing plants.

Holcim sees its corporate responsibility in terms

of sustainability as going beyond the sphere of
products, production and processes which we are
able to influence directly. For this reason, we set up
the Holcim Foundation for Sustainable Construction
four years ago, whose task is to promote worldwide
dialogue on sustainable construction between
architects, planners, construction engineers and

investors.

Holcim’s commitment to sustainability is receiving
recognition, being ranked “Leader of the Industry”
in the renowned Dow Jones Sustainability Index in

each of the past three years.



Organization and management

The Group’s management and structure of line

responsibility is organized by geographical regions.

Senior management is supported by efficient

corporate staff units and management systems.

Efficient management and control

The Group’s credibility and good reputation depend
on effective corporate governance. This maintains
confidence among investors, business partners,

employees and the public at large.

The overalt mechanism of corporate governance,
which includes directing, monitoring and organizing
the highest corporate management levels, formulat-
ing business policy principles and applying internal
and external controis, forms the basis for responsible
managerment and control of the company with a

focus on sustainable value creation.

The successful corporate governance developed

in recent years is continuously being adjusted to
requirements. In 2007, the internal control system
has been adjusted to Group-wide new requirements
which leaves Holcim well prepared to fulfill the
new statutory requirements of the Swiss Code of
Obligations which are due to come into force in

the coming financial year.

The “Code of Conduct” defines Group-wide standards
of behavicr expected of all staff and it underscores
our responsibility as an entrepreneur and employer.
The text of the current "Code of Conduct”can be

found on our website under www.holcim.com.

Dual line and functional management responsibility
Holcim is globally active with around go,000 employ-
ees on five continents. We manufacture and distrib-
ute our core products cement and aggregatesin a

large number of local markets, along with products

and services based on these core products in the
ready-mix concrete, asphalt and concrete products

sectors.

The key to the Group's success lies in the competence
of our local management teams. The operating

units in over 70 countries fall under the line responsi-
bility of individual Executive Committee members
assisted by Area Managers and Corporate Functional
Managers. In addition, each Executive Committee
member has functional responsibility for specific
corporate areas such as Cement Manufacturing,
Commercial or Human Resources. This dual manage-
ment approach gives Holcim an ideal combination of
standardized Group-wide processes and local value

creation.

If our Group companies are to strengthen their cost
and market leadership in their markets, they need
both entrepreneurial room to maneuver and support
from the Group in the form of specific know-how
and predefined parameters. We are convinced that
success depends on striking a balance between local
power and autenomy on the one hand and the right
degree of support and intervention from Group head-
quarters on the other. A coherent program of basic
and continuing management training as well as sys-
tematic succession planning to develop candidates
with executive potential at both national company
and corporate level are factors which strengthen the

Group on a lasting basis.

Holcim's efficient and lean organizational structure

enables it to respond rapidly to new challenges.
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During the year under review, the area management
was strengthened by the appointment of Bernard
Kueng, formerly CEO of Holcim France Benelux,

as Area Manager in Group region Europe and

as Corporate Functional Manager for Sustainable

Development.

Helcim's hierarchical structures are flat and its divi-
sions of responsibility clearly defined — both at Group
levei and in the individual Group companies. This
ensures that decisions are based on expert knowl-
edge and cost awareness and that new processes or

standards are implemented without delay.

The Group's managers, the regions and the countries
and local sites are assisted by service centers at
regional level and by central corporate staff units at
global level, Holcim has well structured management
systems in place. Group companies are given clear
guidelines in alt key areas of the business, from tech-
nology and environmentally friendly production to
human resources and finance. In 2007, all existing
guidelines were brought up te a uniform standard

and reissued.

Business Risk Management

identifies risks and opportunities

Business Risk Management supports the Executive
Committee and the management teams of the Group
companies in their strategic decisions. Business Risk
Management aims to systematically recognize major
risks — as well as opportunities — facing the company.
Potential risks are identified and evaluated at an early
stage and constantly monitored. Countermeasures
are then proposed and implemented at the appropri-
ate level. Risk management looks at a wide range of
different internal and external risk types in the strate-

gic, operating and financial sectors.

In addition to the Group companies, the Executive
Committee and the Beard of Directors are also
involved in the assessments. The Group's risk profile
is assessed from a variety of top-dewn and bottom-
up angles. This not only invelves seeking out threats,
but also opportunities along the entire value chain.
A central database allows fast, secure access to the
information collected. The Executive Committee

reports regularly to the Board of Directors on impor-

tant risk analysis findings and provides updates on

the measures taken {see alsc page 74).

The Internal Audit as an important monitoring
instrument

Internal Audit is an independent body which reports
directly to the Chairman of the Board of Directors
and submits regular reports to the Audit Committee.
Internal Audit does not confine itself to financial
audits, but also monitors compliance with external

and internal guidelines.

Particular attention is paid to the effectiveness
and efficiency of internal management and control

systems, including:

Examining the reliability and completeness

of financial and operational information;
E;(a_r-rrw'inir%-tflé—systems-f-dr- cont;dlfing_gomb]ar;ée
with internal and external directives such as plans,
pro_ce_sse-s,_lg_v_vs_and or'dipa_lpc_e_s;__ S

Examining whether business assets are secure,

Commeon idea of management

In recent years, Holcim has systematically focused on
value enhancement. This has involved measuring per-
formance within the Group and introducing systems
to motivate management to perform to consistently
high standards.

In 2003, a standardized, variable compensation sys-
tem was introduced for our most senior executives.
On the strength of the positive experiences gained,
2007 saw a doubling of the number of employees in
this system. As previously undertaken, salaries will be
calculated not only on the basis of the Group's objec-
tives, but also in light of the specific circumstances of
the local Group companies, A significant proportion
of the performance-related bonus is paid in the form
of Helcim shares which are locked in for a period of
three to five years. This system sirengthens the focus
on the common target of a sustainable increase in

the Group’s performance and value.
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Innovation

Holcim continuously carries out research into new

products and production processes, thereby also promoting

innovation in the construction materials industry.

Pioneering role in reducing clinker factor in cement

In recent years, our product portfolic has been under-
going a successful switch to low CO2 cements, a
process which actively continued in the year under
review. Thus, in 2007, the proportion of consolidated
cement sales attributable to traditional Portland
cements fell to less than 30 percent, as against nearly

twice that figure in 199s.

Cur extended product range not only enabled us to
improve our ecalogical profile in many markets, but
also allowed us to offer customers made-to-measure
application-specific solutions using composite

cements which are becoming increasingly important.

The focus of research and development activity is
on eco-efficient products and services. The main
emphasis is on system solutions based on a holistic
view of the entire process from the manufacture of
the product to its use and recycling. Projects were
launched which will ensure the Group’s leading role

in this area over the coming years.

Eco-efficient products with exceptional resistance

One example from the eco-efficient product range is
CEMROC®, a building material which offers a combi-
nation of very low CO2 emissions in production and a
final concrete product that shows exceptional resis-
tance to attack by chemical agents and has exemplary
properties in terms of durability and service life.

The production of CEMROC® involves adding extra
components to a slag cement which give the end-
product concrete enhanced properties and make it

resistant to aggressive environmental conditions.

A product based on a by-product of coal-fired power
plants which is comparable with CEMROC® in terms
of environmental impact and use is already at an

advanced stage of development.

Steel fiber concrete for the world’s longest concrete slab
PETRA [II, the world’s most powerful storage ring
X-ray source, is under construction at the site of the
German Electron Synchrotron (DESY} in Hamburg.
Future experiments required a hall floor which was
vibration-free, extremely stable and as decoupled as
possible from the rest of the building. These require-
ments could be met by a floor slab 280 meters long,
24 meters wide and 1 meter thick. Holcim Germany
delivered 6,500 cubic meters of ready-mix concrete to
the building site, including 3,300 cubic meters of steel
fiber concrete for the core section of the experimental
hall. 120 Holcim employees worked 62 hours without
interruption to deliver the high-grade ready-mix con-

crete in over 850 truck loads.

With the development of shrinkage-compensated
concrete, Holcim Apasco in Mexico has succeeded

in casting concrete slaps up to 1,600 square meters
in size and in reducing the proportion of joins by up
to go percent. Despite higher material costs, total
expenditure can be reduced due to shorter construc-
tion times and labor savings. The low proportion of
joins also results in a user-friendly concrete surface

with a long service life.




System solutions for specific customer needs

Holcim Brazil has launched micro cements which can
be injected into porous subsoils due to their small
particle size. The special equipments and pumps
required were developed by Holcim. The Microinject
system solution has already been successfully used
to seal tunnel arches and other structures and to
repair road surfaces. This saves the need for extensive
demalition and repair work. The Group company
offers these operations as a full service and licenses

the technology to third parties.

Concrete as a design feature

In addition to its technical properties, concrete is
increasingly being used as a design feature in struc-
tural and civil engineering projects. Holcim France has
developed an innovative product family under the
name Articimo®. Fibers, pigments and special surface
treatments can be used to achieve a wide variety of
external effects on the facades of buildings and on
fioor surfaces. As well as catering for aesthetic needs,
the techniques also meet stringent technical require-
ments, like durability. Products developed on the basis
of Articimo® have even found their way into living
environments. A key component of this successful
brand is partnership-based cooperation with
customers. To this end, Holcim has estabtished a
network of specialist users of Articimo® systems and
assists partner firms with experts from its technical

customer service department.

Water-permeable concrete

There are also other ways in which concrete surfaces
can shine.The development of water-permeable
concrete surfacing materials helps to counter the
problem of sealed surfaces. In addition to this special
concrete, Aggregate Industries UK has also launched
system components that trap and store the rainwater
that seeps through the surfacing material, obviating
the need to build detention basins. The seepage water
is then either channeled for further use or discharged
into the soilin regulated quantities. This relieves the

pressure on drainage systems during periods of heavy

rainfall, thereby mitigating the environmental impact.

Process innovation strengthens cost leadership

and environmental protection

Holcim has been involved in developing and introduc-
ing new production technologies for years. The main
focus is on cutting costs and increasing environmen-
tal efficiency of operating facilities. In Switzerland
alene, Holcim currently has more than 12 research and
development projects under way at leading universi-
ties and research institutes, all of which are being led

by Holcim technical specialists.

New platforms for alternative fuels
Nowhere is Holcim's leading role in environmental |
protection more apparent than in the special platforms
for the preparation and use of alternative fuels and
raw materials. With new types of process technologies,
Holcim seeks not only to promote the use of such
materials, but also to substantially improve the

emissions profile of its kiln systems.

Intelligent multi-drive gears

Holcim also conducts intensive research into critical
mechanical plant components. The aim is not only to
enhance the reliability of a wide range of machines,
but also to reduce investment costs, Aninteresting
example is the multi-drive concept —a new type

of drive system to be used for the first time in the
grinding ptant under construction in Rouen, France.
Developed in close cooperation with Gebr. Pfeiffer AG
and Flender AG, the drive aggregate is based on
several, interlinked standard gears which then drive
the vertical roller mill via an open chain wheel. This
new development allows mill gears to be used longer
and reduces stocks of spare parts.




' Bearer share until
unification of
share structure
{lune 10, 2003),
registered share
afterwards.

Capital market information

Holcim regularly makes active use of the capital markets
to raise debt and equity capital. With several transactions
undertaken during the year the long-term capital base could

be further strengthened.

In 2007, Holcim shares performed very well in a than the previous year, Holcim shares ended the
turbulent and volatile stock market environment. year with a gain of 8.6 percent. The share closed on
While the Swiss Market Index (SM1) rose to a record December 31, 2007 at CHF 121.30 (2006: 111.70).

high in June and closed the year 3.4 percent lower

Performance of Holcim share versus Swiss Market Index (SMI)
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Listings

Holcim is listed on the SWX Swiss Exchange. Its shares
are traded on virt-x. Each share carries one voting right.
As at December 31, 2007 the company's market capital-
ization stood at CHF 32 billion,

Additional data

Security code number 1221405
Telekurs code - -HOLN
Bloo-mbérg code  HoINwx
Reuters code o S EA;!#OII\]VQ

Major shareholders
Information on major shareholders can be found on

page 178 in this report.

Distribution of Holcim shares

and breakdown of shareholders

The majority of shares held in other countries are
owned by shareholders in the UK and the US.

Geographical distribution

Free float
The free float as defined by the SWX Swiss Exchange
stands at 80 percent.

Dividend policy

Dividends are distributed annually. The next dividend
payment is scheduled for May 13, 2008. The Board

of Directors determined in 2003 that a payout ratio
of one third of Group net income attributable to
equity holders of Holcim Ltd should be reached in
the medium term. With the rise in dividend for the
2007 business year proposed to the annual general

meeting, Holcim has achieved this goal.

Weighting of the Holcim registered share

in selected share Indices

Switzerland 39% Index Weighting in %
Other courntriesi ) Zg% SM'I. gwiss M;arket Index o 7 ’2.56
Shares pending registratioﬁ of transfer v ;3% SiPI, éwiss Performa nce tndex -2.1 5
h SLI, Swiss Leader Index 4.48
Breakdown of shareholders BEBULDM, BE500 Building Materials Index 17.74
by number of registered shares held gX&’Dt;w Jc;nes STO-XX 600 Cou;s‘trluécii-(;l_;-“*éfi
1-100 9,885  DJS| World, Dow Jones Sustainability Index 020
101-1000 21,789  FTSE4Good Europeindex 029
1:001-10,000 - e e 4.45 8- Sources: Bloomberg, Dow Jones Sustainability Indexes,
10,001-100,000 492 FTSE Index Company, end-December 2007.
> 100,000 09




Information on Holcim registered shares
Further information on Holcim registered shares

can be found at www.holcim.com/investors.

Key data Holcim registered share'

2007
263,586,090

f e e——

Par value CHF 2

Number of shares issued

Number of dividend-be_a_rir_'ng shares 1263,586,090
i\u;niaer of sharg-ggnd_itiéﬁa(cégigaii __} -”1 422350
Number of treasury shares | 688,849
tockmarketpricasmCHE

High® | 138
Low® ? 12
Earnings per dividend-bearing shar-ein CHF*® ) 14.86
Cash eafr_1ing; p;errsharei;l CHF? 15.39
Consolidated shareholders’ equity - -

per share in CHF? _ 71.44
G—ig‘_ss divide_nageirishﬁare i‘n CHF - 3.30°

' Adjusted to reflect former share splits and/or capital increases.

! Restated in line with IAS 21 amended.

! Restated in line with new and revised IFRS, effective January 1, 2005.
* Shares reserved for convertible bonds issued.

2006

2005°

20047®

2003°

255,348,625 229,925,518 229,925,518 201,184,829

255,348,625 229,925,518 229,925,518 201,184,829

9.659.815
679,912

113
86
B.64
9.14

59.60

lOOiru

14,007,875 14,007,875 14,007,875

828,998 6,786,750
88 68

68 55

661 4.
6.90 5.83
50.05 38.02
165 1.25

¥ Bearer share until unification of share structure {June 10, 2003), registered share afterwards.
® EPS calculation based on net income attributable to equity holders of Holcim Ltd weighted by the average number of shares (see note 15).

' Excludes the amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets.

5958869

58
35
3.49
453

3482
1.15

* Based on shareholders’ equity - attributable to equity holders of Holcim Ltd - and the number of dividend-bearing shares as per

December 31, 2007,
? Proposal of the Board of Directors.



Disclosure of shareholdings

Under Art. 20 of the Swiss Federal Act on Stock
Exchanges and Securities Trading (Stock Exchange
Act) and Art. 28 of the Additional Rules for the
Listing on the SWX “EU-Compatible” Segment

{AR EU), whosoever, directly, indirectly or in concert
with third parties, acquires or disposes of shares,
for his own account, in a company incorporated in
Switzerland whose equity securities are listed, in
whole or in part, in Switzerland and thereby attains,
falls below or exceeds the threshold of 3, 5,10, 20, 25,
33", 50 or 66/, percent of the voting rights, whether
or not such rights may be exercised, shall notify

the company and the stock exchanges on which the
equity securities in question are listed. Important

shareholders are disclosed on page 178.

Registration in the share register

and restrictions on voting rights

On request, purchasers of registered shares are en-
tered in the share register as voting shareholders pro-
vided that they expressly declare that they acquired
the shares in their own name and for their own
account. The Board of Directors will enter individuals
whose requests for registration do not include an
express declaration that they hold the shares for
their own account {(nominees) in the share register as
shareholders with voting rights, provided that such
nominees have concluded an agreement with the
company concerning their status and are subject to

recognized banking or financial market supervision,

Current rating

Group credit rating solid

Hoicim Ltd's current credit rating — as awarded by
Standard & Poor’s — is "BBB+" for long-term liabilities
and "A-2" for short-term liabilities. The international
ratings agency Fitch rated us "BBB+" with “outlook
stable” for long-term liabilities and "f2" for short-

term credit.

Standard & Poor's Fitch

Long-term rating

BBB+, outlook stable

BBB+, outlook stable o

Short-term rating

A-2 F2

Financial reporting calendar

Press and analyst conference on annual results for 2007
Results for the first quarter of 2001.3-

General meeting of shareholders
i)i\}idena-pa)-(rhéa (:ex daté) -
Half.year results for 2008

February 27, 2008
May 6, 2008

May 7, 2008

May 13, 2008

August 21, 2008

Press and analyst conference for the third quarter of 2008

November 12, 2008

Press and analyst conference on annual results for 2008

March 4, 2009
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Environmental commitment and social responsibility

Our commitment to sustainable development and the

consistent implementation of our strategies as part of the

“triple bottom line” are receiving widespread recognition.

Holcim enjoys a high reputation throughout the
building materials industry. This is not only attribut-
able to our business success, but also reflects our
commitment to sustainable development. The Group
understands corporate responsibility in terms of

the "triple bottom line” — value creation, sustainable
environmental performance and social responsibility.
This concept is part of both Group strategy and

management systems for many years.

In order to make sure that our priorities in sustainable
development meet the expectations of our most
important stakeholders, Holcim not only constantly
assesses risks, but also periodically consults a
selection of stakeholders both at local and inter-
national level. This has confirmed that our focus

on occupational health and safety, CO2, energy,
community involvement in the areas surrounding
our plants and to sustainable construction are all

being recognized.

Holcim attaches great importance to innovation
along the entire value chain in an attempt to reduce
the use of non-renewable resources, energy consump-

tion and COz emissions.

Holcim as industry leader

In recognition of our efforts in this area, Holcim has
been named industry leader in the Dow Jones Sus-
tainability Index {DJSI) for the third successive year.

in particular, it was noted that Holcim is consistently
addressing key issues relevant to the cement industry.
The recycling and energy saving strategy received
special praise, as did the initiative to conserve bio-
diversity, and the targets for CO2 reduction. Top scores
were also received for dialogue with stakeholders, our

efforts in occupational health and safety, and human

capital development,

Based on the corporate sustainability assessment
from Sustainable Asset Management (SAM) for the
DI5l, Holcim received two sustainability distinctions
at the World Economic Forum in January 2008: SAM
2008 sector leader and SAM 2008 gold class.

Occupational health and safety remains a high priority
Halcim attaches the utmost importance to the
health and safety of all its employees, subcontractors
and visitors. This represents a particular challenge

in the cement industry, where large quantities of
materials are transported. Despite the advances
made as part of the “Passion for Safety” initiative,
performance is still not satisfactory. We regret that
the numbers of serious accidents and geaths among
our own employees, subcontractors and third parties

increased in 2007.

The aim of preventing accidents and not endangering
human life is being pursued with renewed urgency.
At the center of our efforts is the initiative launched
in 2005 in cooperation with DuPont. The corner-
stones of this campaign are clear grganizational
accountabilities for safety issues, robust training
programs, comprehensive information and the

verification of key indicators.

In order to embed a culture of safety, five “cardinal
rutes” and directives on fatality prevention were
launched in 2007. They are valid for all employees of
both Holcim and subcontractors. Failure to obey the
regulations will lead to appropriate corrective action

being taken. It is only through strict discipline in all



questions that the desired changes will be achieved.
The aim is to eliminate serious accidents completely
and to reduce lost time injury frequency rate by

30 percent per year between 2006 and 20049.

Successful reduction in CO2 emissions

After water, concrete is the most commonly used
material on earth, No adequate replacement is known
for this durable building material with a wide variety
of applications. To construct modern infrastructures
and homes without concrete is unthinkable. The
cement component of concrete can only be produced
through a resource and energy-intensive process that
releases considerable amounts of COz, although,
holistically the end-product, concrete, can be consid-

ered an environmentally friendly building material.

Climate change represents a huge challenge for the
industry. Holcim has voluntarily committed itself to a
20 percent reduction of global average specific net
CO2 emissions by 2010, compared with 19g0. For each
Group company, a reduction target has been defined
and integrated into their business plans. The results
are encouraging: by the end of 2007, Holcim had man-

aged to reduce emissions by 16.8 percent (2006:15.9}.

Lost time injury frequency rate’

Acquisitions in India resulted in our global CO2 emis-
sions increasing, but we were able to initiate a num-
ber of projects on the subcontinent as part of the
Clean Development Mechanism (COM) of the Kyoto

Protocol for which we obtained emission rights.

Holcim remains optimistic that the ambitious overall
reduction target will be reached by 2010.The corre-
sponding data in this area have been subject to inde-

pendent assurance since 2004.

There are four principal ways in which CO2 emissions
can be reduced in the cement industry: 1. by reducing
the clinker factor, 2. by increasing thermal energy effi-
ciency in production, 3. by replacing fossil fuels and

so optimizing fuel composition, and 4. by reducing
cement kiln dust. The most impoertant and effective
factors are the reduction of the clinker factor and
innovations along the value chain. For this reason,
new types of cement are being produced with higher
contents of mineral components and, hence, reduced
CO2 emissions, Holcim continues to search for further
ways to improve the eco-efficiency of its production

processes.
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The CO2 data are
interim figures
subject to external
assurance. Updated
emission figures
will be published
an our website by
mid-2008.

5 Minus indirect
savings, such as use
of alternative fuels.



Intelligent use of alternative fuels

Due to modern technology, waste from other indus-
tries can be used as alternative fuels or raw materials.
Holcim encourages this process, which has not

only ecological advantages, but is also economically
and socially beneficial. The replacement of fossil

fuels in this way reduces the use of non-renewable
resources, in turn cutting both global CO2 emissions
and production costs. We are also helping to alleviate
the problem of waste, particularly in developing

countries.
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The use of alternative fuels and raw materials is a
sophisticated technological process. This is why
Holcim has worked with GTZ, the German Technical
Cooperation, to develop and publish guidelines on
coprocessing waste in cement production. This
partnership also seeks to implement the guidelines,
especially in developing countries, and to encourage

diatogue with non-governmental organizations.

Further environmental targets

Holcim has made a voluntary commitment to continue
to reduce its impact on the environment. Our target -
to reduce the global average specific nitrogen oxides,

sulfur dioxide and dust emissions by 2o percent

by 2010 compared to 2004 levels —is as important as

ever,

In 2007, the Group signed a three-year cooperation
agreement with The World Conservation Union
{IUNC) to waork jointly on ecosystem conservation
and biodiversity, showing a new way ahead for the
cement industry. Pilot projects are already under
way in Sri Lanka, reviewing the quality of biodiversity
conservation activities at Holcim sites and to
facilitate existing quarry rehabilitation planning

and implementation.

Holcim continues to benefit from the know-how

of new Group companies: Aggregate Industries, for
instance, has a wealth of experience in the production
and marketing of sustainable and low-cost building

materials.

In 2007, the Group invested CHF 144 million {2006: 118)
in environmental improvements at its plants and
production facilities. Appropriate provisions are
maintained for site rehabilitation and restoration

in line with legal and contractual obligations. As of
December 31, 2007, these provisions amounted to
CHF 518 million {2006: 521}.



Effective social commitment

Our social engagement with the communities sur-
rounding Holcim locations is important to us and is
alsa being recognized. Projects in this area are based
on the core competencies of the Group and con-
tribute to solving environmental or social problems,
Our Group companies are enccuraged to engagein
projects including education and training, infrastruc-
ture building and sustainable community develop-
ment. With the recently developed “social engage-
ment scorecard”, we evaluate the different projects

systematically.

Within our area of influence, we therefore aim to
contribute to improving the quality of life. In 2007,
Group companies devoted a total of CHF 47.9 million
on community initiatives, with the aim of creating
real value.

An example is the construction of affordable housing
in emerging markets, which is often absent. Holcim
is involved in these types of projects particularly

in Latin America and Asia, where it works closely
with local partners, who have a knowledge of local
conditions. Examples in Colombia and Sri Lanka show
that such partnership projects create real value

for the target groups and help to reinforce Holcim’s

reputation.

Stakeholder engagement is important to Holcim.
Recognizing changing needs and understanding
expectations help us to further strengthen the
respect and trust that we have built up for our -

company.

Holcim Awards and Holcim forum well established

The Holcim Foundation was set up in 2003 with the
aim of promoting sustainable construction world-
wide. It organizes a global competition in a three-year
cycle. Over the same period of time, an academic
forum is organized on one aspect of sustainability.
The second forum was held in 2007 in Shanghai and
was devoted to the question of how cities in the

21% century could develop sustainable solutions to
their enormous growth. More than 250 experts from
4o countries took part in this event, and the key con-
clusions were then published in print. The foundation
alsc makes contributions to scientific research and
sustainable building projects, and has enabled a
chair in sustainable construction at the Swiss Federal

Institute of Technology in Zurich.

The closing date for entries for the second competition
cycle is the end of February 2008. Subsequently, the
five regional winners are chosen. The global prize is

awarded in May 2004.

New sustainability report to be published in 2008

In accordance with Global Reporting Initiative guide-
lines, Holcim is to publish its fourth sustainability
report in 2008. This report will contain information
on the Group's economic, environmental and social
commitments and related challenges. It is also a
progress report highlighting key actions taken in
support of the UN Global Compact’s ten principles,

to which the Group subscribes.



' Holgim redefined
its business areas
following the
acquisition of
Aggregate
Industries. These
now cansist of the
product segments
“Cement”,"Aggre-
gates”and “Other

Construction Mate-

rials and Services”,
The year-earlier
figures have been
adjusted accord-
ingly. The composi-
tion of the product
segments is de-
scribed on page 8.

Including all other
cementitious
materials.

Human resources

Holcim creates the right working environment to motivate

staff and attaches importance to all-round people

development through targeted basic and continuing

training. Career and succession planning are part of

our successful human resources management.

Values applied in practice lead to results

Our mission statement, our vision and our practiced
vatues, backed by the commitment of our staff,

form the basis on which our success is founded,

but they also describe what can be expected of the
company. Holcim’s values are summed up in its motto
“Strength. Performance, Passion.”. Holcim aspires to
be a solid, dependable partner, which calls for staff

with integrity and competence.

Creating value and living up to Holcim's principles means
acting accordingly in our day-to-day business operations.
In 2006, Holcim introduced a program to anchor its
values more firmly in the Group. This is a leadership task
that is supported by targeted internal communications

and by the integration of these values in a wide range of

HR and training activities. To gauge how firmly anchored
Holcim's values are, global employee surveys are con-
ducted to establish how well staff understand the com-
pany’s values and how they apply them in their actions.
The surveys results in clear recommendations on areas

where there is rcom for improvement.

Holcim’s commitment to training and learning

is crucial for success

Holcim has long-standing experience of and true
commitment to training and learning. For example,
we have run central technical courses in Switzerland
for decades. These were originally aimed at improv-
ing manufacturing performance throughout the
whole Group. tn 1995, we implemented the concept

of the faster learning organization across all levels,

Group employees by segments’ 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Cement? 57,671 57,878 34,543 32,846 32,590
Aggregates 7.000 7,136 6,542 3,27.1 3,372
Other construction materials and services 24,567 23,724 18,750 10,739 12,221
Corporate 126 45 66 53 37
Total Group 89,364 B8,783 59,901 46,909 48,220
Group employees by region 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Europe 22,905 22,0086 20,458 14,980 15,365
North America 11,190 11,268 10,393 5,249 5,236
Latin America 13,409 12,234 10,904 10,676 10,278
Africa Middle East 2,795 5,218 5318 47,62'1 4,472
Asia Pacific 38,133 37,212 12,045 10,644 12,118
Corporate 932 845 783 739 751
Total Group 89,364 88,783 59,901 46,909 48,220




broadening our approach to training well beyond

mere technical instruction,

Helcim recognized early that its leading position in
the building materials sector was closely linked to
leadership quality and employee motivation at all
levels. If Holcim is to maintain leadershipin the
future, the Group must continually adapt to tomor-
row's markets. This is where the concept of lifelong
learning comes in, We started systematically to iden-
tify the skitls needed both at Group level and within
the Group companies and to gear training content
accordingly. At Holcim, there is a learning environ-
ment in place today in which employees can adjust
quickly to new conditions and also know what action
to take. This is essential if we are to maintain and

strengthen our leadership position in the industry.
Adual approach is key to faster learning. Employees

should not only improve their expertise, but also

their leadership competencies, because in a large

Origin of senior managers

organization such as Holcim they should be actively

involved in shaping dynamic development processes.

Fostering broad-based technical expertise

The strength of the Group's performance depends on
the technical competence of alt employees. Holcim

is therefore committed to training apprentices and
experts at numerous locations, particularly in the

technical field.

Because the demands of the workplace are constantly
changing, we attach importance to continuous basic
and advanced training on all levels. Under the heading
of ongoing training for specialists, Holcim runs more
than 100 customized training modules. Tailored to
the specific technical knowledge of employees and
their differing levels of training, these impart new

experiences and working methods in shift operations.

From Europe:

From Nor‘;h America:
From Latin America:
From Africa Middle East:

From Asia Pacific:

Composition of senior managers

22 nationalities
2 nationalities
15 nationalities
6 nationalities

14 nationalities

39% of all senior management
15% of all senior r'r;anagement
20% of all senior managément

6% of all senior management

20% of all senior management

Male Female Total Percentage
of women
Top management level 346 22 368 6%
Senior management level 1,683 167 1,850 9‘7%7
Middle management level 6358 1,179 7,537 16%
Itlta_l B _ . 8,387 _‘I_,_S_GS __i'HS L 14%_
Personnel expenses in 2007 by function and region
Million CHF Production Marketing Administration Tota!
and distribution and sales
Europe 1208 " 190 T 363 1,761
North America _ 985 88 192 1265
Latin America 352 ) 77 - 114 . 543
Africa Middle East 98 15 37 150
Asia Pacific 376 54 144 574
Corporate 49 26 190 265
Total Group 3,068 450 11,040 4,558




Management skills
and leadership
competency
deliver desired
perfoermance.

Strategy and leadership

Holcim has a clear strategy. To execute this strategy
successfully, executives at Group companies need
management skills as well as leadership competen-
cies. Only the combination of bath qualities enables
leaders to provide the desired and committed per-

formance and deliver the necessary results.

Training supports strategy implementation

Management skills

Leadership competencies

Closer cooperation with business schools

For some years now, management training seminars
have been successfully organized in cooperation

with the University of 5t. Gallen and the Institute for
mManagement Development (IMD) in Lausanne, both
in Switzerland. In order to strengthen the "leadership
competencies” training component, Holcim launched
two new seminars at corporate level with the IMD in
2007 - the Leadership Seminar and the Senior Leader-
ship Program, The courses held on the institute’s
campus round out the existing Holcim management

training program considerably.



Management seminars with new priorities

The new management seminars are based on a model
of defined leadership competencies expected by
Holcim. The seminars are designed to leave participants
better equipped to continually and successfully
implement strategy together with their employees
and to give them the tools needed to work on their
persaenal development and to use in developing their

team members.

The 14 Holcim leadership competencies

Holcim mission, vision, strategy

and operational roadmap

Think the business

Strategic vision

Analysis
and problem solving

Business

and financial acumen

Deliver results

Act as a role model

Adapts and learns

Manages execution

Customer focus

Drives change

and innovation

\ Leads for performance

Energize people

Communtication

Engages and inspires

Develops human capital

Cultivates relationships
and networks

Builds trust and confidence

Fosters teamwork and cooperation

The Group has pro-
duced a standard
global definition
of leadership
competencies
which specifies
what is expected
of management
staff.




The management seminars are part of a longer-term
curriculum,. What happens before and after the
individual courses is at least as impartant for the

impact that the seminar will have.

After preliminary studies, course participants are
required to complete a number of assignments
directly related to their management tasks. They also
undergo a “360° assessment” in which they receive

feedback from their superiors, direct reports and

selected peers. The focus is not just on assessing indi-

vidual performance, but on gaining an insight into
one’s own development potential. Every participant
prepares an individual plan on how to tackle their

further development. After the seminar, participants

The Holcim management training system

are assisted by coaches for a period of 6 to 12 months

to consolidate the skills and insights gained.

The current management and leadership programs
at Group level are aimed at tap, senior and selected

middle managers of the Group.

A core curriculum for management education in
Group companies has been developed for the
remaining management population at middle and
in particular at first line management level. Thus,
the entire management population of Holcim today
has the opportunity to consistently improve their
management and leadership skills.

Target group Event

Objectives

G RNt RS 0 il d ek

i

Top and Senior Leadership Program
senior management
{approximately

1,500 executives}

Senior Management

Program

Translate strategy into personal action using
behavioral levers; shape organizational capabilities
and culture as well as personal competencies by

understanding oneself and one’s leadership style

Advanced understanding of an integrated manage-
ment approach comprising strategy, finance, leader-

ship and sustainable development

Senior and Leadership Seminar
middle management
(approximately

5,000 executives)

Management Seminar

Improve operational performance by developing
personal competencies to lead own function and
to cooperate with other functions; understanding

oneself and one’s leadership style

Understanding of fundamentals of six key Iearniﬁg
areas {strategy, finance, leadership, marketing,

manufacturing and sustainable development)

Local
education

Middle and

first line management

Core Curriculum for
Management Education
{approximately

15,000 executives)

Management basics and managing oneself

and others




Over the last three years, more than 1,300 top, senior
and middle managers have attended executive train-

ing. 16 pragrams currently take place each year.

Holcim strengthens leadership qualities Group-wide
We endeavor to successively develop management
successors. This enables us to give preference to
people from within the organization in around
eighty percent of all appointments to senior and
top management positions. Holcim has a selection
process in place specifically designed to provide the
numbers of suitably trained and experienced leaders
needed to meet succession planning requirements.
Line managers assume a mentoring role to ensure
that the development plans of people participating

in these programs are implemented successfully.

Hundreds of successor candidates have now gone
through this development process, which also has

real benefits for line managers.

Some 20 percent of our appointments to senior and
top management positions are currently filled with
people recruited externally. Holcim is doing its
utmost to ensure that the Group retains its position
as an attractive employer. At present, we are mainly
seeking engineers and other technical specialists
with proven professional track records. What speaks
for us is that we can offer both young graduates and
experienced professionals exciting opportunities to
build careers that could take them anywhere in the
world and could involve a range of different profes-
sional roles. Holcim's genuine respect for the environ-
ment and far the communities where we operate is a
good reason why people like working for us and why

we are an attractive employer in the job market.

Holcim alsec employs systematic programs to facili-
tate international transfers and increase the mobility

of our employees.

Commitment to performance

A key element of Holcim's culture is delivering what is
promised. To emphasize our credo, we apply a process
called "Dialogue”. As well as enabling systematic
discussions with team members, this is also a tool for
anchoring Group targets cascade-style throughout

the organization by means of personal objectives.

In a recent comparative survey covering similar
companies, it was found that our employees showed
an exceptionally high degree of identification with
Holcim's objectives and had a good understanding

of their role in achieving those objectives.

The "Dialogue” process always involves supervisars
approving individual employees’ personal objectives.
However, supervisors are also required to coach
their team members on how best to achieve their

objectives.

These conversations involve first formulating objec-
tives and later analyzing results. At the same time,
they also highlight employees’ personal strengths
and address opportunities for improvements in both

leadership competencies and professional skills.

This process helps the organization as a whole to
enhance its performance and ensures that employees
are aware of their professional development opportu-

nities and the next steps in the development process.

The variable performance compensation scheme

for the Group's top 700 executives has been geared
further toward ensuring that they all focus on
company objectives in their work. In many countries,
further performance-based remuneration schemes

are in place for different employee groups,




Ken Walden
EIC Manager

Mechanical Manager

John Cooper
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Strong growth

above all in southeastern Europe and Russia

Europe’s economy sees further growth

The strong global economic environment provided

a strong stimulus for the European economy in 2007.
In western Europe, output increased in all Group
countries, although there was a slowdown in growth
in some markets in the second half of the year.

In eastern and southeastern Europe, steadily increas-
ing foreign direct investment and subsidies of the
European Union led to strong demand. Romania and
Bulgaria in particular benefited as new member
states of the European Union. Russia and Azerbaijan

devetoped rigorously.

Good capacity utilization in the construction sector

The construction sector benefited from the robust
state of the economy. In France, demand for construc-
tian materials increased significantly due to govern-
ment programs to promote affordable housing and
further investment in transport infrastructure. in the
UK too, public-sector house building projects and the
commercial and industrial sector were responsible
for higher capacity utilization. However, there were
western European countries, which saw construction
activity decline in comparison with the previous year.
Some signs of market saturation were apparent

in northern (taly. Spain witnessed a slowdown in
residential construction. In contrast, with a few
exceptions, construction volumes in eastern and
southeastern Europe increased sharply, with measures
to expand transport infrastructure accounting for
the lion's share. More building materials were also
required for residential construction — for new build-
ings and major renovation projects, New shopping
centers, office buildings and hotels deminated con-
struction activity in almost all regional urban centers.
Additional impetus was generated by major projects
such as the expansion of the subway systems of
Budapest and Sofia, the construction of car factories
and power plants in the Czech Republic and tourism
projects in Bulgaria. In Russia and Azerbaijan, pent-up
demand for housing and infrastructure strengthened

construction activity.

Higher cement demand -

above all in southeastern Europe

The consolidated cement deliveries in Europe differed
from region to region and at 34.3 million tonnes once
again reached a very high level, especially in south-

eastern Europe, Russia and Azerbaijan.

Holcim France Benelux achieved an increase in
volumes in all segments due to consistently positive
orders in northern France and the expansion of the
TGV train line between the Rhine and the Rhone,

In Germany, private residential construction activity
was dampened by the end of both investment grants
and tax incentives. The increase in VAT also had a
negative impact on cement deliveries. However,
Holcim Germany was able to lift its sales volumes
due to rising cement exports to Russia. In southern
Germany, prospering industrial construction boosted
sales of the local Group company. Stronger vertical
integration in Hamburg and Stuttgart led to a

marked increase in volumes of ready-mix concrete.

Consolidated key figures Europe 2007 2006 %
Production capacity cement in million t 489 46.9 +4.3
Cement and grinding plants a1 40
Aggregates plants 256 246
Ready-mix concrete plants 559 510
Asphalt plants 94 65
Sales ofc-ementin million t 34.3 329 +4.3
Sales of mineral components in million t 2.4 2.2 +9.1
Sales of éggregates in milliont - 108.8 95.4 +14.0
Sales of readj—mix concrete in million m 19.8 200 -1.0
Sales of asphalt in million t 6.8 6.0 +13.3
Net sales in mitlion CHF 10,401 8,673 +19.9
Cperating EBITDA in million CHF 2,399 1,966 +22.0
Operating EBITDA margin in % 23.1 22.7
Personnel 22,006 +4.1

22,905




Holcim Switzerland reported a decline in cement
sales with major expressway projects near Zurich
approaching completion and because of delays in the
allocation of contracts for the Gotthard rail tunnel.

In northern Italy, Holcim was affected by the generally
weaker state of the market; only deliveries in the
ready-mix concrete business could be increased.

In Spain, after several years of booming construction
activity, the decline in residential construction led

to considerable falls in sales in the aggregates and
ready-mix concrete sectors. In the case of cement,
the decline was significantly lower, because less

cement was imported.

Most Group companies in eastern and southeastern
Europe increased their deliveries of cement and in
many places, volumes of aggregates rose as well.
Sales of ready-mix concrete were lifted everywhere.
In the cement segment, the Group companies in
Romania and Bulgaria reported the largest percent-
age volume increases, while Russia and Azerbaijan
also saw a substantial increase. Domestic shipments
developed well in Croatia. In Hungary, sales were
dampened by the government’s cost-cutting drive
and sustained strong import pressure, whereas the
Czech Republic saw a gratifying rise in sales in all

segments,

Integration of Foster Yeoman strengthens

aggregates business

Consolidated aggregates volumes in Group region
Europe increased by a marked 14 percent to 108.8 mil-
lion tonnes. This encouraging development was
mainly due to the fact that this was the first full-year
consolidation of Foster Yeoman, which has attractive
guarries and asphalt operations and was taken over
by Aggregate Industries UK in September 2006,

Even after factoring out this acquisition, Aggregate
Industries UK recorded higher sales of aggregates
and ready-mix concrete. The increase in production
capacity utilization was due to major deliveries

for the expansion of Heathrow Airport and rising
demand for crushed stone in the south of England.
Sales of ready-mix concrete benefited from brisk
construction activity in the Greater Lendon area.
Asphalt volumes declined slightly as a result of
market conditions.

Sales of ready-mix concrete of Holcim France Benelux
especially benefited from the construction of new
wind farms and a new leisure park in Picardy. Halcim
Germany alse sotd more ready-mix cencrete and

the Group companies in eastern and southeastern
Europe posted significant volume increases in this
sector. This almost compensated for the lower sales
of ready-mix concrete in Spain and Switzerland.

On balance, consolidated sales of ready-mix concrete
in Group region Europe declined by 1 percent to

19.8 million cubic meters.

Holcim Trading achieved new record volumes

Despite massive increases in freight rates and more
difficult market conditions, Madrid-based Holcim
Trading further expanded its leading global position
in the international trading of cement, clinker and
cementitious materials. At 25 million tonnes (2006:
22.8), the volume traded with Group companies and
third parties rose to a new record. Higher energy
costs led to a limited volume of petcoke available on
the market, but due to strategic partnerships with
oil refineries and resellers, Holcim Trading was still
able to provide Group companies with a steady supply

of this important fuel.

Higher operating result

Almost all Group companies improved their financial
results. The key factors were higher aperating
efficiency, overall stable sales development and the

predominantly positive price environment.

Worthy of particular mention are the good results
achieved by Holcim France Benelux and Aggregate
Industries UK. Due to rising cement prices and
increasing export volumes, Holcim Germany was also
able to increase its operating performance. The Group
companies in eastern and southeastern Europe posted
substantially better results, led by Holcim Romania
and Holcim Bulgaria, In Russia and Azerbaijan, the
Graup companies achieved a remarkable increase in

operating profit,

Operating EBITDA rose by 22 percent to CHF 2,399mil-
lion in Group region Europe, while internal operating

EBITDA growth was 11.5 percent.



Targeted capacity expansion
In Group region Europe, efforts continued to cut
costs and boost efficiency. The production base is

being systematically aligned to future market needs.

Aggregate Industries UK took over full ownership of
Halsvik Aggregates, which runs an important quarry
operation on the Norwegian coast. This move will
enable Aggregate Industries UK to strengthen its
leading position in exports of aggregates to major
centers of consumption along the North Sea and
Baitic coasts. Close logistics with the Scottish quarry
Glensanda also facilitates further optimization of
supplies to the markets of northern Europe. Holcim
France Benelux has started construction work on the
strategically important cement grinding station in
Rouen (France). The plant has also a loading facility
on the River Seine and will assure low-cost supplies

for the Greater Paris area during the course of 2009.

Following extensive expansion of capacity, additional
production volumes will be in place during the
current year at Bulgarian cement plant Beli lzvor,
and 2008 will see the commissioning of Romania’s
largest kiln line in Campulung. Holcim Serbia is
planning a modernization of cement capacity at the
Novi Popovac site. Work on a project designed to
double cutput to 2.1 million tonnes of cement per
year is also in full swing at the Shurovo plant in Russia,
which supplies cement for the Greater Moscow area.
In addition, Holcim has opened and acquired a number
of ready-mix concrete and aggregates facilities in

eastern and southeastern Europe.

Rising use of alternative fuels

The majority of Group companies have stepped up
the use of alternative fuels in clinker production, thus
achieving improvements in terms of both operating
costs and the environmental impact.

With the expansion of cement production at the
plant sites in Eclépens and Siggenthal, Holcim
Switzerland has upgraded its processing capacity

for alternative fuels. Holcim Germany has increased
its use of shredded domestic and commercial waste
such as cardboard, textiles and plastics. Modified kiln
feeding facilities and additional processing platforms

for alternative fuels also allowed an increased use of

solid or liquid recyclable materials at other Group
sites. In many places, activities for the sustainable
and efficient recycling of wasie materials were
anchored in the market under the new Geocycle
brand.

Composite cements expand range

As part of the drive to broaden their product offer-
ings, many Group companies have expanded their
range of composite cements. Holcim France Benelux
taunched such new cements, and Holcim Germany
also took advantage of the expansion of processing
capacity for granulated blast furnace slag to optimize
its range with the introduction of the two new
brands Holcim Universal for the do-it-yourself market
and Holcim Aqua &4 — a special binder for port instal-

lations.

The Group comparnies generally made greater use of
granulated blast furnace slag, fly ash and other alter-
native raw materials in cement production. At the
Dotternhausen site in southern Germany, grinding
capacity for oil shale-based composite cements was
increased. Garadagh Cement has successfully com-
pleted industrial-scale testing of the use of high-
quality limestone as an additive and Holcim Hungary
has increased the proportion of Pozzolan in its
cement. The use of mineral components allows a
reduction in the clinker factor in these types of
cement and a decrease in the quantity of CO2 emit-

ted per tanne of cement.

Positive outlook for Europe

Holcim is assuming that the European economy will
perform positively overall in 2008. The continuing
buoyant construction activity in eastern and south-
eastern Europe as well as in Russia and Azerbaijan
should compensate for the slight decline in demand
in some western European countries. For Group
region Europe as a whele, Holcim is expecting stable

sales figures and better operating margins.
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Buyout of minority shareholders

in Canada opens new potential

2007 sees economic data weaken

The US economy achieved growth of over 2 percent in
2007, with the second half seeing a slowdown in the
economy due to the credit crisis. Canada saw a solid
development overall. With a rise of around 3 percent,
GDP growth matched the previous year's level.

Construction activity hit by decline in house building

In the US, sales of new single-family homes slumped
to a twelve-year low and the supply overhang
increased markedly, prompting a significantly weaker
house building activity. However, this was somewhat
offset by the higher order volume resulting from

the government's multiannual infrastructure plan.
Growth was less pronounced in commercial and
industrial construction activity. On balance, though,
US investment in construction was down on the
previous year, and cement consumption decreased by
6.8 percent to 118 million tonnes. Imports of clinker
and cement were considerably reduced, declining

by over 30 percent, although at just under 25 million

tonnes imports still reached a respectabie level,

In Canada, the canstruction sector gained momentum
in Ontario and Quebec in the second half of the year
- the markets of relevance tc Holcim. Investment
focused on expansion of transport and utility infra-
structure and on the construction of schools and
hospitals. The revival in demand in the residential
construction sector was driven mainly by apartment
houses, while construction activity in the single-
family homes segment made little headway. Canadian
cement consumption increased by 2 percent to

9.8 million tonnes.

Record production in North America

Business conditions for the Group companies were
adversely affected by a lack of investment in the
residential construction sector and by unfavorable
weather conditions for construction operations in

some regions.

Sales volumes of Holcim US suffered major setbacks
in the Mid-West and in the catchment areas of the
Mississippi and Missouri Rivers. As a result, lower-
margin cement imports virtually ceased. Sales in the
southwest of the country followed a positive trend.
Due to the high availability of US production facili-
ties, Holeim WS saw cement production reach record
volumes. The main plants which contributed to this

were Holly Hill, Clarksville and Dundee.

St. Lawrence Cement's Canadian cement sales
remained at a high level. In the province of Quebec,
deliveries increased in almost all demand segments
in the second half of the year, Higher volumes of
building materials were generated in particular by
major commercial construction projects such as the
Bell Towers in Montreal and cement-intensive con-

struction phases in a number of dam building and

Consolidated key figures North America 2007 2006 1%
Production capacity cement in million t 223 22.1 +0.9
Cement and grinding plants 19 20
Aggregates plants 113 113
Ready-mix concrete plants l . 178 166

Asphalt plants ) 55 53 N
Sales of cement in million t 6.4 . 177 73
Sales of mineral components in million t 2.3 2.4 -4.2
Sales of aggregates in million t 56.9 65.1 -12.6
Sales of ready-mix concrete in million m’ 7.3 7.0 +4.3
Sales of asphalt in million t 8.0 9.3 -14.0
Net sales in million CHF 5365 5,520 -2.8
Operating EBITDA in million CHF 999 1,033 -3.3
Operating EBITDA marginin % 18.6 18.7

Personnel 11,190 11,268 -0.7



power plant projects. In the northeastern US - this
Group company’s second major sales area — delivery
votumes decreased in line with the general market

development.

Consolidated cement sales in North America

decreased by 7.3 percent to 16.4 million tonnes.

Acquisitions support ready-mix concrete business
Aggregate Industries US did not escape the impact

of the more difficult market conditions and recorded
falls in volumes of aggregates in all market regions.
Ready-mix concrete sales were particularly affected
by the sharp fall in volumes in the Mid-West and only
achieved moderate growth due to new consolida-
tions. Worthy of particular mention is the first-time
full-year inclusion of Meyer Material's sales of aggre-
gates and ready-mix concrete. The company’s sales
territory covers Chicago and part of the State of
Wisconsin. In the asphalt business, market trends
differed from region to region. Sales were down in
the northwest and due to the disposal of two asphalt
plants also in the southwest of the country. However,
Aggregate Industries US was able to make gains in

the Central and Mid-Atlantic regions.

in Canada, St. Lawrence Cement recorded an increase
in sales of aggregates and ready-mix concrete due

to deliveries to major infrastructure projects. One
example is the expansion of Queen Elizabeth Way in
St. Catherines in Ontario, which involves widening an
important transport axis to six lanes and the recon-
struction of seven bridges. In Taronto, work began

on a further stage in the expansion of Pearson Inter-
national Airport. 5t. Lawrence Cement was awarded
the tender for significant deliveries of ready-mix

concrete.

In the aggregates segment, the increase in sales

in Canada and the first full-year consolidation of

the volumes of Meyer Material were not sufficient

to compensate for the falloff in demand in the US.
The result was a decline by 12.6 percent to 56.9 million
tonnes. By contrast, due to acquisitions, consolidated
sales of ready-mix concrete rose by 4.3 percent to

7.3 miliion cubic meters.

Holcim buys out minority interests

in 5t. Lawrence Cement

In May 2007, Holcim made an offer to the minority
shareholders of St. Lawrence Cement. The transac-
tion, which was unanimously endorsed by the Board
of Directors of this Group company, was successfully
completed with the acquisition of all cutstanding
stocks and on August 13, the share was delisted from
the Toronto Stock Exchange.

With a view to optimizing the Group's long-term
positioning in the North American market,

Holcim decided that from the beginning of 2008

St. Lawrence Cement would concentrate on the
Canadian market while its activities in the north-
eastern US would be integrated into Holcim US.
Holcim is convinced that this restructuring measure
will lead to an improvement in customer relations

and market development, and generate cost savings.

Stable earnings in North America

Due to productivity gains, high plant capacity utiliza-
tion and good market prices, Holcim US succeeded

in greatly limiting the impact of a decline in demand

and a rise in energy costs.

St. Lawrence Cement too, almost matched its good
previous-year’s results, benefiting from better terms
of sale and from an increase in high-margin construc-
tion services. However, its financial performance was
affected by one-off restructuring costs in connection
with the reorganization of cross-border marketing
between the Canadian Group company and Holcim
Us.

Aggregate Industries US reported weaker results, but
good prices, cost-cutting programs and the tempaorary
mothballing of plant capacity meant that the decline
in operating EBITDA was considerably less than the

reduction in volumes.

In Group region North America, consolidated operating
EBITDA declined by only 3.3 percent to CHF ggg million
despite the weak US dollar. Internal operating EBITDA

growth was slightly negative at —1.9 percent.




New cement plant taking shape

During the period under review, Holcim US recorded
further milestones in the construction of the new
cement plant at Ste. Genevieve on the Mississippi.
All silo facilities have been erected, as has the pre-
heater tower. As with all Holcim US operations, top
priority is given to occupational health and safety.
Due to a comprehensive system of safety measures,

to date there have been no accidents to speak of.

With an annual capacity of 4 million tonnes of
cement, the plant, which is scheduled to come on
stream in the second half of 2004, will enable Holcim
Us further to expand its leading market position
along the entire Mississippi-Missouri River system

up to the Great Lakes.

Closer customer focus

St. Lawrence Cement gained greater customer prox-
imity in its core markets and took over several ready-
mix concrete plants and a sand pit in the Greater
Montreal area. Aggregate Industries US also strength-
ened its market presence with targeted acquisitions,
including the purchase of several ready-mix congrete
plants in South Carglina which give it a foothold in an

attractive sales area.

Expanded production base for composite cements

Also the North American Group companies complied
with their responsibilities toward the environment,
the main focus being on increased use of alternative

fuels and raw materials.

In 2007, virtually all plant locations of Holcim US and
St. Lawrence Cement increased their capacity to
utilize alternative energy sources. Holcim US's local
recycling company expanded its range of services and
introduced an integrated system for collecting old
tires in Oklahoma. This sets new standards for the
environmentally friendly disposal of combustible
waste materials and guarantees supplies of such
alternative energy sources for the Midlothian and
Ada plants. There was also an increase in the use of
petcoke in the combustion process. Encouraged by
this positive experience, the authorities gave several
sites in the US and Canada the go-ahead to expand

their range of alternative energy sources,

In a pilot project, Aggregate Industries US converted
53 ready-mix trucks to run on bio fuel consisting

mainly of animal fats and recycled cocking oil.

To meet the growing demand for composite cements,
St. Lawrence Cement commissioned an additionat
grinding facility at the Canadian plant in Mississauga,
more than doubling its production capacity for
GranCem® products based on granulated blast
furnace slag. Holcim US also increased its use of
alternative raw materials. These measures will help
achieve the objective of further reducing the clinker
factor in cement and cutting CO2 emissions per

tonne of cement.

In 2007 5t. Lawrence Cement completed its certifica-
tion of all Demix Béton production plants to 1SO
14001. Aggregate Industries US will also have all sites
certified over the coming months; this process has
already been successfully implemented at six ready-
mix concrete plants of Meyer Material.

Real estate market affecting economic trend

In the US, the tight situation in the real estate market
will affect conditions in the construction sector in
2008, Holcim is expecting positive stimuli from
infrastructure projects. In Canada, the cutlook for
the construction sector remains sound and the
market development should be stable in the two key
provinces of Ontario and Quebec. All North American
Group companies will continue with their cost-cutting
and efficiency-enhancement programs. Overall,
Holcim expects this Group region to generate solid
results.
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Production capacity systematically

geared to future market growth

Good business conditions

2007 was a successful year for Latin America in eco-
nomic terms. Robust domestic demand in particular
led to brisk business activity. In several countries, the
export industry benefited from continuing high world
market prices for oil and other mineral commodities
and from stronger demand for agricultural products.

This led to a sharp rise in export revenues,

The highest increase rates were achieved in Argentina,
where a presidential election was held last year, and
in Colombia, followed by Panama, Costa Rica, Chile
and Venezuela. Brazil also saw a marked acceleration
in economic activity compared to the previous year.
The Mexican economy likewise grew by more than

3 percent.

Rising demand for construction materials

The construction sector benefited from this favorable
situation, with cement consumption increasing in

all markets supplied by Holcim apart from El Salvador

and Nicaragua.

In Mexico, growth in construction activity decreased
as expected, following the previous year’s election-
related surge. Stimuli supporting the good capacity
utilization in the building industry came from higher
public sector investment in road building and energy
supply systems. However, more funds were also made
available for social housing. Private house building
was boosted by lower interest rates, generally
improved access to credit and a further sharp rise

in remittances from Mexicans living abroad.

In Central America and the Caribbean, tourism projects,

the expansion of port facilities and improvements in
transport infrastructure led to higher cement volumes,
Asharp rise in consumption was recorded in Colombia
due to private and commercial construction projects.
In Ecuador, demand for building materials once again
exceeded the previous year's level. The revival in

demand in Venezuela is mainly explained by social

housing construction and continuing work on large-
scale infrastructure projects. Other important
factors included the expansion of the metro systems
in Valencia and Caracas and the construction and

refurbishment of sports stadiums.

In Brazil, the construction sector steadily gained
momentum during the course of the year and there
was a massive increase in cement consumption.
Growth was driven by private and commercial con-
struction activity. Various infrastructure projects gen-
erated additional stimuli. The Chilean construction
sector benefited from road building, The construction
of apartments, office buildings and service centers
also provided for rising supply of building materials.
In Argentina, the positive state of the construction
sector was boosted by public sector contracts, par-
ticularly for road building. Demand for construction
services also remained high in the commercial and

agricultural sectors.

Cement sales exceed previous year's level

Consolidated deliveries of cement rose by 2.7 percent
to 26.6 million tonnes, while sales of aggregates
decreased by 1.6 percent to 12.5 million tonnes due
to delays in road building projects in Quito and Rio
de Janeiro. Volumes of ready-mix concrete grew by

5 percent to 10.6 million cubic meters,

Consoclidated key figures Latin America 2007 2006 %
Production capacity cement in million t 34.0 35.3 ~3.7
Eeﬁn%gnd ériﬁdiﬁg pién?g-” . 29 27 o
Aggregates plants 25 27
éeady-mix concrete pIantsﬁ . 233 229 ]
Sales of cement in miliion t 266 259 427
Sales of aggregates in million t 125 12.7 -16
Sales of ready-mix concrete iﬁ million m? 10.6 101 +5.0
Netsales in million CHE 4010 3675 491
Opé!;t;ﬁé EBI-TDA in m-illi—oa EH_F 1,256 1,244 7 +1.0
bpe!ating-Eél_]'bA ;a;gin in % - ‘ 3‘_4.3 339 7

' 13409 12234 496

Personnel




In Mexico, despite new production capacity commis-
sioned by competitors, Holcim Apasco sold virtually

the same amount of cement as during the strong

previous year. Exports also reached a substantial level.

The increase in deliveries of ready-mix concrete is
attributable to the expansion of energy supply infra-
structure and local public transport services as well
as to investments in tourist facilities on the Gulf of
Mexico.

More cement was sold by the Group companies in
Central America and the Caribbean. There was a
substantial increase in valumes in Costa Rica, where
the attractive investment climate benefited from the
ratification of the free trade agreement with the US.
Among the customers supplied by the Panama Group
company are construction sites on the Pan-American
Highway and projecis for the construction of wind
farms and hydroelectric power plants. Business was
also encouraging for the associated companies, with
sales of cement totaling 3.2 million tonnes, With the
opening of an additional cement terminal in the
Netherlands Antilles, Holeim has strengthened its

regional distribution network.

fn South America, increasing demand for building
materials in Colombia and Ecuador led to higher
cement and ready-mix concrete volumes for both
Group companies. Holcim Venezuela also increased
cement deliveries and decided to stop exports of
clinker and cement in response to strong domestic
demand. Production of aggregates had to be tem-
porarily curtailed, which also limited growth in
volumes of ready-mix concrete. Holcim Brazil sold
sighificantly more cement and ready-mix concrete.
For the first time in around two years, cement prices
rose slightly, but the price increases starting in the
second half of the year still did not reach satisfactory
levels. Cemento Polpaico in Chile posted higher sales
of cement due to the perceptible market recovery

in the secend half of the year. In Argentina toco,
Minetti once again reported strong growth; in addition,
ready-mix concrete deliveries rose markedly supported

by acquisitions.

Solid operating result

The operating EBITDA of Group region Latin America
rose by 4.7 percent in local currency terms and in
Swiss franc showed a slight increase by 1 percent to
CHF 1,266 million. Internal operating EBITDA growth
reached 4.7 percent.

At Holcim Apasco, a sharp rise in electricity and
energy costs was partially offset by an increase in the
use of alternative fuels. The company achieved better

ready-mix concrete prices.

Holcim Costa Rica as well as the companies in
Central America and the Caribbean posted higher
revenues.

In Colombia, the strong increase in sales across all
segments led to a substantial rise in operating results
and Holcim Ecuador’s contribution to results exceeded
the previous year’s record. Performance of Holcim
Brazil was supported by higher delivery volumes and
again better prices in the second half of the year.
Despite extensive operational cost-cutting measures,
Minetti's operating result was affected by a further
sharp rise in raw material and energy prices. Cemento
Polpaico posted a good financial result, but failed to
match the previous year's excellent level.

New cement plant in Mexico

Group region Latin America once again invested
substantial funds in plant efficiency and streamlining
costs. Production capacity is being systematically
geared to future market growth.

In Mexico, decision has be taken to build a new
cement plant with an annual capacity of 1.6 million
tonnes of cement near Hermosillo in the northwest
of the country. From 2010, the new plant will optimal-
ly complement the existing production network in
Mexico and will position Holcim Apasco even better

in this market region,



In Central America, Group company Cemento de

El Salvador will substantially expand clinker capacity
at the Maya plant until 20049. To keep up with growth
in demand, grinding capacity will be considerably

expanded in Panama.

In response to rising demand, Holcim Brazil resumed
production at the former Serocaba grinding plant
near S3o Paulo. As part of a multiannual investment
program, the Group company is also increasing
capacity at the Pedro Leopoldo and Barroso plants.
Furthermore, project planning work has been intensi-
fied for the construction of additional production
facilities. At the Malagueiio site in Argentina, a kiln
line shut down during the economic crisis is under-

going extensive modernization work.

Growing use of alternative fuels

One focus of investment activity was the setting-up
of additional storage and manufacturing capacity
for the use of alternative energy sources and raw

materials.

Several Group companies modified their kiln firing
systems in 2007. Holcim Venezuela has eco-friendly
processes in place to use higher volumes of old tires.
In Colombia and Ecuador too, Holcim is utilizing more
solid and liquid recyclable materials in combustion.
Cemento Polpaico signed a multianaual purchase
agreement for petcoke with the national oil company.
In Argentina, the commissioning of a new grinding
station for petcoke will enable Minetti to substantial-

ly reduce energy costs.

Numerous Group companies intensified their partner-
ships with GTZ, the German Technical Cooperation.
Holcim Costa Rica prepared a nationwide quantita-
tive inventory of household and commercial waste,
In cooperation with GTZ, the company is examining
the possibility of using such materials in cement
kilns. Cemento de El Salvador actively cooperated

in the preparation of new legislation to improve

emissions safeguards.

The use of alternative raw materials was stepped up.
Holcim Apasco made increasing use of pozzolans in
cement grinding operations at the Acapulco and

Macuspana sites. In Brazil, the proportion of sales of

composite cements based on granulated blast furnace
slag increased sharply. Sales of these cements, which
contain less clinker and therefore produce lower CO2
emissions, also increased significantly in Nicaragua,

Venezuela, Argentina and Chile.

All companies systematically continued working on
projects to reduce emissions. Dust filter systems were
replaced by state-of-the-art units as planned. Holcim
Apasco invested in improving noise protection at

several plant sites.

Positive earnings outlook in Latin America

Domestic demand for cement in the individual
countries of Latin America is expected to remain
attractive. The construction sector should derive
stimuli from both residential building and infra-
structural expansion. Holcim is expecting a slight
acceleration in growth in Mexico and the construction
sector should continue to revive in Central America.
We also anticipate further economic expansion

in South America and expect the upturn in Brazil in
particular to continue. Holcim is once again looking
to Group region Latin America to attain solid sales

volumes and higher operating results.
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High capacity utilization rates

and impressive results

Robust economic conditions

Group region Africa Middle East enjoyed once

again favorable economic conditions. Business activity
in the individual Group countries was strongly

influenced by local factors.

Moroceco and Egypt benefited from robust demestic
demand and experienced dynamic growth. Lebanon
held its own in an environment that remained
difficult. There was a revival in economic activity on
the West African coast and economic conditions in
the Indian Ocean region picked up, particularly in
Madagascar. South Africa remained on track for solid
growth,

significantly higher cement demand
In many places, the construction sector was one of

the pillars of economic develapment.

In Morocco, construction of social housing in densely
populated major urban centers led to rising cement
consumption, At present, several tens of thousands
of homes are under construction in the three new
satellite cities of Tamesna, Tamensourt and ibn
Batouta. In addition, the expansion of the road and
rail network and the construction of tourist facilities
on the Atlantic coast are supporting demand for

building materials.

In Egypt, higher purchasing power stimulated both
private house building and commercial and industrial
construction projects. More cement was also required
for major road projects and the country’s industrial
expansion, particularly in the natural gas processing

sector.

In Lebanon, progress on recanstruction was sluggish

and construction activity remained low.

In South Africa, the construction sector henefited
from major pent-up demand in all sectors of the
ecenomy.

Volume increases in all markets
The good underlying economic mood had a more
than positive impact on the construction sector and

all Group companies increased their sales of cement.

Holcim Morocco took advantage of the robust state
of the domestic market. Sales of aggregates were
almost on a par with previous year’s high level and
processing capacity was very well utilized. In the case
of ready-mix concrete, the port expansion in Tangier
and increased vertical integration in Rabat and

Casablanca led to higher delivery volumes,

Thanks to brisk construction activity in the Greater
Cairo area, Egyptian Cement posted a new record for
sales of cement. Despite the export levy in place since
spring 2007, cement and clinker exports reached

impressive levels,

Holcim Lebanon benefited from booming demand
for cement in adjoining neighboring countries.
Clinker exports were supported by the expansion of

the grinding station in northern Cyprus.

Consolidated key figures Africa Middle East' 2007 2006 +%
Production capacity cement in million t 13.9 17.7 -21.5
Cement and grinding plants L 13 17
Aggregatés plants , ‘ 3 21

R_ea-;i_y-mi-x concrete pla-nt_s_ ) ' 20 56 )
Sales of cement in mifliont Co1as 153 52
Sales of miﬁer—ai-c—c;"u;anents_ir; million t 0.2 0.8 ) _——T—SF
Sales of aggrég;fg; in million‘? 7 o | 57 11.2 491
gales of re—a_d)_(?m};c_o_ncrete in millionm? 17 25 -320
Netsalesinmilion CHF 1831 2086  -122
Operating EBITDA in miltion CHF 653 692  -56
Operating EBITDA marginin % 35.7 33.2

Personnel ' 2795 5218  -464

' Since June 5, 2007, excluding Holcim South Africa.



The Group companies in the Indian Ocean area
enjoyed dynamic sales. Road and housing construc-
tion in La Réunion resulted in higher sales of cement
and ready-mix concrete. The construction of resort
complexes in Mauritius and an improvement of

the Madagascan market boosted sales of building

materials for the local Group companies.

Helcim South Africa increased its sales significantly
across all segments.

Sale of majority stake in Holcim South Africa

In 2007, the Group sold the majority of its sharehold-
ing in Holcim South Africa under a Black Economic
Empowerment (BEE)} transaction. This enables

the company to maintain its position as a leading
supplier of construction materials. Holcim retains

a 15 percent stake in the company, now renamed
AfriSarn, and will continue to provide technical

support.

Since june g, 2007, the South African company is no
longer consolidated at the Holcim Group level. As a
result, cement sales in Group region Africa Middle
East declined by 5.2 percent to 14.5 million tonnes.
For the same reason, deliveries of aggregates also
fell by 49.1 percent to 5.7 million tonnes, and sales
of ready-mix concrete dropped by 32 percent to

1.7 million cubic meters.

However, on a like-for-like basis, cement sales rose
by 13.7 percent, aggregates volumes by 0.g percent

and ready-mix concrete by 12 percent.

Good performance

All Group companies achieved better financial
results. Due to the deconsolidation of Holcim South
Africa, the operating EBITDA of Group region Africa
Middle East declined by 5.6 percent to CHF 653 million
compared with the previous year,

Like-for-like, the Group reported a remarkable internal
operating EBITDA growth of 25.1 percent. This
confirms the robust state of the market and the good

market positioning of the Group companies.

Due to rising sales prices and larger delivery volumes,
Egyptian Cement markedly improved its financial
performance. Holcim Morocco also recorded a signifi-
cantly higher result as did Holcim Lebanon. The
results of the West African group of countries were
substantially better than the previous year, as were

those of Holcim Qutre-Mer,

Targeted capacity expansion

In July 2007, Holcim Morocco began clinker production
at the Settat plant. The new facility has an annual
capacity of 1.7 million tonnes of cement and
supplies the important market area of Casablanca.
The increase in capacity marks the end of a program
spanning several years to modernize and expand the
industrial base in Morocco. In conjunction with the
earlier expanded Qujda and Fez facilities, the new
cement plant will enable the company to optimally
meet Morocco’s growing demand.

In Abu Dhabi, Holcim Trading, in a joint venture with
lacal partners, will soon commission a cement grind-
ing station with an annual capacity of over 2 million
tonnes. The company is well positioned in the attrac-
tive building materials market of the United Arab

Emirates.



Systematic pursuit of sustainable development

The Group companies have taken various measures to
increase their environmental efficiency. Their efforts
have been focused on the increased use of alternative
fuels and raw materials and on targeted projects to

cut emissions.

Holcim Morocco has significantly increased the use
of old tires as alternative fuel at the Ras El Ma and
Oujda plants and during the current financial year,
additional processing capacity for liquid recyclable
materials will be available near Casablanca. Numer-
ous industrial partnerships have been concluded,
which are intended to guarantee adequate security of
supplies. Holcim Outre-Mer and Holcim Lebanon are
making increasing use of waste oil in the combustion

process.

The clinker factor in cement has also been reduced
in this Group region. Production of composite fly
ash-based cements is starting in La Réunion and
the Moraccan plants are also increasingly using this
mineral camponent. Pozzolans are as well being
added in cement production at both the Oujda and
the Fez plants. The majority of Group companies
invested in more efficient filter systems and noise
absorption devices. Egyptian Cement is now able to

recycle all the clinker dust it produces.

Favorable growth opportunities

Economic developments in Group region Africa
Middle East are likely to be favorable in 2008.

We anticipate robust growth in Morocco. A more
stable situation should also lead to better sales
opportunities for the Group companies in Lebanon
and West Africa. In the Indian Ocean, the outlook
remains positive. After factoring out changes in the
scope of consolidation, we should see a renewed

increase in delivery velumes and operating results,
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Results significantly higher

and capacity selectively expanded

Economy on track for expansion

Group region Asia Pacific showed an impressive

pace of growth during the year under review. India
and Vietnam experienced very dynamic developments
and the upturn also continued in Sri Lanka, Singapore
and the Philippines. After getting off to a subdued
start, the Indonesian economy recovered across a
broad front. In Thailand, business activity throughout
the country was depressed by the political situation,
although production output was still up on the
previous year. Australia and New Zealand recorded
respectable growth rates amid sustained robust

domestic and export demand.

Robust demand for building materials

Construction activity was strong and cement con-
sumption rose in virtually all markets. Housing
shortages in major cities and infrastructure expansion
linked to population growth ensured high construction
volumes. Particularly in India, Bangladesh, Vietnam,
the Philippines and Indonesia, the huge demand

for renewal and major pent-up demand led to better

capacity utilization in the construction sector.

Many large-scale projects are under way in this region
— for example the construction of the Mukterpur
bridge in Bangladesh, which will provide a better tink
between the capital and the interior. In Vietnam, the
country’s accession to the World Trade Organization
led to a marked increase in foreign investment. The
construction of hotels and industrial complexes and
the modernization of water supply systems in many

regional centers stimulated construction activity.

Higher delivery volumes
Cement sales in Group region Asia Pacific rose by
18 percent to 64.9 million tonnes. This volume growth

was attributable to the first full-year consolidation of

the deliveries made by the two Indian Group companies.

With the exception of Holcim Malaysia — where
cement sales decreased because of the severe mon-

soon —all Group companies recorded higher sales.

Ambuja Cements and ACC increased their deliveries
markedly. Production was running at full capacity,
assuring supplies to the market nationwide despite
signs of shortages. The Group companies in Sri Lanka
and Bangladesh also achieved larger sales volumes.
Holcim Vietnam too, substantially increased its
cement output. Only in Thailand, domestic shipments
of cement declined, but due to rising clinker and
cement exports Siam City Cement nonetheless

achieved higher sales.

Holcim recorded a sharp volume increase in Indonesia
and the Philippines. Both Group companies benefited
from the significant improvement in orders in the
residential and commercial construction sectors.
There were also more funds available for infrastruc-
ture projects. Indonesia witnessed a rise in investment
in the expansion of oil refineries and liquid gas plants.
In the Philippines, strong demand for extra office
space to accommodate the emerging outsourcing
industry led to higher delivery volumes. Both Group

companies also exported significant quantities.

Consolidated key figures Asia Pacific 2007 2006 +%
Production capacity cement in million t 78.7 75.8 +3.8
Cementvarr;&igrinding plants o - 49 43 -
Aggregates-;;l-ants i 8 5 o
Ready-mix t_:o—ncrete plants - 115 101 )

Sales of cement in million t 649 550  +180
Sales of minéral components in million t | 0.6 0.6 -
Sales of aggrégates in million t 4.0 3.2 +25.0
Sales of -r_e;(;mi;c-or_lcrete in millio;'l_m’_ ) 5.8 46  +26.0
Netsalesinmilion CHF 6292 4745 4326
6pératiggig!;ITrBA%n million CHE 1,844 1,366 4350
Operating EBITDA marginin% 293 288 '
Personnel C 38133 37212 428



Cement Australia saw a rise in cement volumes par-
ticularly in Queensland. New office buildings, shopping
centers and warehouses as well as expansion projects
in the mining and infrastructure sectors largely
compensated for the decline in sales in the residential
construction sector. In New Zealand, clinker production
at the Westport plant reached a historic peak helping
to meet the increased demand due to higher invest-

ment in healthcare and education.

Consolidated sales of aggregates increased by 25 per-
cent to 4 million tonnes. The marked rise is mainly
attributable to new aggregates plants in Thailand

and the solid market development in Indenesia. Sales
of ready-mix concrete increased by 26.1 percent to

5.8 million cubic meters, reflecting the stronger market
presence in Singapore and other important regional
metropolises. Ready-mix concrete volumes improved
in Bangkok, particularly along the new sky train lines.

Marked improvement in results

Consolidated operating EBITDA increased by 35 percent
to CHF 1,844 million, while internal operating EBITDA
growth was 16.5 percent. Virtually all Group companies
showed a better performance. The marked rise in
operating results is mainly attributable to the first-
time full-year consolidation of the two Indian Group

companies.

Holcim Philippines and Holcim Indonesia substantially
increased their contributions to the regional result.
Both Group companies benefited from rising domestic
demand and a solid price environment. Impressive
improvements in results were achieved by Holcim
Vietnam. Higher export revenues and efficiency gains
only partially enabled Siam City Cement to compen-
sate for lower domestic sales and higher production

costs.

In New Zealand, good market conditions led to an
improvement in operating results and Cement
Australia once again exceeded the previous year's

good performance.

Successful capacity expansion in India
In line with forecast increases in consumption, cement
capacity in India is to be substantially expanded,

paving the way for future growth.

During the year under review, total annual production
capacity in India rose to around 43 millien tonnes of
cement and is set to grow to as much as so million

tonnes by the end of 2010.

Ambuja Cements commissioned three new grinding
stations: one in West Bengal, one at the Roorkee site
near Delhi and one in Surat in the federal state of
Gujarat. This considerably increases production capac-
ity in these important sales regions. In Rajasthan, the
expansion of clinker production at the Rabriyawas
plant was successfully compteted. The construction of
twa new kiln lines, including the corresponding clinker
grinding stations, has also progressed according to
plan in the federal states of Chhattisgarh and

Himachal Pradesh.

ACC increased clinker production at the plant sites in
Kymore, Tikaria, Sindri, Wadi and Lakheri, in some cases
substantially. At the beginning of 2009, production
output will also be higher at the Bargarh site in the
federal state of Orissa. At the end of next year, the
expanded clinker capacity of the new Wadi plant will
be available in the federal state of Karnataka, as will
two new grinding stations in Bangalore and Bellary,
Electricity supply was also put on a new footing; six
wind turbines with a capacity of g megawatt were
commissioned in a wind energy farm close to the
plant site in Madukkarai in the federal state of Tamil
Nadu.

The Group is also working on expansion projects in
Bangladesh, Vietnam, Indonesia, Australia and New

Zealand.



Systematic market focus
In Group region Asia Pacific, the process of vertical
integration was systematically continued in the fast-

growing metropolises.

ACC now has around thirty ready-mix concrete plants
in a number of Indian urban centers. Also in Vietnam
and indonesia, the Group companies have invested in
ready-mix cancrete operations. Siam City Cement took
over strategically important quarry reserves and sand

processing facilities.

With the acquisition of a 55 percent stake in Jurong
Cement Limited in Singapore, Holcim has taken a
major step toward expansion in this important mar-
ket region. The new Group company is mainly active in
the ready-mix concrete sector, but also sells bagged
cement, special mortars and slag. This acquisition

strengthens Holcim'’s position in a fast-growing market.

Holcim strengthens commitment in Asia

During the period under review, Holcim substantially
increased its shareholding in Ambuja Cements and
ACC through additional purchases. As of December 31,
2007, Holcim holds 46 percent of the share capital
{voting rights) of Ambuja Cements and 43 percent of
ACC.

Asian Geocycle network growing

The Group companies have taken a major step for-
ward in the use of alternative fuels and raw materials.
In Geocycle's Asian network, eight local recycling com-
panies already offer standard waste disposal services.
The focus is on individual customer solutions for
major national and regional companies to ensure effi-
cient and environmentally friendly recycling of waste
materials. In addition, various Group companies have
also increased storage and processing capacity for
alternative raw materials and fuels and several
approval procedures are pending to allow such waste
materials to be used in the production process.

The Westport plant in New Zealand currently disposes
of nearly half of all the country’s waste oil, thereby

significantly reducing its coal consumption.

The expansion of grinding capacity in India enabled a
rise in the use of fly ash, leading to marked increases
in production output. After successful tests, Holcim
Indonesia secured long-term supply contracts for fly
ash and increased the use of pozzolan in cement pro-
duction. Cement Australia sold significantly more
composite cements based on granulated blast furnace
slag. In addition, the use of raw materials in clinker
production was optimized by adding waste materials
from the aluminum industry. The use of recycled
copper slag instead of natural sand allowed Holcim
Singapore to conserve resources in the production of

concrete.

Unbroken opportunities for growth

2008 can be expected to see further solid growth.
Cemand for building materials should develop
positively for the most part. Holcim is anticipating
the strongest growth rates in India, Vietnam and
Indonesia. In Thailand, Holcim is assuming a stable
market development. Overall, cement deliveries
should increase in this Group region, as should
volumes of ready-mix concrete, The operating results

are also expected to improve.
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Corporate Governance

Holcim has high standards when it comes to effective

corporate governance, so ensuring responsible and

transparent company leadership and management geared

to long-term success. This is the only way we can meet

all the demands of our various stakeholder groups,

whether shareholders, customers, employees or the local

communities we operate in.

Managing responsibly

Corporate governance puts the focus not onty on
business risks and the company’s reputation, but also
on corporate social responsibility for all relevant
stakeholders. As a responsible enterprise, we recognize
the significance of effective corporate governance.
We show respect for society and the environment,
communicate in an open and transparent manner
and act in accordance with legal, corporate and
ethical guidelines. To underline this, a Code of Conduct
binding on the entire Group has been added to the

mission statement.

A number of aspects merit emphasis: at Holcim,
the functions of Chairman of the Board of Directors
and CEQ are separate — a key element in ensuring

a balanced relationship between management

and control. With the exception of one director,

all directors are independent. Since 2003, the Group
has realized the principle of “one share, one vote”

with the introduction of a standard registered share,

The information published conforms with the
Corporate Governance Directive of the SWX Swiss
Exchange and the disclosure rules of the Swiss Code
of Obligations in force since January 1, 2007. In order
to enhance the clarity of this section, reference is

made to other parts of the Annual Report and to our

website (www.holcim.com). An overview of the

duties of the Audit Committee and the Governance,
Nomination & Compensation Committee as well as the
Regulations Governing Organization and Operations is

provided on pages 71 to 73 of this report.

Group structure and shareholders

Holcim Ltd is a holding company operating under the
laws of Switzerland for an indefinite period and with its
registered office in Rapperswil-Jona (Canton of 5t. Gallen,
Switzerland). it has direct and indirect interests in all the
companies listed on pages 162 to 164 of the Annual
Report.

The management structure as at December 31, 2007 and
its changes during 2007 are described in this chapter.

The current arganizational chart is shown on page 25.

The Group is basically organized by geographical regions.

Holcim has no mutual cross-holdings in any other listed
company, nor were any shareholders’ agreements or
other agreements regarding voting or holding of Holcim

shares concluded.

More detailed information regarding business review,
Group structure and shareholders can be found on the

following pages of the Annual Report:



Topic Page(s}

Business review

in the individual Group regions 46-65
Segment information 124-127
Principal companies 162-164
Information about .

listed Group companies 163
tmportant shareholders 178

Capital structure

In 2003, the introduction of a single registered share
was a prerequisite to comply with international
capital market requirements in terms of an open,
transparent and modern capital structure and
considerably enhanced attractiveness for institutional
investors, The share capital of Holcim Ltd is divided
into the following categories:

Share capital

The share capital is divided into 263,586,090 registered
shares of CHF 2 nominal value each. As at December
31,2007 the nominal, fully paid-in share capital of
Holcim Ltd amounted to CHF 527.172,180. The nominal
share capital of the company has been increased dur-
ing January 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007 in the
amount of CHF 16,474,930 out of conditional capital
through the exercise of conversion rights according to
Art. 3™ para. 1 of the Articles of Incorporation.

Conditional share capital

The share capital may be raised by a nominal amount
of CHF 1,422,350 through the issue of a maximum of
2,844,700 fully paid-in registered shares, each with a
par value of CHF 2 (as at December 31, 2007). The con-
ditional capital may be used for the exercising of
convertible and/or option rights relating to bonds or
similar debt instruments of the company or one of its
Group companies. In the year under review, conversion
rights in the amount of CHF 16,474,930 have been
exercised. The respective capital increases and corre-
sponding adaptations of the Articles of Incorporation

were carried out on August 21, 2007.

Authorized share capital/Certificates of participation

As at December 31, 2007, there was neither autharized

share capital nor were certificates of participation

outstanding.

Additional information can be found as follows:

Topic

Articles of Incorperation
Helcim Ltd

Code of Conduct
Changes in equity
Holcim Ltd

Detailed information
on conditional capital
Key data per share
Rights pertaining

to the shares
Regulations on
transferability of shares
and nominee registration
Convertible bonds

and warrants/options

www.holcim.com/corporate_governance
www.helcim.com/corporate_governance
176

www.holcim.com/equity

Articles c;f Incorporation,

Art. 3

28-31,155,178-179

Articles of Incorporation,

Art. 6,9,10

81-82

Articles of Incorporation,

Art. 4,5

144-145, 153-154




Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of 13 members, 12 of
whom are independent within the meaning of the
Corporate Governance Swiss Code of Best Practice.
According to Art. 15 of the Articles of Incorporation,
all directors are shareholders of the company.

CEO Markus Akermann is the sole executive member
of the Board of Directors.

New members of the Board of Directors are introduced

in detail to the company’s areas of business.

Please see pages 84 to 87 for the biographical

information of the Board members.

The Board of Directors meets as often as business
requires, but at least four times each year. In the

year under review, five regular meetings, one strategy
meeting and five meetings without the presence of
the Executive Committee were held. The Board of
Directors held two regular meetings with all members
present, two meetings with one member excused. and
one meeting with two members excused. As a rule,
the members of the Executive Committee attended
the regular meetings of the Board as guests.

The average duration of each meeting was 4.3 hours.

Board of Directors

Rolf Seiron Chairman'

Andreas von Planta Deputy Chairman

Markus Akermann Member

Lord Noﬁnan Fowler S Me_mb?v

Erich Hunziker . Mémber

Willy R. Kissling Member

Peter Kiipfer © Member?

Adrian Loader ) -A}\er;ber o
algér-t J_[; Probst o Member B
H. Onno Ruding Member

Thomas Schmidh"ei_ny Member o
Wo-lfga;g—gm—ﬁ;éf o Mer_nber -
Dietversi[.;Jréi’Iti - ) Memgeir -

' Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee Chairman.
! Audit Committee Chairman.




Other major Swiss and foreign activities of the Board of Directors outside the Holcim Group as at December 31, 2007

Board of Directors Main activity

Position

Rolf Soiron 'Lonza Group Ltd, Basel”

Nobel Biocare Holding AG, Zurich®

Charrman of the Boa rd

Chalrman of the Board

Andreas von Ptanta

Novartis AG, Ba sel‘

Schweizerische National-Versicherungs-Gesellschaft, Baset”

Vice Chalrman ofthe Board
Member of the Board

Erich Hunziker

Genentech Inc., San Francisco (USA)*

Chugai Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., Tokyo (fapan)*

Member of the Board
Member of the Board

Willy R_Kissling Kithne + Nagel International AG,

Schneider Efectric $.A., Paris (France)*

Member of the Board
Member of the Board

Schindellegi®

Peter Kipfer lulius Bar Holding AG, Zurich®

Metro AG, Dusseldorf (Germany)*

Member of the Board

Member of the Supervisory Board

Adrian Loader

GardaWorId Montreal (Canada)

Air Products & Chemicals, Alentown (USA)*

Member of the European

Advisory Board

Member of the European

Advisory Board

H. Onno Ruding
The Hague (Netheriands)
Corning Inc., Corning {USA)"
RTL Group SA, Luxemburg®

BNG (Bank for the Netherlands Municipalities),

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Member of the Board
Member of the Board

Thomas Schmidheiny

Spectrum Value Management Ltd., Rapper5W|| -Jona

Schweizerische Cement-Industrie- Gesellschaft Rapperswil-jona

Chairman of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Wolfgang Schirer Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich® Member of the
Swiss Re Agdvisory Panel
Dieter Spalti _Rieter Holding AG, Winterthur* Member of the Board

__ Spectrum Value Management Ltd Rapperswrl Jona

* Listed company,

Elections and terms of office of the Board of Directors
The members of the Board of Directors are each
elected for a three-year term of office. Elections are
staggered such that every year approximately one
third of the Board of Directors is standing for election.

In general, the exercise of service on the Board is
possible until the retirement age of 70 years or the
total terms of office (4 x 3 years plus additional

3 years according to the motion of the Governance,

Nomination & Compensation Committee) is reached.

Memberof the Board

In 2002, the following expert committees were set up

for the first time:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee decides on the external
auditors’ audit concept and mandate. [ also assists
and advises the Board of Directors in conducting its
supervisory duties, in particular with respect to the
internal control systems and examining the reports
for the attention of the Board of Directors, as well
as evaluating the Group's external and internal
audit, reviewing the risk management processes
that are applied within the Group and evaluating

financing issues.



Composition

of the Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee

Composition

of the Audit Committee

Peter Kiipfer Chairman
Andreas von Planta Member
H.Onno Ruding Member

All members are independent, which ensures the
degree of objectivity required for them to exercise
their function. In the year under review, four regular
meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Three
meetings were attended by all members of the
committee and at one meeting, one member was
excused for his absence. Three meetings were also
attended by the external avditors and the Internal
Audit for certain agenda items. Furthermore, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors, the CEO and the
CFO attended the meetings of the Audit Committee
as guests as well. The average duration of each
meeting was 4.5 hours. In 2007, note was duly

taken of the revisions to the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and of the project work
relating to the introduction of the new requirements
to be met by the 1CS (internal control system), while
a review of the external auditors as well as Group
Internal Audit were undertaken. The details of the
Audit Committee’s Charter may be viewed on our

website at www.holcim.com/corporate_governance.

Governance, Nomination & Compensation

Committee

The Governance, Nomination & Compensation
Committee supports the Board of Directors by
supervising succession planning within senior
management and the Board of Directors and

by closely monitoring developments with regard to
financial compensation for the Board of Directors
and senior management. The committee decides on
the compensation paid to the Executive Committee,
as well as on the definition of the CEQ’s targets and
the content of the latter's performance assessment
and informs the Board of Directors as a whole of the
decisions taken.

Rolf Soiron Chairman
Erich Hunziker Member
Willy R, Kissling Member
Thomas Schmidheiny Member

The Governance, Nomination & Compensation
Committee hetd three regular meetings. All of the
meetings were attended by all members of the
committee. The meetings were also attended by

the CEO as a guest, insofar as he was not himself
affected by the items on the agenda. The average
duration of each meeting was 2.3 hours. The full
wording of the Charter of the Governance, Nomination
& Compensation Committee may be found on our

website at www.halcim.com/corporate_governance.

Areas of responsibility

The division of responsibilities between the Board
of Directors and the Executive Committee is set out
in detail in the company’s Regutations Governing

Organization and Operations.

The Regulations Governing Organization and
Operations were entered into force on May 24, 2002,
and shall be reviewed at least every two years and
amended as required. The Regulations were last

amended in 2007

The Regulations Governing Organization and
Operations were issued by the Board of Directors of
Holcim Ltd in accordance with the terms of Art. 16b
of the Swiss Code of Obligations and Art.1g of the
company’s Articles of Incorporation. They stipulate
the organizational structure of the Board of Directors
and Executive Committee and govern the tasks and
powers conferred on the company's executive bodies.
They regulate the convocation, execution and number
of meetings to be held by the Board of Directors and
Executive Committee as well as the requirements
necessary for the passing of respective resolutions.
The Regulations Governing Organization and Oper-
ations set out the tasks and responsibilities of the
Chairman of the Board of Directors and the CEQ.In
the event that the Chairman of the Board of Directors
is not in a position to act independently, the Regula-

tions Governing Organization and Operatiens provide



for the election of an Independent Lead Director, such

election being confirmed on a yearly basis.

The Board of Directors also has the power to estab- -
lish specialist committees and, if required, ad-hoc

committees for special tasks.

In addition to its non-transferable statutory tasks,
the Board of Directors also defines the Group
corporate concept and corporate strategy, approves
the consolidated budget and reviews the professional

qualifications of the external auditors.

The Executive Committee is responsible for operational
management, preparing the business of the Board
of Directors and executing the latter's resolutions, in
addition te development and impiementation of

the corporate strategy. The Executive Committee is
empowered to issue guidelines with Group-wide
significance; furthermore, the Executive Committee
is empowered to elect and dismiss Area Managers,
Corporate Functional Managers, Function Heads and
CEOs of Group companies as well as the members of
the Board of Directors and supervisory bodies of the

Group companies,

Under the budget approval process, the Board of
Directors defines an investment and financing ceiling.
Within this ceiling, the Executive Committee decides,
under its own authority, on financing transactions
and one-off investments and divestments involving
sums of up to CHF 200 million. Decisions on larger
sums are taken by the Board of Directors. The Board
of Directors is periodically informed about important
transactions falling within the remit of the Executive
Committee.

The members of the Executive Committee may, in
concert with the CEQ, delegate their tasks relating
to their areas of responsibility by country to Area
Managers or functional to Corporate Functional

Managers.

The CEOQ, together with the Executive Committee,
oversees Business Risk Management following
appraisal by the Audit Committee. The Board of
Directors is informed annually about the risk situation.
The CEO assesses the performance of the members
of the Executive Committee and, after advice and
assessment by the Governance, Nomination & Com-

pensation Committee, he determines their objectives.

Where there is a direct conflict of interest, the Regu-
lations require each member of the body concerned
to voluntarily stand aside prior to discussion of the
matter in question. Members of the corporate bodies
are required to treat as confidential all information
and documentation which they may cbtain or view in
the context of their activities on these bodies and not

to make such information available to third parties.

All individuals vested with the power to represent the

company shall in principle have dual signing authority

information and control instruments

of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors determines in which manner
it is to be informed about the course of business.
Any member of the Board of Directors may demand
information on all issues relating to the Group and
the company. At meetings of the Board of Directors,
all Board members have a duty tc provide informa-
tion, as do any members of the Executive Committee
in attendance. Qutside of meetings, any member

of the Beard of Directors may request information
from the CEG through the Chairman of the Board

of Directors. In addition, any member of the Board
of Directors has a right to inspect the books and files

where necessary for the performance of his task.

1. Financial reporting

The Board of Directors receives monthly briefings on
the current course of business, adopts the quarterly
reports and releases them for publication. The Board
of Directors discusses the Annual Report, takes note
of the Group auditors’ reports and submits the

Annual Report to the general meeting for approval.

With regard to Group strategy development, a strategy
plan, a five-year financial plan and an annual budget

are submitted to the Board of Directors.



2. Business Risk Management

Holcim can benefit from several years of experience
as the first approach to Business Risk Management
(BRM) was implemented already in 1999. Meanwhile,
Holcim has anchored the BRM process in the entire
Group. Today, it covers all consolidated Group compa-

nies and their relevant business segments,

BRM analyzes the Group's overall risk exposure and
supports the strategic decisien-making process.
Therefore, the BRM process is closely linked with the
Group's strategic management process. All types

of risk, frem market, operations, finance and legal up
to the external business environment, are considered
inctuding compliance and reputational aspects.

The examination of risk exposure is, however, not
restricted to an analysis of threats, but also identifies

possible opportunities.

The Group's risk position is assessed from both top-
down and bottom-up. [n addition to the Group com-
panies, the Executive Committee, including the Area
Managers and Cerporate Functional Managers, also
conducts an annual risk analysis. The Board of Direc-
tors analyzes the Group’s risks at least once a year

and discusses them with the Executive Committee

in the context of a strategy meeting.

The BRM process follows a clearly defined straight
forward six step approach. In a first step, diverse
risks are assessed and pricritized regarding their
significance and likelihood. All further steps are then
focused only on the major risks. These top risks are
then analyzed more deeply regarding their drivers
through mind mapping technique. To fully complete
the assessment of the actual risk profile a more
detailed assessment of the impact is done in the
third step. In the next two steps, decisions are made
regarding the treatment of individual risks, the
accepted target risk profile and the necessary miti-
gating actions. The last step includes continucus
monitoring of the risk and the reporting to the next
higher level.

Risk information is stored in a state-of-the-art pro-
tected, centralized database which allows instant
access for all Group companies thraughout the world
for effective data evaluation and fast reporting.
Within the Group companies, risk owners and respon-
sibilities for countermeasures are clearly defined.

A corporate risk management function is responsible
for the organization of the BRM process within the
Group. it assures also timeliness of the reporting on
the Group's risk situation, which is done periodically

by the Executive Committee to the Board of Directors.

3. Internal Audit

Internal Audit provides assurance that effective
control exists to maintain process and information
integrity. For more details, see page 24. Internal Audit
reports to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and
periodicaily informs the Audit Committee. The mem-
bers of the Board of Directors have access to Internal
Audit at all times. Each year, the Audit Committee
defines the audit focal points to be addressed by
Internal Audit, and the Head of Internal Audit regu-
larly updates the Audit Committee on the activities
of Internal Audit. Internal Audit also assists the exter-

nal auditors.

Senior management

Senior management of Holcim Ltd comprises the
CEQ, the members of the Executive Committee,

the Area Managers and the Corporate Functional
Managers. The tasks of senior management are
divided into different areas of responsibility in terms
of country, division and function, each of these

areas being managed by a member of the Executive
Committee. Within the scope of their field of respon-
sibility, the members of the Executive Committee
may be assisted by Area Managers and Corporate

Functional Managers.

Since July 2007, Bernard Kueng, former CEQ of Holcim
France Benelux, has been Area Manager for France
and the Benelux countries. In his capacity as Corporate
Functional Manager he is also respensible for

sustainable develecpment.



Executive Committee

During the year under review, the Executive Commit-
tee of Holcim Ltd comprised seven members. None of
the members of the Executive Committee has impor-
tant functions outside the Holcim Group or any other

significant commitments of interest.

Executive Committee

Corporate Functional Managers
The Corporate Functional Managers are responsible
for directing important areas of expertise and report

to the Executive Committee.

Corporate Functional Managers

Bill Bolsover Aggregates & Construction

Materials Services

Markus Akermann CEC Jacques Bourgon Cement Manufacturing

Tom Clough N _ _N;;t;’t-be_r- Services -
H_a;'IEI;_Heé o Member  Beat Fellmann D;e;;uity CI;O N
gJHugentobler Membgr‘ Roland Kgr;{er Str;t;g—y—& Risk Managemgn;
Thomas Kndpfel ) Memt;; ﬁ:;a—l(l;e_r;é‘_ Susgi-ﬁ;bif:' Developm_er:t- )
Eén_;ﬂ—t_—;._!_(och S N-'Ir-.-.mbr-.:r; S;egn ;I_V-'-olfénsbe_rger _C_or;l r-nericialisiezfiicies 7 7
;rheophil H. Scaater 7 i CFO 'Since July 2007. ‘

Please see pages 88 and 89 for the biographical
information of the Executive Committee members.
Both, regional and functional respansibility is shown

on the organizational chart on page 2s.
Area Management
The individual members of the Executive Committee

are assisted by Area Managers

Area Management

Urs Bdhlen Eastern Europe,
ClS/Caspian
Bilt Bolsover Aggregate Industries

Javier de Benito Mediterranean,
Indian Ocean,
West Africa
Eernard Kue;{g-'__ N ) %r;m: )

Benelux countries
Gérard L-etellier- - V}et_narr_r:Malaysia,
Singapore,

Bangladesh

Bernard Terver Andes nations,
Central America,

Caribbean

'Since July 2007,

Please see pages 9o and g1 for the biographical infor-
mation of the Area Managers.

Please see pages 92 and g3 for the biographical infor-
mation of the Corporate Functional Managers.

Management agreements
Holcim has no management agreements in place
with companies or private individuals outside the

Group.

Remuneration report

The financial compensation for the Board of Directors
and senior management as well as compensations
for former members of governing bodies of Holcim
Ltd are published under this heading. No payments

were made to closely related parties.

Compensation policy

Board of Directors:

The members of the Board of Directors receive a fixed
fee, consisting of a set remuneration and a sharehold-
ing. The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Board
of Directors and members of the Audit Committee

or the Governance, Nomination & Compensation
Committee are paid additional compensation. The
Chairman of the Board of Directors is also insured in
the pension fund. The compensation of the Board of
Directors is defined in a set of rules which is reviewed
by the Governance, Nomination & Compensation
Committee once a year and, if necessary, adjusted.

Changes require the approval of the Board of Directors.



Senior management:

Senior management of Holcim Ltd includes the Execu-
tive Committee as well as the Area Managers and the
Corporate Functional Managers. The annual financial
compensation of the senior management comprises a
basic salary, a Group bonus and an individual bonus.
Members of senior management are also insured

in the pension fund. The financial compensation of
the Executive Committee is set by the Governance,
Nomination & Campensation Cornmittee on an annual
basis and the decision is noted by the Board of Directors
as a whole. The financial compensation for the other
members of senior management is set by the CEO

on an annual basis and the decision is noted by the
Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee.
The basic salary of members of senior management is
fixed and is paid in cash, A benchmarking takes place
periadically.

The Group and individual bonuses are performance-
related and, if targets are achieved, account for between
45 percent and 70 percent of the basic salary, depending
on the function concerned. The Group bonus accounts
for around two thirds of the variable compensation and
depends on the Group’s financial results. It is calculated
on the basis of target attainment in relation to operat-
ing EBITDA and the return on invested capital (ROIC),
both targets being weighted equally. The pay-out factor
comes to between o and 2, depending on target attain-
ment. The Group bonus is paid in the form of registered
shares of the company (subject to a five-year restric-
tion period) and a cash element of around 30 percent.
The necessary shares are valued at market price and are
either alloted from treasury stock or are purchased
from the market. The individual bonus amounts to
around one third of the variable salary and depends on
the individual's performance. The ingividual bonus is
paid in the form of options on registered shares of the
company and a cash element of around 30 percent.

The pay-out factor comes to between ¢ and 1, depending
on target attainment. The exercise price corresponds
with the stock market price at the grant date. The op-
tions are restricted for a period of three years foliowing
the grant date and have an overall maturity period of
elght years. The options are valued in accordance with
the Black Scholes model. The underlying shares are
reserved on the grant date of the options as part of

treasury stock or are purchased from the market.

The CEQ's performance is assessed annually by the
Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee,
the Board of Directors as a whole taking due note. The
performance of the remainder of senior management
is assessed by the CEQ on an annual basis, the Gover-
nance, Nomination & Compensation Committee taking

due note.

The contracts of employment of senior management
are concluded for an indefinite period of time and may
be terminated with one year's notice. Depending on the
length of tenure with the Group, contracts concluded
before 2004 include severance compensation amount-
ing to one annual salary or two annual salaries in the
event of notice being given by the company. More re-
cent contracts of employment no longer include sever-
ance compensation. No severance compensation was

paidin 2007.

In 2007, no external advisors were consulted on the

structuring of the compensation system.

Upon appointment, members of the Executive Commit-
tee may be granted a single allocation of options on
registered shares of the company by the Governance,
Nomination & Compensation Committee. A require-
ment is that the members have been with the Group
for five years. The options are restricted for nine years
and have a maturity period of twelve years. The com-
pany reserved the underlying shares as part of treasury
stock or purchases them from the market, There were

no single allotments during the last two years.

Neither shares nor options may be sold or lent until the

end of the restriction period.



Compensation for the Board of Directors

and for senior management

The following table discloses the compensation of

the Board of Directors in 2007 in detail and those

of the 17 members of senior management in total.

Compensation Board of Directors/senior management 2007

Name Base salary Variable compensation Other compensation Total
Cash Shares? Cash Shares’ Options*  Employer Others compensation
contributions
to pension plans

Rotf Soiron* Number 740

CHF 545,000 80,000 87,957 50,000 762,957
Andreas von lslan-t;;5 Numb;a-r. . 740

CHF 300,000 80,000 18,169 10,000 408,169
Lord Norman Fowler Number 740

CHF 80,000 80,000 0 10,000 170,000
Erich Hunziker? ) Numberr - 740 7 7

CHF 100,000 80,000 8,069 10,000 198,069
willy R, Kissling® Number 740 o -

CHF 100,000 80,000 8,069 10,000 198,069
Pe;ter Kﬂpfer;- o Numberrn- . 740 )

CHF 180,000 80,000 12,109 10,000 282,109
Adrian Loader Number 740

CHF 80,000 80,000 0 10,000 170,000
Gilbert ). B. Probst Number 7 740

CHF 80,000 80,000 7,059 10,000 177,059
H.OnnoRuding®  Number 740 o S

CHF 110,000 80,000 8,574 10,000 208,574
Thomas Schmidheiny*  Number 740 I o S

CHF 144,100% 80,000 9,401 10,000 243,501
Wolfgang Schiirer Number 740

CHF 80,000 80,000 7,059 10,000 177,059
Dieter Spalti Number 740

CHF 80,000 80,000 7,059 . 10,000 177,059
Total Board of Directors Number 8,880
(non-executive members) CHF 1,879,100 960,000 173,525 160,000 3,172,625
Markus Akermann®®  Number 0 10942 18,102 -

CHF 1,859,130 0 812,785 1,183,268 448,207 551,243 48,340 4,902,973
Total senior management" Number o 59,801 71,083

CHF 14,444,130 0 4,098,043 6,466,879 ) 1,760,008 5,142,057 846,493 32,757,610

' Compensation for the Board of Directors and senior management is disclosed gross of withholding tax and employee social security contributions.
"Other compensation” includes employer contributions to pension plans (state old age and survivors insurance {AHV)/disability insurance{iv), pension funds}
as well as a lump sum allowance, long-service benefits, government child payments, ete. The parameters for the fair value calculation of shares and options
allocated in the year under review are disclosed on page 153 under “Share compensation plan”.

! The shares were valued at the average market price in the period from January 1, 2008 to February 15, 2008,

* Value of the options according to the Black Scholes model at the time of allocation.

“Chairman, Chairman of the Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee.

* Deputy Chairman and Member of the Audit Committee.

* Member of the Governance, Namination & Compensation Committee.

" Chairman of the Audit Committee.

* Member of the Audit Committee.

* Executive member of the Board of Directors, CEO.

*® Member of senior management receiving the highest compensation.

""Including executive member of the Board of Directors, CEO.

" Including director’s fees from subsidiary compantes.




Compensation for former members of governing bodies
In the year 2007, an amount of CHF 263,700 was paid

to two former members of governing bodies.

Shareholdings and loans
The details shown relate to members of the governing

bodies.

Shares and options owned by the Board of Directors

At the end of 2007, non-executive members of the
Board of Directors held a total of 53,834,701 registered
shares in Holcim Ltd. These numbers comprised
privately acquired shares and those allocated under
profit-sharing and compensation schemes. As of the
end of the 2007 financial year, non-executive members
of the Board of Directors did not hold any options from

compensation and profit-sharing schemes.

Until the disclosure or announcement of market-rete-
vant information or projects, the Board of Directors,
senior management and any employees involved are
prohibited from effecting transactions with equity
securities or other financial instruments of Holcim Ltd,
exchange-listed Group companies, or potential target
companies {trade restriction period).

Stock of shares and options Board of Directors as at December 31, 2007

Name Position Total number Total number
of shares of call options
Rolf Soiron Chairman, Governance, Nomination &
Compensation Committee Chairman 28,177 -
Andreas von Pla;:ta_ - beputy Chéirrﬁéﬁ o a -4,566 -
Lord Norman Fowler Member . 1,087 -
Erich Hunziker Member 4,763 -
Willy R. Kissling Member 4,922 -
i’eter Kiipfer 7 o Member, A.u;ii-t--cvc;rrrrﬁittee Chairman 4762 S0,000‘l
Adrian Loader Member ' 2154 -
_G-ilbe-!tJ. B.-Prob;ti - _}\hem-tié; . o - _———S,-34O -
H.OnnoRuding  Member T 224 -
Thomas Schmidheiny ~ Member T s3ameso -
{Nolfgang Schi]rer- - ]Vlember h o 31,081 -
Dieter Spilti Member 3,775 -
Total Board of Directors
(non-executive membeﬂr_ls} 53,834,701 80,_000

! Exercise price: CHF 110; Ratio: 1:1; Style: European; Maturity: 21.5.2010.




Shares and options owned by senior management

As at December 31, 2007, the executive member of the
Board of Directors and members of senior manage-
ment held a total of 274,458 registered shares in
Holeim Ltd. This figure includes both privately acquired
shares and those allocated under the Group’s profit-
sharing and compensation schemnes. Furthermore,

at the end of 2007, senior management held 490,101
share options; these arise as a result of the com-
pensation and profit-sharing schemes of various
years. Options are issued solely on registered shares
of Holcim Ltd. One option entitles to subscribe one
registered share of Holcim Ltd.

Stock of shares and options senior management as at December 31, 2007

Name Position Total number

of shares

Markus Akermann Executive Member of the Beard of Drrectors

Total number

of call options

CEC 61,161 138,983
Tom Cloughﬁr Member of the Executive Commrtt_e_e.:-_- o __—_‘I; 744 o —44 588
Hansueli Heé Member of the Executive Corr;rrwlifcg; _"—_-_2?386—— o 55,553—
Pauliﬁu-gentobler " Member of the Executive Committee m__zlé 992 i 56_344
Tho%_a;KnopfeI o r'\-;\;rrlber oftrrg I;;e-;u:ﬁ;'e Comrrnttee - .19,99~S o 46,135
Benoit-H. Koch © Member of the Executive Committee 25,080 48,873
Theophil H. Schiatter Member ofthe Executive Committee, CFO 35,803 65,97 1-
Urs Bbhlen © Area Manager ‘ 7,924 4,911
Bill Bolsover  Area Manager T o

and Corporate Functional Manager 1,553 1,550
J_avier de Benito - Xrea Manager - - -8,.-22‘5.1 o ——W_SF_M_
Bernard Kueng Area Manager o T

and Corporate Functional Manager 2,294 0
Gérard Letellier  AreaManager 439 2570
Bernard Terver ) Area Manager o - 9,724 8,'616
lacques BorJr—gr;n Corporate Functlonal Manager 4,515 2,740
Beat Fellmann 7 Corporate Functronal Manager - 2,297 2,700
Roland Kéhler  Corporate Functional Manager 3300 3088
Stefan Wolfensberger Corporate Functional Manager 2,368 2,625
Total senior management 274 458 480,101




Movements in the number of share options out-

standing held by senior management are as foilows:

Number’ Number'
2007 2006

January 1 496,619 499,571
Decreasédue to retirements o ) ] V 0 0
Gr.anted and vested (individual bonu—s)_ o ) _ 49,674 58,573
Gfénted and vest-e'd-(s-ingié aIIotmeir;ti)A—_l —————— - 0 0
orfeited ) — 0
Exercised B (56,192)  (61,525)
lapsed - T o 0
December 31 490,101 496,619
Of which exercisable at the end of the year - 89,874 89,760
The share options outstanding held by senior
management (including former members) have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:
Option grant date Expiry date Exercise price’ Number’
2000 2008 CHF 68.38 0
20_01_- T N 2507‘; CHF 65;4_ o _—_6
2002 T 2010-— h C._I—|F-_-?Z.;1_1m_f 6
2002 7 S 2014 CHF 6891 201,300
2003 o ) 2011 CHFE 35.61 48,775
2003 S S 2015 CHF 6891* 33,550
2004 S 2012 CHF 6511 41099
2004 N 2016 CHF 68.91° 33550
2005 2013 CHF 76.30 71,423
2006 2014 CHF 102.45 58,573
007 2015 CHF 127.10 49,674
Tgt_al o 531’,944_

* Adjusted to reflect fermer share splits and/or capital increases.
*Valued according to the single allocation in 2002.




Loans granted to members of governing bodies

As at December 31, 2007, there were loans outstanding,
which were granted to five members of senior manage-
ment, There were no loans to members of the Board

of Directors or to parties closely related to members
of governing bodies. The outstanding amounts and

respective terms are disclosed in the following table:

Loans senior management as at December 31, 2007

Borrower Position Original  Loan amount  tnterest Maturity Collateral
currency  in CHF rate date

Thomas Knépfel Mer_ﬂt:er of the Executive Committee ) ClHF 32,000 variable 311 2 10 yes
Benoit-H. Koch ~ Member of the Executive Committee  CHF 1,450,000  3.25% 310110  yes
éenéft;H. Koch "_M_e_mgér oft—he—E_x_ecu_ti;/e (:.;Jr-nmat_ee ELR 77205.4007 i ;a_riable __-o_pen- - yes
UrsBohlen  AreaManager  CHF 93,000  variable 311215 yes
Roland Khler  Corporate Functional Manager ~ CHF 300,000  variable 311215 yes
Stefan Wolfeﬁ;berger Eori:;owrvat;:vl':uﬁnct;onal Mana_ger CHF - 471,800 '_‘Qa_riaa‘e_ - 31.12.22 yes

Total CHF 2,552,200

Shareholders’ participation

The information comprises excerpts from the Articles
of Incorporation of Holcim Ltd. The full version

of the Articles of Incorporation can be retrieved at

www.holcim.com/corporate_governance.

Voting rights and representation restrictions

Alt holders of registered shares who are entered as
sharehotders with voting rights in the share register at
the date communicated in the invitation to the annual
general meeting (approximately one week priar to the
annual general meeting) are entitled to participate in,
and vote at, general meetings. Shares held by trusts
and shares for which no declaration has been made in
the context of the regulations of the Board of Directors
governing the entry of shareholders in the share regis-
ter of Holcim Ltd are entered in the share register as
having no voting rights. Shareholders not participating
in person in the annual general meeting may be repre-
sented by another shareholder, by the bank, by the
company as representative of the governing body or by
the independent voting rights representative. voting
rights are not subject to any restrictions. Each share
carries one vote.

Statutory quorums

The annual general meeting of shareholders normally
constitutes a quorum, without taking account of the
number of shares represented or shareholders present.
In order to pass resolutions, an overall majority of the
votes represented is required, subject to the provisions
of Art. 704 para.1 of the Swiss Code of Obligations.

in such cases, resolutions may only be passed with a

two-thirds majority of the votes represented.

According to Art.10 para. 2 of the Articles of Incorpora-
tion and in addition to Art. 704 para.1, the approval of
at least two-thirds of the votes represented and the
absolute majority of the par value of shares repre-
sented shall be required for resolutions of the annual
general meeting of shareholders with respect to the
removal of the restrictions set forth in Art. 5 of the
Articles of Incorporation (entries in the share register),
the removal of the mandatory bid rule (Art. 22 para. 3
of the Stock Exchange Act}, the removal or amendment
of this para. 2 of Art. 10 of the Articles of Incorporation,

The chair of the meeting may alsa have votes and
elections conducted electronically. Electronic votes and
elections are deemed equivalent to secret votes and

elections.



Convocation of the general meeting and agenda rules
The ordinary general meeting of shareholders takes
place each year, at the latest six months following the
conclusion of the financial year. It is convened by the
Board of Directors, whereby invitations are published
at least twenty days prior to the meeting and in which
details are given of the agenda and items submitted.
Shareholders representing shares with a par value

of at least one million Swiss francs may request the
addition of a particular item for discussion, A corre-
sponding application must be submitted in writing
to the Board of Directors at least forty days prior to
the annual general meeting. Such application should
indicate the items to be submitted. The invitations as
well as the minutes of the general meetings shall be

published on www.holcim.com/AGMa008.

Entries in the share register

The company maintains a share register for regis-
tered shares in which the names and addresses of
owners and beneficiaries are entered. Only those in-
cluded in the share register are deemed shareholders
or beneficial owners of the registered shares. Upon
request, purchasers of registered shares shall be
included in the share register as shareholders with
vating rights if they expressly declare that they have
acquired the shares in their own name and for their
own account. The Board of Directors shall enter in the
share register as having voting rights those persons
who have not expressly declared in their application
for registration that the shares are held for their own
account (nominees). However, this only applies if

the nominee has reached an agreement with the
company regarding this position and is subject to a
recognized banking or financial markets supervisory

authority.

The share register is closed approximately one week
prior to the date of the annual general meeting (the
exact date will be communicated in the invitation

to the annual general meeting). Shareholders’ partici-
pation and rights of protection are furthermore

governed by the Swiss Code of Obligations.

Changes of control and defense measures

The Articles of Incorporation contain no waiver of the
duty to make a public offer under the terms of Art. 32
and 52 of the Swiss Stock Exchange Act (“opting out”).
The result is that a shareholder who directly, indirectly
or in concert with third parties acquires shares in the
company and, together with the shares he already
possesses, thereby exceeds the 33'% percent threshold
of voting rights in the company must make an offer for

all listed shares of the company.

There are no clauses relating to changes of control.

Auditors

As part of their auditing activity, the statutory and
Group auditors inform the Audit Committee and the
Executive Committee regularly about their findings
and about proposals for improvement. The Audit
Committee assesses the external auditors and maoni-
tors the results of the audit. In 2007, the auditors par-
ticipated in three meetings of the Audit Committee

to discuss individual agenda items.

Ernst & Young Ltd, Zurich, were appointed in 2002 as
statutory and Group auditors to Holcim Ltd. Ernst &
Young partners Christoph Dolensky (since 2004) and
Willy Hofstetter (since 2007) are the lead auditors for
this mandate. The statutory and Group auditors are in
each case elected for a one-year term by the annual

general meeting.



The following fees were charged for professional

services rendered by Ernst & Young in 2007 and 2006:

Million CHF 2007 2006
Audit services® - - 13.4 1.0
A;dit—-rélaféa se_rviées’- ) - 2.3 0.9
Tax services ) - 0.8 1.2
Other services® I - ) 0.1 06
Total 16.6 13.7

' This amount includes the fees for the individual audits of Group companies carried out by Ernst & Young as well as their fees far auditing

the Group financial statements,

! Audit-related services comprise, among other things, amounts far due diligences, comfort letters, accounting advice, information

systems reviews and reviews on internal contrals.

’ Qther services include, among other things, amounts for accounting, actuarial and legal advisory services.

Information policy

Holcim Ltd reports to shareholders, the capital market,
employees and the public at large in a transparent
and timely manner concerning its corporate perfor-
mance and progress regarding sustainability targets.
We nurture an open dialogue with our most important
stakeholders, based on mutual respect and trust.

This enables us to promote an understanding of our
objectives, strategy and business activities, and ensure

a high degree of awareness about our company.

As a listed company, Holcim Ltd is committed to
disclose facts that may materially affect the share
price (ad-hoc disclosure, Art. 72 of the listing rules).
Members of the Board of Directors and senior man-
agement are subject to SWX rules on the disclosure of
management transactions. These can be accessed on

the SWX website {www.swx.com).

The most important information tools are the annual
and quarterly reports, the website {www.holcim.com),
media releases, press conferences on the annual re-
sults and third quarter, meetings for financial analysts

and investors as well as the annual general meeting.

Our commitment to sustainability is described on
pages 34 to 43 of this Annual Report. Current informa-
tion relating to sustainable development is available
at www.holcim.com/sustainable. In 2008, Holcim Ltd

will publish its fourth sustainability report.

The financial reporting calendar is shown on page 1
of this Annual Report.

Should you have any specific queries regarding
Holcim, please contact:

Corporate Communications, Roland Walker
Phone +41 58 858 8710, Fax +41 58 858 8719

communications@holcim.com

Investor Relations, Bernhard A. Fuchs
Phone +4158 858 87 87 Fax +4158 858 80 09

investor.relations@holcim.com




Board of Directors

Rolf Soiron, Swiss national, born Jarnuary 31,1946, Chairman of the Board of Directors since 2003, elected until
2010, Chairman of the Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee, He studied history at the
University of Basel, where he obtained a PhD in philosophy in 1972. He began his professional career in 1970
with Sandoz in Basel, where he held various positions, ultimately as COO of Sandoz Pharma AG with the
responsibility for the global pharmaceuticals business. From 1993 until the end of June 2003, Rolf Soiron
managed the Jungbunzlauer Group in Basel (leading international manufacturer of citric acid and related
products), ultimately as Managing Director. From 1996 until March 2005, he was - on a part-time role -
Chairman of the University of Basel. In early 2003, he was appointed Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Nobel Biocare, In April 2005, he was appointed Chairman of the Board of Directors of Lonza Group Ltd, Basel.
He was elected to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd in 1994.

Andreas von Planta, Swiss national, born July 11,1955, Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors since May 2005,
elected until 2008, member of the Audit Committee. He studied law at the Universities of Basel (doctorate, 1981)
and Columbia, New York {LL.M., 1983). He began his professional career in 1983 with Lenz & Staehelin, an interna-
tional law firm based in Geneva. In 1988, he became partner and was from 2002 until the end of 2005 Managing
Partner. He has a wealth of experience in corporate law, business financing and mergers & acquisitions. He was

elected to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd in 2003.

Markus Akermann, Swiss national, born January 25,1947, CEQ, member of the Board of Directors, elected until
2010. He obtained a degree in business economics from the University of St. Gallen in 1973 and studied economic

and social sciences at the University of Sheffield, UK. He began his professional career in 1975 with the former

Swiss Bank Corporation. In 1978, he moved to Hoelcim, where he was active in a number of roles including Area

Manager for Latin America and Holcim Trading. In 1993, he was appoeinted to the Executive Committee, with
responsibility for Latin America and international trading activities. On lanuary 1, 2002, he was appointed CEO

and at the annual general meeting in 2002, he was elected to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd.

Lord Norman Fowler, British national, born February 2,1938 member of the Board of Directors, elected until 2004,
Lord Fowler attended Trinity Hall College in Cambridge. He worked as a journalist at “The Times”. From 1g70 to
2001, he was a member of the British parliament. During this time, he held a number of ministerial posts and
was a member of Margaret Thatcher’s Cabinet {1979—19g90) when he was, in turn, Transport Secretary,

Social Services Secretary and Employment Secretary. Before he became Chairman of Aggregate Industries in
2000, he had been a non-executive director of Bardon group and then of Aggregate Industries upon its creation
in 1997.In 200, he was made a life peer. He has also been Chairman of the British regional newspaper groups
Midland Independent Newspaper and Regional Independent Media and a Board member of a number of other

UK companies. He was elected to the Board of Directors of Helcim Ltd in 2006.



Erich Hunziker, Swiss national, born September 15,1953, member of the Board of Directors, elected until 2008,
member of the Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee. He studied industrial engineering at

the ETH Zurich, obtaining a PhD in 1983. In the same year, he joined Corange AG {holding company for the
Boehringer Mannheim group), where he was appointed CFO in 1997 and among other things managed a project
handling the financial aspects of the sale of the Corange group to F. Hoffmann-La Roche AG. From 1998 until 2001,
he was CEO at the Diethelm group and Diethelm Keller Holding AG. Since 2001, he has served as CFO of F. Hoffmann-
La Roche AG and is a member of the Executive Committee. in 2005, he was appointed as Deputy Head of Roche's
Corporate Executive Committee, in addition to his function as Chief Financial Officer. Since 2004, he is a member
of the Board of Genentech Inc., USA. In 2006, he was elected to the Board of Directors of Chugai Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd,, Japan. He was elected to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd in 1968,

Willy R. Kissling, Swiss national, born May 26,1944, member of the Board of Directors, elected until 2008, member
of the Governance, Nemination & Compensation Committee. He obtained a doctorate in management sciences
at the University of Berne, complementing his studies at the Harvard Business School, Cambridge, USA. He began
his professional career in 1970 at Amiantus Corporation, moving to Intergips in 1978, where he was ultimately
appointed CEQ. From 1987 until 1996, he served as CEO and Managing Director at Landis & Gyr AG. From 1998

to 2005, he was Chairman and until 2002 CEO of Unaxis Holding Corporation {now OC Oerlikon Corporation).
Furthermore, he was appointed to the Board of Directors of Schneider Electric S.A., France, in 2001, and of Kiihne +

Nagel International AG in 2003. He was appointed to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd in 1597.

Peter Kiipfer, Swiss national, born lanuary 17,1944, member of the Board of Directors, elected until 2010,
Chairman of the Audit Committee. As a Swiss Certified Accountant, he began his career with Revisuisse Price-
waterhouse AG in Basel and Zurich, where he became a member of management. From 1985 until 1989, he
was CFO at Financiére Credit Suisse First Boston and C5 First Boston, New York; from 1989 until 1996, he was
at CS Holding, Zurich, as a member of the Executive Board. He has been an independent business consuitant

since 1997 He was elected to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd in 200a2.

Adrian Loader, British national, born June 3,1948, member of the Board of Directors, elected until 200q9. Adrian
Loader holds an Honours Degree in History of Cambridge University and is a Fellow of the Chartered (nstitute
of Personnel and Development. He began his professional career at Bowater in 1969 and joined Shell the
following year. Until 1998, he held various management positions in Latin America, Asia, Europe and on corporate
level. In 1998, he was appointed President of Shell Europe Oil Products and became Director for Strategic
Planning, Sustainable Development and External Affairs in 2004. Since 2005, he was Director of the Strategy
and Business Development Directorate of Royal Dutch Shell and became President and CEO of Shell Canada in
2007, retiring from Shell at the end of the year. In January 2008, he jeined the Board of Taronte-based Candax

Energy Inc. and was appointed Chairman. He was elected to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd in 2006.
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Gilbert ). B. Probst, Swiss national, born September 17,1950, member of the Board of Directors, elected until 2008.
He obtained his PhD in 1981 at the University of 5t. Gallen. From 1984 until 1987, he was Deputy Director and
Head of Research at the Institute of Management and, at the same time, he was a lecturer in organizational
behavior and management at the University of St. Gallen. Since 1987, he has been a Professor of Organization
and Management and Director of the MBA program at the University of Geneva, as well as a member of the
Board of SKU (Swiss training programs for senior executives). He is also a founder of the Geneva Knowledge
Forum and CORE (Center for Organizational Excellence at the University of St. Gallen). Since 2007, he is also a
Managing Director at the World Economic Forum and Dean of Global Leadership Fellows Programme. He was

elected to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd in1999.

H. Onno Ruding, Dutch national, born August 15,1939, member of the Board of Directors, elected until 2010,
member of the Audit Committee. He studied economics at the Netherlands School of Economics (now Erasmus
University} in Rotterdam (master in 1964, doctorate in 1969). He worked at the Ministry of Finance, The Hague
(1965-1970), AMRO Bank, Amsterdam (1971-1976} and, later, as a member of the Board of Managing Directors of
AMRO (1981-1982). He was elected to the Executive Board of the International Monetary Fund in Washington,
D.C.in 1976 and served four years. In 1982, he became the Minister of Finance in The Netherlands until the end
of 1989. He became Director of Citibank in vggo and was from 1992 until his retirement in 2003 Vice Chairman
and Director of Citibank in New York. He is also Chairman of the Board of the Centre for European Policy Studies
(CEPS) in Brussels. He was elected to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd in 2004.

Thomas Schmidheiny, Swiss national, born December 17,1945, member of the Board of Directors, elected until
2009, member of the Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee, He studied mechanical engineer-
ing at the ETH Zurich and complemented his studies with an MBA from the IMD Lausanne (1972). In 1999, he was
awarded an honorary doctorate for his services in the field of sustainable development from Tufts University,
Massachusetts, USA. He began his career in 1970 as Technical Director with Cementos Apasco and was appointed
to the Executive Committee of Holcim in 1976, where he held the office of Chairman from 1978 until 2001.

He was appointed to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd in 1978 and became Chairman of the Board in 1984

until 2003.



Wolfgang Schiirer, Swiss national, born September 14,1946, member of the Board of Directors, elected until z0049.
He studied economic and social sciences at the University of 5t. Gallen, where he was awarded an honorary doc-
torate in 1999. He is Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEQ of MS Management Service AG, St. Gallen {in-
ternational consultancy firm focusing on strategy and risk evaluation of foreign engagements for multinational
firms in Europe, North America, the Middle East and Asia as well as mandates in the international regulatory
environment). He is also Distinguished Professor in the Practice of International Business Diplomacy at George-
town University, School of Foreign Service, Washington, D.C. and a regular visiting Professor for Public Affairs at
the University of 5t. Gallen. Moreover, he is a member of the Curatorium and special representative of The Hague
Academy of International Law and a founder of the International Management Symposium at the University

of St. Gallen. Since 2006, he serves as a member of Swiss Re's Advisory Panel. He was elected to the Board of

Directors of Holcim Ltd in 1997

Dieter Spalti, Swiss national, born February 27,1961, member of the Board of Directors, elected until 2009,

He studied law at the University of Zurich, obtaining a doctorate in 1989. He began his professional career as a
credit officer with Bank of New York in New York, before taking up an appointment as CFO of Tyralit (Swarovski
group), based in Innsbruck and Zurich, in 1991. From 1993 until 2001, he was with McKinsey & Company, ultimately
as a partner, and was involved in numerous projects with industrial, financial and technology firms in Europe,
the US and Southeast Asia. In October 2002, he joined as a partner Rapperswil-Jona-based Spectrum Value
Management Ltd., which administers the industrial and private investments of the family of Thomas Schmidheiny.
Since 2006, he is CEO of Spectrum Value Management Ltd. He was elected to the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd

in 2003.




Executive Committee

Markus Akermann, please refer to the section Board of Directors on page 84 for his biographical information.

Tom Clough, British national, born October 25,1947 Torn Clough has a Bachelor's degree in Mining Engineering
from the University of Leeds, Following three years working as a mining engineer, he joined Imperial Chemical
Industries {{CI} in 1974. From 1988 to 1994, he worked for global minerals and specialty chemicals group ECC
International. In 1997, after some years as an independent consultant, he joined Holcim and assumed diverse
management tasks in Asia. He was appointed CEQ of Holcim's Philippine Group company in 1998 and, following
Holcim’s entry into the Indonesian market in 2001, Chief Executive of Jakarta-based PT Holcim Indonesia Tbk.
He joined the Holcim Executive Committee in 2004, with responsibility for East Asia including the Philippines

and Oceania, as well as South and East Africa.

Hansueli Heé, Swiss national, born May 26, 1948. Hansueli Heé completed his graduate and doctorate studies
at the ETH Zurich and in 1987 acquired an MBA from the IMD Lausanne. Fram 1979 until 1986, he occupied
various positions within the Holcim Group, including Plant Manager and Head of Production at Helcim Group
companies in Brazil, Mexico and Venezuela. From 1994 until 1998, he served as Director and Area Manager at
Holcim Ltd. Hansueli Heé piayed a key role in expanding Holcim's position in Central and Eastern Europe.

He has been a member of the Executive Committee since 1998 and is currently responsible for Europe excluding

Iberian Peninsula, UK and Norway.

Paul Hugentobler, Swiss national, born February 14, 1949. Paul Hugentobler has a degree in civil engineering
from the £TH Zurich and a degree in economic science from the University of St. Gallen. He joined what is now
Holcim Group Support Ltd in 1980 as Project Manager and in 1994 was appointed Area Manager for Holcim Ltd.
From 1999 until 2000, he also served as CEO of Siam City Cement, headquartered in Bangkok, Thailand. He has
been a member of the Executive Committee since January 1, 2002 with the responsibility for South Asia and
ASEAN excluding the Philippines.




Thomas Knépfel, Swiss naticnal, barn February 10, 1951. Thomas Kndpfel obtained a doctorate in law from the
University of Zurich in 1g82. He also holds a Master of Law degree in US business and financial law and is a
licensed attorney. In 1986, he joined the former Union Bank of Switzerland, before beginning his career with
Holeim in 1988. After a period as member of the senior management of Holcim {Espafia), S.A. and from 1995

as CEO of Holcim (Colombia} S.A., he was in 1999 appeinted Area Manager with responsibility for various Group
companies in Latin America. Since January 1, 2003, he has been a member of the Executive Committee, with
responsibility for Group region Latin America.

Benoit-H. Koch, French and Brazilian national, born March 24,1953. Benoit-H. Koch completed his education as
an engineer at the ETH Zurich. He joined Holcim in 1977, occupying various positions at Group companies

in Belgium, Brazil, France and Switzerland until 1992. He has been a member of the Executive Committee since
1992 and is currently responsible for North America, UK and Norway, the Mediterranean including Iberian

Peninsula and International Trade,

Theophil H. Schlatter, Swiss national, born January 7,1951. Theophit Schlatter graduated in business economics
at the University of 5t. Gallen and is a Swiss Certified Accountant. He began his career as a public accountant
at STG Coopers & Lybrand. After six years, he moved to Holcim Group Support Ltd, where he was active for a
further six years in Corporate Controlling. From 1991 until 1995, he was Head of Finance and a member of the
Executive Committee of Sihl Papier AG. He then served as CFO and a member of the Management Committee
of Holcim Switzerland for two years. He has been CFO and a member of the Executive Committee of Holcim Ltd
since 1997.




Area Management

Urs Béhlen, Swiss national, born June 7,1950. Urs Bhlen studied business administration at the University of
Berne, graduating in 1977, and complemented his education at the Stanford Business School in 1991. From 1977
to 1979, he served as Project Manager in the accounts division at Union Bank of Switzerland. From 1980 until
1985, he was Head of Cantrolling at Autophon AG. He joined Holcim in 198s; after holding various positions,
he was entrusted with overall management of the former Cementfabrik “Holderbank” at Rekingen in 1989.
From 1992 until 1998, he served as CEO of Holcim Switzerland. Since 1998, he has been Area Manager and is

currently responsible for Eastern Europe and the CiS/Caspian region.

Bill Bolsover, British national, born August 10, 1950. Following a career with Tarmac which spanned more than
25 years, resulting in a Main Board position. Bill Bolsover joined Aggregate Industries in 2000 onto the Main
Board and was made Chief Operating Officer with responsibility for US and UK operations in July 2003. As of
January 1, 2006, he has been appointed CEO of Aggregate Industries and Area Manager of Holcim Ltd. In addi-
tion to his line responsibilities, he is in charge of the corporate function Aggregates & Construction Materials

Services.

Javier de Benito, Spanish national, born June 24,1958. lavier de Benito studied business administration at the
Universidad Auténoma de Madrid and undertook further studies at the Harvard Business School. After a number
of years of professional experience in the finance department of an international steel trading company and as
a specialist for finance projects with a Spanish export promotion company, he joined Holcim Trading in 1988.
Along with respansibility for controlling at the subsidiary companies and for business development, he took on
the position of Deputy General Manager in 1992, with responsibility for the trading division. On April 1, 2003,
he was appointed Area Manager for the Mediterranean and Indian Ocean.

Bernard Kueng, Swiss national, born August 31,1954. Bernard Kueng studied engineering at the ETH in Zurich
and complemented his studies with an MBA from the University of 5t. Gallen {1979). He began his career in
1980 at the former Ciba-Geigy Ltd in Switzerland. He worked for the company until 1990, holding various
executive positions in the USA. He assumed the position of assistant to a member of the Executive Committee
of Holcim Ltd in 19g90. From 1991 to 1993, he was responsible for business development at Holcim US. In 1994,
he was appointed CEO of Canadian St. Lawrence Cement Inc., and in 1998, CEC of Helcim France Benelux.

He has been Area Manager for France and the Benelux countries since July 2007. In his capacity as Corporate

Functional Manager he is also responsible for sustainable development.



Gérard Letellier, French national, born January 6,1953. Gérard Letellier, a graduate of the Business & Administra-
tion School of the University of Reims, began his career in 1977 in the marketing unit at Holcim France, ulti-
mately moving up to the position of senior management member responsible for cement sales. From 1998 to
2001, he was CEQ of Holcim Vietnam and, from 2002, much of his work in his capacity as Deputy Area Manager
of Holcim Ltd was devoted to the expansion of our presence in China. Effective January 1, 2005, Gérard Letellier

has been appointed Area Manager. He is responsible for Vietnam, Malaysia, Singapore and Bangladesh.

Bernard Terver, French national, born April 2,1952. Bernard Terver concluded his studies at the Ecole Polytech-
nique in Paris in 1976. After beginning his career in the steel industry, he moved in 1977 to French cement
manufacturer CEDEST, which was later merged with Holcim (France Benelux) S.A. In May 1999, Bernard Terver
was appointed CEO of Holcim (Colombia) $.A. and, since 2000, he has alsc been CEO of Holcim (venezuela) C.A.
following the creation of a business cluster. On January 1, 2003, he was appointed Area Manager for the Andes
nations, Central America and the Caribbean.




Corporate Functional Managers

Bill Bolsover, please refer to the section Area Management on page go for his biographical information.

Jacques Bourgon, French national, born August 5,1958. Jacques Bourgon, a graduate in mechanical engineering
of the Ecole Catholique d’Arts et Métiers, Lyon, and a postgraduate of Harvard Business School, joined Holcim in
1990. In 1992, he was appointed Plant Manager of the Tecoman plant and from 1996 to 2001 was responsible for
cement operations as member of the Holcim Apasco senior management. He has been Head of the Corporate
Engineering service function since mid-2001 and has been promoted to Corporate Cement Manufacturing Services

Manager as of January 1, 2005, taking over responsibility for Cement Manufacturing Services effective July 1, 2005.

Beat Fellmann, Swiss national, born August 31,1964. Beat Fellmann graduated in business economics at the Uni-
versity of St. Gallen and is a Swiss Certified Accountant. He started his career with an international industrial
group in the Internal Audit department, became assistant to the CEO and Chairman and worked finally as a
specialist in finance projects. Beat Fellmann joined Holcim in 1998 as Head of Financial Holdings. Reporting
directly to the CFO, his duties include responsibility for Financial Holdings, Group Tax, Holcim Group Support

IT Service Center and Holcim Group Support Accounting & Controlling. On January 1, 2005, Beat Fellmann was
promoted to Deputy CFO.

Roland Kdhler, Swiss national, born December 13,1953. Roland Kdhler, a graduate in business administration from
the University of Zurich, joined building materials group Hunziker (Switzerland) in 1988 as Head of Finance
and Administration and has transferred to Holcim as a management consultant in 1994. From 1995 to 1998,
he was Head of Corporate Controlling and from 1999 to end 2001 Head of Business Risk Management. Since
2002, he has headed Corporate Strategy & Risk Management. Effective January 1, 2005, Roland Kéhler has been
promoted to Corporate Strategy & Risk Manager.



Bernard Kueng, please refer to the section Area Management on page go for his biographical information.

Stefan Wolfensberger, Swiss national, born January 2, 1957. Stefan Wolfensberger has a docterate from the ETH
Zurich and also completed postgraduate studies at Stanford University in the USA, He joined Holcim in 1987

as a management consultant. From 1990 to 1994, he was assistant to a member of the Executive Committee.

He was subsequently appointed CEO of a Belgian construction materials group. From 1997, he headed the Mineral

Components/Product Development service function. He has been Head of Commercial Services since October 2004.

Effective January1, 2005, Stefan Wolfensberger has been promoted to Corporate Commercial Services Manager.
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Management discussion and analysis

2007 showed that the strategic acquisitions made in previous years

are paying off. Holcim achieved stable margins and solid results in all

regions, in spite of a slowdown in some markets and rising energy

and raw material prices.

This discussion and analysis of the Group's financial condition
and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the
shareholders' letter, the individual reports for the Group regions,
the consclidated financial statements and the notes thereon.
The quarterly reports contain additional information on the

regions and business perfermance.

Overview

The global economy was still in vigorous expansion in 2007,
despite the difficult situation in the US real estate market.
Large parts of the construction industry remain in a robust
state. This is particularly true of the emerging markets, and
especially of Asia. Increasing urbanization, major housing
shortages and the need to expand infrastructure are leading

to steady demand for construction materials.

Significant rises in energy prices increased the manufacturing
costs of the products sold. Average prices quoted for coal and
petcoke were 88 percent respectively some 3.5 percent higher
than the previous year. Only gas prices remained relatively
stable. The efforts made in past years to increase the use of
alternative fuels are paying off. The rise in fossil fue! prices
also led to an increase in electricity costs. Furthermore, the
trend in fuel prices affected not only production costs, but
also distribution costs. Efficiency gains and cost savings could
not entirely compensate for increases in production costs.

In most countries, we had to pass on rises in production costs
in the form of higher sales prices for cement, aggregates,

ready-mix concrete and asphalt.

The Group further consolidated its position in individual mar-
kets last year. This May, Holcim made an offer for the minority
shareholdings of 5t. Lawrence Cement Canada, Unanimously

approved by the Board of Directors of the Canadian company,

the transaction - worth a total of CAD 681 million - was
successfully completed at the end of July with the acquisition |
of all the outstanding shares. The shares were delisted from

the Toronto Stock Exchange on August 13, 2007. In addition,

Holcim further increased its stake in ACC and Ambuja |
Cements in india in the period under review, Under the Indian
takeover code, our acquisition of a share package from the ‘
founding family in the third quarter triggered a public offer |
to purchase a further 20 percent of the equity resulting in 1
a further purchase of 5.4 percent. As of December 31, 2007,
Holcim helds 43 percent of the share capital {voting rights}) of
ACC and 46 percent of Ambuja Cements.

At the beginning of June 2007, Holcim sold 85 percent of its !
54 percent investment in Group Holcim South Africa to a local
consortium. Now that the company meets all requirements in

the context of Black Economic Empowerment, it will be able

to position itself as one of South Africa’s leading suppliers

of construction materials. Holcim retains its ties with

the company through a technicat assistance agreement

and a 15 percent minority shareholding. Group Holcim

South Africa was deconsolidated as of June g, 2007, since

then it is accounted for using the equity method.

The difficult situation in the US real estate market left its
mark on the financial markets. Refinancing in the capital
markets became increasingly difficult over the course of

the year. Both the Fed and the European Central Bank (ECB}
responded to the current situation by making temporary
additional liquidity available. In the fourth quarter of 2007,
the ECB refrained from raising the prime rates; the US central
bank cut these rates by 75 basis points. During the year under
review, Holcim refinanced a volume of CHF 1 billion in the

capital markets.



Operating results

Sales volumes and principal key figures

January-December (12 months)

October-December (3 months)

2007 2006
|
Sales of céme.nt o 7 ~ million t _ J'I 7]49.6 140.7 )
Sales of mineral components  million t | 5.5 6.0
Sales of ag_g;'egates - ml-||IOI‘It 187.9 187.6
Sales of ready-mix concrete  millionm® 452 442
S;Es c;asphalt N _:Tillion t : ) 14.8 15.3
Net sales T million CHI;—} 2”;1’,052 23,969
Operat—in_g EBITDA - million CI-|7FW ! - 6:930 6,086
Operating EBTDAmargin % | 256 254
Oﬁéréting profitﬁ o miIIic;n CHF- ’ 5,024 4,385
Net income millio-n CHF-—E 4,545 2,719
Cashfiow
f_mciperating activities million CHF i 5,323 4,423

Currency fluctuations had a comparatively minor impact on
the consolidated financial statements in 2007 as in previous
years. The average dollar rate declined by some 4 percent,

whereas the 4.4 percent rise in the average euro rate largely

made up for this.

Sales volumes and net sales

Cement sales rose by 6.3 percent in the 2007 financial year to
149.6 million tonnes. Robust economic activity in Europe and
Latin America resulted in a positive trend. In North America,
however, the difficult market envirenment in residential
construction caused a decline in cement sales. Volumes in
Group region Africa Middle East were significantly higher.
With Group Holcim South Africa {2 million tonnes) factored
out, they grew by a total of 15.3 percent. Asia Pacific posted
the largest volume growth, with 9.9 million tonnes. Besides
the positive state of the construction markets, this sharp in-
crease is mainly due to the acquisitions of ACC and Ambuja

Cements in India in 2006.

Deliveries of aggregates rose by 0.2 percent t0 187.9 million
tonnes. With Group Holcim South Africa excluded, the figures
show an increase of 3.2 percent or 5.7 million tonnes. Europe
benefited from the sustained heavy requirement for construc-
tion materials and the first consolidation of Foster Yeoman

in the UK. This Group region achieved the largest increase

in absolute terms, with 13.4 million tonnes. Total volumes for
the Group as a whole were affected by the difficult American
market in 2007. Despite the acquisition of Meyer Material by

1% % | 2007 2006 % %
local ‘ local
currency I currency
+6.3 .8 369 03
83 | 13 16  -18.8
+0.2_ L 50.9 49.6 ;2.6
R I I
33 L a3 42 28
- _H
+129 #1131 6766 6455 148 445
139 4126 1590 1597 04 01
] s 27
+146 1351 1063 1104 37 =32
672 +660 | 688 769 =105 58
+203 4191, 2063 2075 06 0.3

Aggregate Industries US in mid-2006, North America posted a

decline of 8.2 million tonnes or 12.6 percent.

Voiumes of ready-mix concrete sold grew by 2.3 percent to
45.2 million cubic meters. With the exception of Europe,
which suffered a small decline of 1 percent, all Group

regions increased safes. With 1.2 millien cubic meters, Asia
Pacific posted the largest increase, followed by Latin America
with 0.5 million cubic meters.

The quarterly key figures are subject to strong seasonal
fluctuations. In Europe and North America in particular,

the weather conditions at the beginning and end of the year
have a major impact on construction activity — and hence

on the consolidated results.

Cement deliveries declined by 0.3 percent or 0.1 million tonnes
in the fourth quarter, With Group Holcim South Africa factored
out, there was an overall increase of 1.2 million tonnes or 3.3 per-
cent. This was mainly due to good business within the Asia
Pacific region, which posted a rise of 0.8 million tonnes or

5.1 percent, principally because of brisk construction activity

in India.




The development of aggregates sales was positive in the last
quarter. With Group Holcim South Africa (-2.2 million tonnes)
factored out, the increase totaled 3.5 million tonnes or 7.4 per-
cent. The downturn in the real estate market reduced sales
volumes in North America by 18.7 percent or 3.2 million tonnes,
though favorable prices and efficiency gains largely compen-

sated for the financial impact of volume reduction.

The trend in ready-mix concrete was also encouraging.
In the last quarter, deliveries rose once more by 1.8 percent.
With Group Holcim South Africa factored out, the increase

was as much as 5.5 percent.

In 2007, net sales increased by 12.9 percent to CHF 27,052 million.
Once again, internal growth was solid, at 8.1 percent. Europe
achieved an increase of 19.g percent to CHF 10,401 million,
mainly the UK, France, southeastern Europe and Russia con-
tributed to the increase. The construction materials industry

benefited from strong demand for residential construction,

Operating EBITDA
Operating EBITDA per region

accelerated infrastructure expansion and commercial and
industrial projects. In North America, net sales fell by 2.8 per-
cent to CHF 5,365 million. In Latin America, the economic
upward trend was firm, Brazil, Colombia, Ecuador and Argentina
making the largest contributions to a rise of g.1 percent

to CHF 4,010 million. Africa Middle East achieved sales of

CHF 1,831 million, an improvement - factoring out deconsoli-
dated Group Holcim South Africa — of 21.3 percent. Morocco and
Egypt posted significantly higher sales. The largest contribution,
however, came from Group region Asia Pacific, with growth of
32.6 percent or CHF 1,547 million. This increase in sales can be
attributed to the expanded scope of consclidation and to brisk

construction activity, most of all in India and Indonesia.

There was little change to individual product segment weight-
ings since the previous year. The breakdown of net sales at the
end of 2007 was as follows: cement 57.5 percent (2006: 56.8),

aggregates 10.7 percent {2006: 111}, other construction materi-

als and services 31.8 percent (2006: 32.1).

January-December (12 months}

October-December (3 months)

Million CHF 2007 2006 +% 1% 2007 2006 +% %

local local

currency currency

Europe 2,399 1,966 +22.0 +17.0 564 502 +12.4 +10.5

North America 999 1,033 =33 04 228 257 =11.3 -7.3

Latin America 1,256 1,244 +1.0 +4.8 324 289 +12.1 +19.6

Africa Middle East 653 692 -5.6 -4 118 180 -34.4 -34.1

Asia Pacific 1,844 1,366 +35.0 +29.5 442 433 +2..'I -1.5
Corporate/Eliminations (221) (215} - ) (86) (64) 7 )

Holcim Group 6,930 6,086 +13.9 +1 2.6" 1,580 1,597 -0.4 —-0.1-

In spite of a slowdown in construction activity in individual mar-
ket regions, the Group’s overall financial performance improved —
due to the successful strategy of geographical diversification.
Operating EBITDA rose by 13.9 percent to CHF 6,930 million
during the year under review. Constant rises in energy and
transportation costs were effectively offset by means of price

increases and improvements in operating efficiency.

Group region Europe achieved an increase in operating EBITDA
of 22 percent. The largest contribution came from the UK,
followed by Russia and southeastern Europe. The good
economic situation was evident in most countries, though

in Spain, Italy and Switzerland a certain degree of market

saturation was noted. in North America, the reduced sales

volumes were offset by increasing both sales prices and oper-
ating efficiency. Operating EBITDA therefore fell by a mere

3.3 percent to around CHF 1 billion. In Latin America [+1 percent),
rising energy costs and persistent tough competition in Brazil
were more than offset by improved performance in Colombia
and Ecuador. In Group region Africa Middle East, the deconsol-
idation of Group Holcim South Africa led to a 5.6 percent fall
in operating EBITDA. With Group Holcim South Africa's operat-
ing EBITDA of CHF 144 million factored out, the region posted
an increase of 26.9 percent. The increase in Asia Pacific totaled
35 percent, about one third of which can be attributed to the
expanded scope of consolidation in India. Apart from India,
Group companies in Indonesia and the Philippines contributed
to the improved result.




After factoring out the impact of the newly consolidated
companies and currency translation, internal growth of the
Group's operating EBITDA came to 10.8 percent - once again
significantly higher than the long-term target of 5 percent.

As a percentage of net sales, distribution and selling expenses
increased to 22.7 percent (2006: 22.4}. This rise is mainly due

to higher energy costs and associated rises in transport costs,
As a peicentage of net sales, administration expenses remained

stable at 6.7 percent.

Fourth-quarter operating EBITDA was 0.4 percent down
compared to the previous year. With Group Holcim South Africa
factored out, the Group reached overall growth of 4.7 percent.
In Europe, the increase was 12.4 percent, Russia and the UK
were the main contributors. in North America, the downturn
in the real estate market caused a decline of 11.3 percent,
primarily due to a softening demand in private residential
construction. Latin America recorded a substantial 12.1 percent
improvement in operating EBITDA in the last quarter, partly
due to rising prices in the Brazilian market. Asia Pacific posted

growth of 2.1 percent.

Operating EBITDA margin

The operating EBITDA margin increased slightly, from 25.4 per-
cent to 25.6. Europe improved by 0.4 percentage points, mainly
as a result of the encouraging market situation in Russia and
Azerbaijan. North America posted a fall of 0.1 percentage
points, having almost entirely made up for declining volumes
and the thereof resulting negative scaling effects by reducing
low-margin imports and increasing operating efficiency.

In Latin America, the margin fell by 2.6 percentage points,
mainly due to higher raw material and energy costs in Brazil.
Group regions Africa Middle East and Asia Pacific increased by
2.5 percentage points (excluding Group Holcim South Africa,
1.6 percentage points) and 0.5 percentage points respectively,
due to a robust demand for construction materials and a solid

price environment in many countries.

In the cement segment, the operating EBITDA margin was
steady at 32.6 percent. The margin rese in all Graup regions or
remained stable as was the case in North America; only Latin
America posted a small decline. The other segments also
remained constant. In the aggregates segment, the margin
saw a slight fall of 0.4 percentage points to 20.3 percent.

All Group regions, except North America, posted an improve-
ment. The UK recorded the strongest growth by far. The other

construction materials and services segment saw its margin

rise by 1 percentage point to 7 percent. All Group regions con-
tributed to the improvement in the EBITDA margin except for
Asia Pacific and Africa Middle East. Group Region Africa Middle
East {with Group Holcim South Africa factored out) generated

the strongest growth overall.

Net income

Net income rose by CHF 1,826 million to CHF 4,545 million
{2006: 2,719). The sharp improvement in consolidated net
income is largely due to the capital gain and the special
dividend from the sale of the investment in South Africa total-
ing CHF 1,260 millien and the increase of CHF 639 million in
operating profit to CHF 5,024 million (2006: 4,385). Changes
in the scope of consolidation increased Group net income by
CHF 88 million, while the currency effect added a further
CHF 31 million. Internal growth, not including the one-off
proceeds of the sale of Group Holcim South Africa, totaled

CHF 447 million.

85 percent of total net income was attributable to equity
helders of Holcim Ltd {2006: 77.4). The main reasons for the
rise over the previous year were the minority buyouts in
Canada and India and the disposal of Group Holcim South
Africa. Earnings per Holcim Ltd dividend-bearing registered
share climbed 72 percent in the year under review to CHF 14.86
{2006: 8.64). With the capital gain and the special dividend
from the sale of Group Holcim South Africa excluded, the
increase was 16 percent to CHF 10.02.

The effective tax rate in 2007 was 21 percent (2006: 28), With
the capital gain and the special dividend from South Africa
excluded, it was 27 percent. In the longer term, the Group tax
rate is expected to come slightly under 30 percent.

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from operating activities increased by 20.3 percent
to CHF 5,323 million. The improvement in the operating result
impacted positively on cash flow, while the CHF 148 million
increase in tax charges had a negative effect. After adjustment
for acquisitions and currency effects, cash flow from operating
activities excluding the special dividend received from Group
Holcim South Africa amounted to CHF 5,133 million. The cash
flow margin reached 19.7 percent in fiscal 2007 (2006:18.5).



Financing activities, investments and liquidity

Cash flow
January-December {12 months) October-December {3 months)
Million CHF 2007 2006 % % - 2007 2006 1% 1%
local local

currency currency
Cash flow from operating activities 5,323 4,423 +20.3 +19.1 2,063 2,075 -0.6 -0.3
Net capital expenditures to
maintain productive capacity
and to secure competitiveness {1,043) {1,062} -1.8 -23 (305) (423} -27.9 -27.6
Free cash flow 4,280 3,361 +27.3 +25.9 1,158 1,652 +6.4 +6.7
Ex;;nsion invesitimf-ants o - (2,245) {1,265) B ;77.5 +76.0 (886) {489) +81.i - +80.4
Fin:néial inve-stménts net o (2,277) (2,054) N -+1 0.9 -1-A14.47 (849) {457) ) +85.8 i +89.7 -
Dividends paid o (872)  (703)  +240 4387 (23) (64)  -641  -253
Financing {requirement) surplus (1,114} (661) +68.5 +99.6 0 642 -100.0 -105.3
Cash flow from financing activities 1,262 571 +121.0 +149.7 163 (909) -117.9 -120.4
In(De)crease in cash and cash equivalents _ 148 (90} -264.4 -216.7 163 (267) -161.0 ~156.5

investment activities

In the financial reporting year, cash flow used in investment
activities increased by CHF 1,184 million to CHF 5,565 million.
This rise is largely due to higher expansion investments

and an increase in investment in financial assets. Further
information on investment in financial assets can be found

on pages 120 to 122 of the Annual Report.

Holcim invested a net CHF 3,288 million (2006:2,327) in
production and other fixed assets in the last financial year.
Compared to the previous year, this represents an increase of
41.3 percent. This rise underscores Holcim'’s efforts to achieve
further growth not only by acquiring new companies, but also
by strengthening and expanding our positions in existing and
new markets, We also make every effort to ensure that all our
facilities measure up to state-of-the-art standards in terms of
both cost and environmental efficiency. The most important
current investment projects include the construction of new
cement plants in the US and Mexico, the expansion of a
cement plant in Russia and the construction of a new kiln line
in Romania. In addition, Holcim is selectively expanding its

capacities in the growth market of India.

Key investment projects

Campulung - new kiln line in Romania

Strong growth in the Romanian market led Holcim to increase
its investments in the country. n parallel with the construction
of the country's largest kiln line, additional investment is
being made in logistics and distribution - and alsc in grinding
capacity. We expect to complete the first stage in the second
quarter of 2008. The second stage is scheduled for completion
in 2009. Long-term annual cement capacity is 1.8 million

tonnes.

Ste. Genevieve — new cement plant in the US

Following an extensive environmental impact study and with
all the necessary permits in place, the construction of the

new cement plant in Ste. Genevieve County, Missouri (annual
capacity: 4 million tonnes), is progressing according to schedule.
Earth moving-work for the port and the future factory site has
been completed. All silos, the port and the premises are ready.
Holcim US is now focusing on the task of building the plant
facilities. This plant, the largest and most environmentally
efficient in the US, is scheduled to come on stream in 2009.



Shurovo - capacity expansion in Russia

In the first quarter of 2007, in order to create a sustainable
Russian base for Holcim called for in the fundamental strat-
egy, work hegan on the modernization and expansion of the
Shurovo cement plant. Project work during 2007 focused on
obtaining the necessary construction permits and conducting
the public tender process. As a result of doubling the annual
capacity to 2.1 million tonnes, Holcim will participate in Russia's
strong economic growth, and the modernization of the plant
will make a major contribution to improving environmental
protection. Occupational safety is also a key aspect of this

project, in keeping with our social responsibilities.

Hermosilio - new cement plant in Mexico

in view of Mexico's growth potential, Holcim has decided to
build a new cement plant near Hermosillo in the northwest
of the country, with an annual capacity of 1.6 million tonnes.
Starting in 2010, the new plant will be the ideal complement
to the existing production network in Mexico - giving Holcim

Apasco an even better national position.

India - expanding our market position

Our two Indian companies, ACC and Ambuja Cements, are
strengthening their position in the fast-growing Indian
market with several major investment projects that will be
completed in 2010. The approved projects will increase Group
production capacity by 6.9 millien tonnes of cement for ACC

and 7.5 million tonnes of cement for Ambuja Cements.

Investments in rationalizing and improving processes and
in environmental and occupational safety measures totaled
CHF 1,384 million {2006:1,282). The increase was due to a
combination of new acquisitions and higher spending

by the existing companies.

In connection with the successfully implemented Asset Reduc-
tion Program (ARP) in place since mid-2002, 2007 saw the sale
of more redundant assets. The book value of assets sold under
the ARP totaled CHF 192 million (2006: 252).

Group ROIC

The Group return on invested capital (ROIC) measures the
profitability of the capital employed. It is regarded as a key
indicator of operating profitability. The indicator is calculated
by expressing EBIT as a percentage of the average invested
capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents and marketable

securities).
Group ROIC
Million CHF '
EBIT'  Invested capital ROICin %
Previous Business Average
year year
2006 4610 29,693 34780 32236 143
2007 6549 “34,736 o - _3;6,357 .‘ 18.0

2007 6,549 37,934

'Earnings before interest and taxes.

In the last financial year, the ROIC rose from 14.3 percent to
18 percent. Most of this growth can be attributed to the
disproportionate increase in EBITDA and capital gains. If the
special dividend and capital gain from Group Holcim South
Africa {a total of CHF 1,260 million} is excluded, the ROIC is at
14.6 percent. Despite the strong rise in operating EBITDA, ROIC
showed only a slight increase of 0.3 percentage points. This

is mainly attributable to heavy investment in the expansion
of production capacities, which as a rule only come on stream

after a construction phase lasting two or three years.

Financing activity

In addition to cash flow from operating activities, the additional
debt capital was used to fund investments and refinance exist-
ing borrowings. The following significant transactions should
be mentioned:

CHF 400 million bond Holcim Ltd with a fixed interest rate of

3.125%, swapped into floating interest rates
at inception, and a term of 2007 to 2017.
CHF 250 million  bond Holcim Overseas Finance Ltd. with fixed

interest rate of 3%, swapped into floating
interest rates at inception, and a term of 2007
te 2013. Guaranteed by Holcim Ltd.

bond Holéim Financev(*Cal:ac;ai Inc. witI;a N
fixed interest rate of 5.9% and a term of 2007

to 2013, Guaranteed by Holcim Ltd.

CAD 300 million



In 2007, US dollar convertible bonds (0%, 2002-2017) with a
nominal value of USD 130 million and CHF convertible bonds
(1%, 2002-2012) with a nominal value of CHF 600 million were
converted into 8,237,465 newly issued, fully paid-in registered
shares of Holcim Ltd through the use of conditional share cap-
ital. As a result, shareholders’ equity rose by CHF 808 million.
After the majority of the US dollar and CHF convertible bonds
had been converted, Holcim exercised its right to redeem those

that were still outstanding.

Net financial debt

Despite heavy investment activity and acquisitions, net finan-
cial debt increased only slightly 1ast financial year. At the end
of the financial year, net financial debt totaled CHF 12,873 mil-
lion (2006:12,837). Most of the fluctuations during the year
were due to IFRS requirements regarding the treatment of

obligations entered into for the buyout of minority interests.

At the end of the last financial year, the ratio of net financial
debt to equity (gearing) reached 58.7 percent, Gearing was
reduced as a result of the higher equity base and the still
significant minority interests. At the end of the year, gearing
was below the target range for BBB+ debtors of 8o to

100 percent.

Net financial debt and total shareholders’ equity
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The other important financial ratios improved as a result of
the higher cash inflow. In 2007, the ratio of funds from opera-
tions (FFO) to net financial debt stood at 5o.2 percent (target
for BBB+ debtors: »25), adjusted to the special dividend and
the capital gain from South Africa the figure was 40.4 percent.
Including the capital gain and the special dividend from South
Africa, EBITDA net interest coverage reached 11X (target for
BBB+ debtors: »5), while EBIT net interest coverage reached
8.5X {target for BBB+ debtors: »3). With the capital gain and
the special dividend from South Africa factored out, EBITDA
and EBIT net interest coverage reached values of 9.3 and

6.9 respectively.

Holcim places great importance on its favorable credit ratings,
and therefore gives corresponding priority to achieving its
financial targets and retaining its investment grades. Detailed
information on the credit ratings can be found on page 31

of this Annual Report.

Financing profile

The average maturity of financial liabilities remained stable
at four years. Liabilities in US dollar increased. Liabilities in
US dollar, euro and British pound totaled 66.8 percent of total
financial liabilities. The average interest rate of the financial
liabilities as at December 31, 2007 was 6.1 percent, slightly
ahead of the previous year’s figure of 5 percent. This can be
attributed to the stable currency distribution of financial
liabilities. The average interest rates of financial liabilities
were as follows: US dollar: 5.4 percent, euro: 4.6 percent,
British pound: 6.9 percent.

Maturities of financial liabilities
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Liquidity

To secure liquidity, the Group holds a cash position of

CHF 3,372 miltion {2006: 3,223). As of December 31,2007,
unutilized credit lines amounting to CHF 8,194 million
(2006: 8,332) were also available {see also page 142). This
includes unused committed credit lines of CHF 5,471 million
{2006: 5.435).

Currency sensitivity

The Group operates in more than 70 countries, generating

by far the biggest part of its results in currencies other than
the Swiss franc. Only about 2.5 percent of net sales are gener-

ated in Swiss francs.

The impact of foreign exchange movements has little effect
on the consolidated accounts. As the Group produces a very
high propartion locally, most costs are also incurred in local
currencies. The effects of foreign exchange mavements are
therefore largely restricted to the translation of local financial
statements. In the last financial year, the balance was positive,
as the strength of the euro made up for the weakness of the
Us dotlar.

Sensitivity analysis US dollar

The currency effect of the US dolfar and the euro on the most
important key figures of the consolidated financial statements
and cash flow from operating activities is presented on the
basis of the following sensitivity analyses. The sensitivity
analysis only factors in those effects caused by the translation
of local financial statements into Swiss francs. Currency effects
from transactions executed locally cannot be reflected in

the simulation, Due to the fact that we produce locally
currency risk is, however, low. Since sales and the related
expenses are denominated in the same currency, they are by
nature protected from currency fluctuations. The impact of a
hypothetical decline in the value of the US dollar or the euro

against the Swiss franc by CHF 0.0 would be as follows:

USD/CHF USD/CHF tin
at1.20 at1.19 million CHF
Million CHF
Net sales 27,052 27,013 (39)
Operating EBITDA 6,930 6,919 (1)
Net inco;l';e 4,545 4,531 {14)
_Cash fioEém-;pereﬁgactivitie_s o o T o 5,323 5314 (9)-
Sensitivity analysis euro
EUR/CHF EUR/CHF tin
at 1.65 at 1.64 million CHF
Million CHF
Net sales - ) 27,052 27,025 (7)
Operating EBITDA N o i 6,930 6,924 (6)
Net i;'l_c;n; ) ) S o o S 4,545 4,542 (3)
Cast{fi@rém operati}lg_activiiies o T s - 5,323 5,319 i {4)



Consolidated statement of income of Group Holcim

Million CHF Notes 2007 2006 %
Net sales 5 27,052 23,969 +129
Proauction cost of goods sold 7 7 6 {14,073) (12,616)

Gross profit 12,979 11,353 +14.3
Di;at;ution andr:ellirrig expeﬁsfe; - o o 7 {6,150) {5,358) ‘
Ad;inistration e;penses - o o T B ) (1,805) (1,610}
Operating profit 5,024 4,385 +14.6
Other income - 7 10 1,242 97

Share of profit of associates 20 259 29
Financial income 1 227 188
Financial expenses 12 (1,008) (962}

Net income before taxes 5,746 3,797 +51.3
Inc_o-me taxes ) - v 13 {1,201} {1,078)
Neiincorne R . o o o 4,545 2,719 +67.2
Attributable to:

Equity heolders of Holcim Ltd ~ - 3,865 2,104 +83.7
Minority interest 680 615 +106
CHF

Eafnings per dividénd—bearing share' 15 14.86 8.64 +72.0
Fuli)[ diluted ea_rﬁi11gs per sha[e_‘ _ __ } - 15 14,73 8.50 +733
Million CHF

Ope.rating EBITDA? - - _ 9 ] 6,930 6,086 +13.9
EBITDA* 8,468 6,333 +33.7

'EPS calculation based on net income attributable to equity holders of Holcim Ltd weighted average number of shares.

! Operating profit CHF 5,024 million (2006: 4,385) before depreciation and amortization of operating assets CHF 1,906 million {2006:1,701).
' Net income CHF 4,545 million (2006: 2,719} before interest earned on cash and marketable securities CHF 203 mitlion (2006: 149), financial expenses
CHF 1,006 million (2006: 962), taxes CHF 1,201 million {2006: 1,078) and depreciation and amortization CHF 1,919 millicn (2006: 1,723).




Consolidated balance sheet of Group Holcim

Million CHF Notes 31.12.2007 31.12.2006
Cash and cash equivalents 16 3,345 3,208
Marketable s'eﬁuriti‘es 27 15
;c_ou—n_ts receivable_ - - ) ) 1; 4,073 3,659
lnventories B TS 2,535 2,282
l;n::pa"id_expen_ses a;d otf-;e; cu;ﬁt_asset-s - S o 332 583
Total current assets ) ) _ _ i 10,372 9,747
Financial assets ) 19 639 689
Investments in associates 20 809 127
Property, plant and equipment 22 25,01 23,831
Intangible and other assets 23 11,076 9419
6eferred tax assets N 29 304 289
'I'_otal long-term assets B L _ _ N 37,839 34,955
Total assets 48,211 44,702
Trade accounts payable 25 2,924 2,568
Current financial liabilities 26 3,616 3,590
Current tax liabilities 332 271
Qther current-liabilities 1,961 2,064
Short-term provisions ) 30 ] 192 128
Tc_'t_al cErLentEabilities o o _ _ 9,025 8,621
Lbng-ter'r; fi;;nﬁial-liabilities - o - ) 27— 12,629 12,470
L';;fine;l benefitroblig-ati-ons o S B ) 31‘7 7 416 488
Deferred tax liabilities o ) 29 2,900 3,023
Long-term provisions 30 1,296 1,375
Total long-term liabilities 17,241 17,356
Total liabilities 26,266 25,977
Sgaré ca*;itaf_A N S - o B 3"41_ 527 S11
Ca—pital_;'u-rplu: T T o - 6,879 6,085
Treasury shares T T 34 (67) (62)
Re_serves B - ) S : 11,443 8,643
Total equity attributable to shareholders of Holcim Ltd 18,782 15,177
Minority interest - 35 3,163 3,548
Total shareholders’ equity 21,945 18,725
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 48,211 44,702




Statement of changes in consolidated equity of Group Holcim

Million CHF

Share
capital

Capital

surplus

Treasury
shares

Equity as at December 31, 2005
Currency translation effects
Taxes related to equity items
Change in fair value

— Available-for-sale securities

- Cash flow hedges

- Net investment hedges

Realized gain {loss) through income statement

- Available-for-sale securities

- Cash flow hedges

460

3,967

(s9)

Net income {loss) recognized directly in equity

Net income recognized in consolidated statement of income

Total recognized net income
Share capital increase
Conversion of convertible bonds
Dividends

Change in treasury shares net
Share-based remuneration
Capital repaid to minorities
New minorities assumed

Buyout of minorities

42

1,668
440

10

41

(a4)

Total of other equity movements

51

2,118

(3)

Equity as at December 31, 2006

511

6,085

(62)

Equity as at December 31, 2006
;Currency translation effects
;Taxes related to equity items
'_Change in fair value
:-—Available-for-sale securities

- Cash flow hedges

— Net investment hedges

Realized gain {loss) through income statement

~ Available-for-sale securities

= Cash flow hedges

6,085

(62)

Net income {loss) recognized directly in equity

Net income recognized in consolidated statement of income

Total recognized net income
:Share capital increase
Conversion of convertible bonds
Dividends

Change in treasury shares net
Share-based remuneration
Capital repaid to minorities
New minorities assumed

Buyout of minorities

16

792

(18}
13

Total of other equity movements

16

794

(5)

Equity as at December 31, 2007

527

6,879

(67)



Attributable to equity holders of Holcim Ltd Minority Total

interest shareholders’

equity

Retained Available-for-sale Cash flow Currency Total
earnings equity reserve hedging translation reserves
reserve effects

8,170 m (25) (1,045) 7,099 2,783 14,250

(250} (250) (369) (618)

26 26 26

2 2 2

20 20 20

2 2 2

4 20 (224) {200) (369) {(569)

2,104 2,104 615 2,719

2,104 4 20 {224) 1,904 246 2,150

1,710

20 20 510

(382) (382} (315) (697)

2 2 (42)

10

{548) {548)

1,770 1,770

(388) {388)

(360) (360) 519 2,325

9,914 3 {5) (1,269) 8,643 3,548 18,725
9,914 3 (5 (1,269) 8,643 3,548 18,725 '
(555) (555) 105 (450)
6 6 6,
6 (555) (549) 105 {444)

3,865 3,865 680 4,545
3,865 6 (555) 3,316 785 4,101
] 808
(522) (522) (332) (854)
6 6 (2)
15
(1) (1)
(74) (19) |
(753) (753) .

{516) (516) (1,170) (881)
13,263 - 3 1 - (,829) 11,443 3,163 21,945




Consolidated cash flow statement of Group Holcim

Million CHF Notes 2007 2006
Net income before taxes 5,746 3,797
Other income l N ) {1.242) (97}
Sharé of profit of associates ) B B ] o (259) {89)
Financgrexpenses net B - . ) S B B 779 774
Operating profit 5,024 4,385
Depre;is:tion anci—amor-tiz_afion of opera_ting as_sets o o N Su - 1,906 1,701
Othe; non-cash .items ' a o _ o 187 224
Change in net working capital (92) {219)
Cash generated from operations 7,025 6,091
Dividends received 233 I
Interest received 234 187
Interest -paid ) ) (972) (908)
Income taxes paid - o - B {1,144) (996)
Other ;xbenses . o o B B o B o (53) (22)
Cash flqw from operating activities (A} ) 5,323 4,423
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 38 (3,629) (2,547)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 38 341 220
Purchase of financial assets, intangible and other assets 38 (3,181) {2,760}
Disposal of financial assets, intangible and otﬁer assets 7 38 904 706
Cash flow used in investing activities (B) B (5,565) (4,381)
Dividends paid oﬁ a;rdinary sharés N B o T o o (522) (382)
Divide-n;:Is paid to-minori}S; shareho[;!e;s o o I ) T {(350) {285)
Div.idends paid on preference share;of subsidiaries S 0 (36)
Capital increase v h (8) 1,705
Capital repaid to minority interests (11) (548)
Movements of treasury shares net (12) (42)
Increase in current financial liabilities net 406 1,162
Proceeds from long-term financial liabilities - B . 5314 4,636
kepayment of Ioné:term-%i.;anfial Ii_a-bilities o T B o _ {4,427) (6,342)
Cash flow (used in) from_financlng activities (C) o L 390 (132)
in{De)crease in cash and cash equivalents (A_+_B_+C) 148 (90)
Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1 16 3,208 3,332
In{De}crease in cash and cash equivalents 148 (80)
Currency translation effects o {11) (34)

16 3,208

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31
The conversions of the convertible bonds are disclosed in
nate 34. In 2007, the position capital increase includes the

costs for the conversions of the convertible bonds.

3,345



Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS).

Adoption of revised International Financial Reporting

Standards and new interpretations

In 2007, Group Holcim adopted the following revised standards
and new interpretations relevant to the Group which became
effective from January 1, 2007:

Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:

Capital Disclosures

IFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
IFRIC 7 ) Ap-;ﬁlying the Restatement Approacﬁ
under {AS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2 R
IFRICTO Interim Financial REF;O;EU';; -

and Impairment

These revised and new standards and interpretations, except
for IFRIC 7, IFRIC 8 and IFRIC 10, are disclosure-related only.

In 2008, Group Helcim will adopt the following new inter-
pretations relevant to the Group:

IFRIC 11

IFRS 2 — Group and
Treasury Share Transactions
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit

Assetf, Minimum Funding Require-
ments and their Interaction

The effect of applying IFRIC 11 will have no impact on the
Group. The Group is in the process of evaluating IFRIC 14 but
does not expect it to have a material impact on the Group's

financial statements.

In 20049, Group Holcim will adopt the following revised and

new standards relevant to the Group:

I1AS 1 (revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

1A5 23 Borrowing Co;ts
IFRS 2 (amended) Share-based payment
IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The revised [AS 1 and the new FRS B are disclosure-related
only. The amendment to IAS 23 will have no impact on the
consolidated financial statements as the accounting policy
already specify capitalization of attributable interest costs.
The amendment to IFRS 2 (amended) clarifies that vesting
conditions are either service conditions or performance
conditions. The effect of applying the amendment will have

no impact on the Group's financial statements.

in 2010, Group Holcim will adopt the following revised
standards relevant to the Group:

IAS 27 (revised)

Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements
IFRS 3 (reviged) éusr’ness Combirr.:ationsr

According to |AS 27 {revised), changes in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control will be
accounted for as an equity transaction. The Group is in the
process of evaluating the impact on future transactions. The
amendment to IFRS 3 (revised) introduces several changes such
as the choice to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at its proportionate interest

in the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the accounting for
step acquisitions as well as the treatment of transaction costs.
The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact on future

business combinations.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRS requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets, liabilities and related disclosures at the date of the
financial statements. These estimates are based on manage-
ment's best knowledge of current events and actions that the
Group may undertake in the future. However, actual results

could differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reason-

able under the circumstances.



The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates wili, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year relate primarily to goodwill, and to a
lesser extent defined benefit obligations, deferred tax assets,
long-term provisions, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and disclosure of contingent liabiiities at the
balance sheet date. The cost of defined benefit pension plans
and other post-employment benefits is determined using
actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making
assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on
plan assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans,
such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty (note 31}.
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered

any impairment in accordance with its accounting policy.

The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have

been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (note 23). All other
estimates mentioned above are further detailed in the corre-

sponding disclosures.

Scope of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements comprise those of
Holcim Ltd and of its subsidiaries, including joint ventures
and associated companies. The list of principal companies

is presented in the section “Principal companies”.

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries, which are those entities in which the Group has
an interest of more than one half of the voting rights or other-
wise has the power to exercise control over the operations,

are consolidated. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group and are no longer

consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Alt intercompany transactions and balances between Group

companies are eliminated.

It is common practice for the Group to write put options and
acquire call aptions in connection with the remaining shares
held by the minority shareholders both as part of and outside
a business combination. In such cases, the present vatue of the
redemption amount of the put option is recognized as a finan-
cial liability with any excess over the carrying amount of the

minority interest recognized as goodwill. To the extent that

the Group has a present ownership interest, no earnings are
attributed to minority interests. The financial liability is sub-
sequently measured at amortized cost. Effects of changes in

expected cash flows are charged against goodwill.

The Group’s interest in jointly controlled entities is consoli-
dated using the proportionate method of consolidation. Under
this method, the Group records its share of the joint ventures’
individual income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash
flows in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line
basis. All transactions and balances between the Group and
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the joint ventures.

Investments in associated companies are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. These are companies over
which the Group generally holds between 20 and 50 percent
of the voting rights and has significant influence but does not
exercise control. Goodwill arising on the acquisition is in-
cluded in the carrying amount of the investment in associated
companies. Equity accounting is discontinued when the carry-
ing amount of the investment together with any long-term
interest in an associated company reaches zero, unless the
Group has in addition either incurred or guaranteed additional

obligations in respect of the associated company.

Foreign currency translation

Income statements of foreign entities are translated into the
Group's reporting currency at average exchange rates for

the year and balance sheets are translated at exchange rates

ruling on December 31.

Goodwill arising an the acquisition of a foreign entity is ex-
pressed in the functional currency of the foreign operation

and is translated at the closing rate.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the ex-
change rates prevailing at the date of the transactions; gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the in-
come statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying

cash flow hedges.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items that form
part of an entity’s net investment in a foreign operation are
reclassified to equity (currency translation adjustment) in the

consolidated financial statements and are only released to



the income statement on the disposal of the foreign operation.
The individual financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic envirenment in which the entity operates (“the

functional currency”).

Segment information
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s

geographical and business segments.

The primary segment reporting format, which reflects the
management organization, is presented by geographical area,

based on the location of assets.

Secondary information is reported by business segments and
is defined as strategic activities focusing on the delivery of a
range of products or services to create value for customers,
The segmentation comprises cement, aggregates and other

construction materials and services,

Transfer prices between business segments are set on an
arms-length basis in a manner similar to transactions with
third parties. Segment revenue and segment result include
transfers between business segments. Those transfers are

eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are readily convertible into a known amount
of cash with original maturities of three months or less. Cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in hand,
deposits held on call with banks, other short-term highly liquid

investments and bank overdrafts.

Marketable securities

Marketable securities consist primarily of debt and equity
securities which are traded in liguid markets and are classified
as available-for-sale. They are carried at fair value with all fair
value changes recorded in equity until the financial asset is
either impaired or disposed of at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in equity Is transferred to

net income for the period.

Accounts receivable
Trade accounts receivable are carried at original invoice
amount less an estimate made for doubtful debts based on

a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined by using the weighted average cost
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress com-
prises raw materials and additives, direct labor, other direct
costs and related production overheads. Cost of inventories
includes transfers from equity of gains or losses on qualifying

cash flow hedges relating to inventory purchases.

Financial assets

Financial assets consist of (a) investments in third parties,

{b) long-term receivables from associates, {c} iong-term receiv-
ables from third parties, and [d) long-term derivative assets.
Investments in third parties are classified as available-for-sale
and long-term receivables from associates and third parties
are classified as loans and receivables. Long-term derivative
assets are regarded as held for hedging unless they do not
meet the strict hedging criteria under IAS 39 Financial instru-
ments: Recognition and Measurement, in which case they will

be classified as held for trading.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on trade
date, which is the date that the Group commits to purchase
or selt the asset. Purchase cost includes transaction costs,
except for derivative instruments. Loans and receivables are
measured at amortized cost. Available-for-sale investments
are carried at fair value, while held-to-maturity investments
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of available-for-sale investments are included in eduity
until the financial asset is either impaired or disposed of, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized

in equity is transferred to net profit and loss for the period.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is valued at acquisition or
construction cost less depreciation and impairment loss.
Cost includes transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges. Depreciation is charged so as to
write off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the
following bases:

Land h - No de;efié-ti(;n exce;); on land
with raw material reserves
20 to 4b years

10to 30 years

Buildings and installations
Machinery

Furniture, vehicles and tools 3 to 10 years



Costs are only included in the asset’s carrying amount when
it is probable that economic benefits associated with the item
witl flow to the Group in future periods and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. Costs include the initial esti-
mate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located. All other repairs and
maintenance expenses are charged to the income statement

during the period in which they are incurred.

Mineral reserves, which are included in the class “land” of
property, plant and equipment, are valued at cost and are
depreciated based on the physical unit-of-production method

over their estimated commercial lives.

Costs incurred to gain access to mineral reserves are capital-
ized and depreciated over the life of the quarry, which is based
on the estimated tonnes of raw material to be extracted from

the reserves.

Interest cost on borrowings to finance construction projects
which last longer than one year are capitalized during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare

the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants received are deducted from property, plant
and equipment and reduce the depreciation charge accordingly.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classi-
fied as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired
through a finance lease is capitalized at the date of inception
of the lease at the present value of the minimum future lease
payments. The corresponding lease obligations, excluding
finance charges, are included in either current or long-term

financial liabilities.

For sale and lease-back transactions, the book value of the
related property, plant or equipment remains unchanged.
Proceeds from a sale are included as a financing liability and
the financing costs are allocated over the term of the lease in
such a manner that the costs are reported over the relevant

periods.

Non-current assets {or disposal groups) classified

as held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held
for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and

fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary,
associate or joint venture at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
on acquisitions of subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates is included in investments in associates. Goodwill
that is recognized as an intangible asset is tested annually for
impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment

losses.

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the
related goodwill is included in the determination of profit or

loss on disposal.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose

of impairment testing (note 23}.

In the event that Holcim acquires a minority interest in a
subsidiary, goodwill is measured at cost, which represents
the excess of the purchase consideration given over Holcim’s

additional interest in the bock value of the net assets acquired.

If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized

directly in the income statement.

Computer software

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Group and which will
probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond

one year are recagnized as intangible assets.



Expenditures which enhance or extend the performance of
computer software programs beyond their original specifica-
tions are capitalized and added to the original cost of the
software. Computer software development costs recognized as
assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their

useful lives, but not exceeding a period of three years.

Other intangible assets
Expenditure on acquired patents, trademarks and licenses is
capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives, but not exceeding 20 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there
is any indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
non-financial asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual non-
financial asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the smallest cash generating unit to which the non-finan-

cial asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of a non-financial asset or cash gen-
erating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the non-financial asset or cash gener-
ating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment

losses are recognized immediately in the income statement.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or cash generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount.
However, this increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognized for that non-financial asset or cash gen-
erating unit in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognized immediately in the income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether
there is any indication that a financial asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured
at amortized cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the future esti-
mated cash flows discounted at the origial effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through

the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is

recognized in profit or loss.

If.in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortized cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal

of animpairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Animpairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial
asset is calculated by reference to its fair value. Individually
significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an

individual basis,

In relation to accounts receivables, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence {(such as the prob-
ability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the
amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The
carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of
an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognized when

they are assessed as uncollectible.

Long-term financial liabilities

Bank loans acquired and non-convertible bonds issued are
recognized initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction
costs incurred. Subsequently, bank loans and non-convertible
bonds are stated at amortized cost using the effective interest
method with any difference between proceeds {net of trans-
action costs) and the redemption value being recognized in

the income statement over the term of the borrowings.

Upon issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability portion is determined using a market interest rate

for an equivalent non-convertible bond; this amount is carried
as a long-term liability on the amortized cost basis using the
effective interest method until extinguishment on conversion
or maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option which is recognized and
included in shareholders’ equity; the value of the conversion

option is not changed in subsequent periods,

Long-term derivative liabilities are regarded as held for hedging
unless they do not meet the strict hedging criteria under
IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement,

in which case they will be classified as held for trading.




Financial liabilities that are due within 12 months after the
balance sheet date are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability until more than 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

in the financial statements. Tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date are used to determine the

deferred tax expense.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which temporary differences or unused tax losses can be
utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temparary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures except where the Group is able to control
the distribution of earnings from these respective entities

and where dividend payments are not expected to occur in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is charged ar credited in the income statement,
except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax is treated accordingly.

Site restoration and other environmental provisions

The Group provides for the costs of restoring a site where a legal
or constructive obligation exists. The cost of raising a provision
before exploitation of the raw materials has commenced is
included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated
over the tife of the site. The effect of any adjustments to the
pravision due to further environmental damage is recorded
through operating costs over the life of the site to reflect the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obliga-
tion at balance sheet date. Changes in the measurement of a
provision that result from changes in the estimated timing or
amount of cash outflows, or a change in the discount rate,

are added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset as
appropriate in the current period. All provisions are discounted

to their present value based on a long-term borrowing rate,

Emission rights

The initial allocation of emission rights granted is recognized
at nomina! amount (nil value). Where a Group company has
emissions in excess of the emission rights granted, it will
recognize a pravision for the shortfall based on the market
price at that date. The emission rights are held for compliance
purposes only and therefore the Group does not intend to
speculate with these in the open market.

Other provisions

A provision is recognized when there exists a legal or construc-
tive obligation arising from past events, it is probable that

an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can

be made of this amount.

Employee benefits - Defined benefit plans

Some Group companies provide defined benefit pension plans
for employees. Professionally qualified independent actuaries
value the funds on a regular basis. The obligation and costs

of pension benefits are determined using the projected unit
credit method. The projected unit credit method considers
each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build
up the final obligation. Past service costs are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the amended
benefits become vested, Gains or losses on the curtailment

or settlement of pension benefits are recognized when the

curtailment or setilement occurs.

Actuarial gains or losses are amortized based on the expected
average remaining working lives of the participating employ-
ees, but only to the extent that the net cumulative unrecog-
nized amount exceeds 10 percent of the greater of the present
value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets at the end of the previous year. The pension obliga-
tion is measured at the present value of estimated future cash
flows using a discount rate that is similar to the interest rate
on high quality corporate bonds where the currency and terms
of the corporate bonds are consistent with the currency and

estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

A net pension asset is recorded only to the extent that it does
not exceed the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
cantributions to the plan and any unrecognized net actuarial

losses and past service costs.




Employee benefits - Defined contribution plans

In addition to the defined benefit plans described above, some
Group companies sponsor defined contribution plans based
on local practices and regulations. The Group's contributions
to defined contribution plans are charged to the income state-

ment in the periad to which the contributions relate.

Employee benefits - Other long-term employment benefits
Other long-term employment benefits include long-service
leave or sabbatical leave, medical aid, jubilee or other long-
service benefits, long-term disability benefits and, if they are
not payable wholly within twelve manths after the year end,
profit sharing, bonuses and deferred compensation.

The measurement of these obligations differs from defined
benefit plans in that all actuarial gains and losses are recog-

nized immediately and no coerridor approach is applied.

Employee benefits - Equity compensation plans

The Group operates varicus equity-settled share-based com-
pensation plans. The fair value of the employee services re-
ceived in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is
recognized as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the equity instru-
ments granted. The amounts are charged to the income state-
ment over the relevant vesting periods and adjusted to reflect
actual and expected levels of vesting (note 31).

Minority interests

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and
net assets not held by the Group and are presented separately
in the consolidated statement of income and within equity in

the consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
enterprise and the amount of the revenue can be measured
reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consider-
ation received net of sales taxes and discounts. Revenue from
the sale of goods is recognized when delivery has taken place
and the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership has been

completed.

Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis that reflects
the effective yield on the asset. Dividends are recognized when
the shareholder's right te receive payment is established.

Certain activities of the Group are construction contract
driven. Consequently contract revenue and contract costs
are recognized in the income statement on the percentage
of completion method, with the stage of completion being

measured by reference to actual work performed to date.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities arise from conditions or situations
where the outcome depends on future events. They are

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,

Financial instruments
Information about accounting for derivative financial
instruments and hedging activities is included in the section

“financial risk management”.



financial risk management

Financial risk factors - General risk management approach

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including the effect of changes in debt structure and equity
market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest
rates. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to mini-
mize potential adverse effects on the financial performance of
the Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments
such as foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps to
hedge certain exposures. Therefore, the Group does not enter
into derivative or other financial transactions which are unre-
lated to its operating business. As such, a risk-averse approach

is pursued.

Financial risk management within the Group is governed by
policies approved by Group management. It provides princi-
ples for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk,
counterparty risk, use of derivative financial instruments and

investing excess liquidity.

Financial risk factors — Market risk

Holcim is exposed to market risk, primarily relating to foreign
exchange and interest rate risk. Management actively moni-
tors these exposures. To manage the volatility relating to
these exposures, Holcim enters into a variety of derivative
financial instruments. The Group's objective is to reduce,
where appropriate, fluctuations in earnings and cash flows
associated with changes in foreign exchange and interest rate
risk. To manage liquid funds, it might write call options on
assets it has or it might write put options on positions it wants
to acquire and has the liquidity to acquire. Molcim, therefore,
expects that any loss in value of those instruments generally
would be offset by increases in the value of the underlying

transactions.

Financial risk factors — Liquidity risk

Group companies need a sufficient availability of cash to meet
their obligations. Individual companies are responsible for
their own cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash
deficits, subject to guidance by the Group and, in certain

cases, for approval at Group level.

The Group monitors its liquidity risk by using a recurring
tiquidity planning tool and maintains sufficient reserves of
cash, unused credit lines and readily realizable marketable
securities to meet its liquidity requirements at all times.

In addition, the strong international creditworthiness of the
Group allows it to make efficient use of international financial

markets for financing purposes.

Financial risk factors — Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and
market value movements of its debt portfolio related to
changes in market interest rates. Given the Group's substan-
tial borrowing position, interest rate exposure is mainly ad-
dressed through the steering of the fixed/floating ratio of
debt. To manage this mix, Holcim may enter into interest rate
swap agreements, in which it exchanges periodic payments,
based on notional amounts and agreed-upon fixed and vari-

able interest rates.

Financial risk factors - Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and therefore is exposed
to foreign exchange risks arising primarily from USD, GBP and
EUR but also from various currency exposures in currencies
from Europe, North America, Latin America, Africa Middle East
and Asia Pacific.

The translation of local balance sheets and statements of
income into the Group reporting currency leads to currency
translation effects. The Group may hedge certain net invest-
ments in foreign entities with foreign currency borrowings

or other instruments. Hedges of net investments in foreign
entities are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. To the
extent that the net investment hedge is effective, all foreign
exchange gains or losses are recognized in equity and included

in cumulative translation differences.

Due to the local nature of the construction materials business,
transaction risk is limited. However, for many Group compa-
nies, income will be primarily in local currency whereas debt
servicing and a significant amount of capital expenditures
may be in foreign currencies. As a consequence thereof,
subsidiaries may enter into derivative contracts which are
designated as either cash flow hedges or fair value hedges,

as appropriate, but which does not include the hedging of

forecasted transactions as it is not considered economical.

Financial risk factors — Equities and securities risk
in general, the Group does not hold or acquire any shares
or options on shares or other equity products, which are not

directly related to the business of the Group.




Financial risk factors - Capital structure

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to secure the
Group's ongoing financial needs to continue as a going concern
as well as to cater for its growth targets in order to provide
returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain a cost-efficient and risk-optimized capital structure.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjust-
ments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions, its
business activities, investment and expansion program and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to main-
tain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

sharehalders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital, among others, on the basis of bath
the ratio of funds from operations as a percentage of net finan-
cial debt and gearing.

Funds from operations is calculated as net income plus
depreciation and amortization as shown in the consolidated
statement of income. Net financial debt is calculated as
financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and mar-

ketable securities as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

Gearing is calculated as net financial debt divided by total
sharehaolders’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance

sheet.

During 2007, the Group’s target, which was unchanged from
2006, was to maintain a ratio of funds from operations as a
percentage of net financial debt of at least 25 percent and

a gearing in the range of no mere than 100 percent in order

to maintain a solid investment grade rating.

The increase in the ratio funds from operations/net financial
debt was mainly caused by significantly increased net income

and the conversion of convertible bonds into equity.

The decrease in the gearing arose largely as a resuit of higher
total shareholders’ equity. The shareholders’ equity increased
by 17.2 percent during 2007 mainly as a consequence of

significantly increased net income and the conversions of the

convertible bonds.

Million CHF 2007 2006
Net income 4,545 2,719
Depreciation and amortization 1,919 1,723
Funds from operations 6,464 4,442
Ffir;-an-cialiabiliti_e; 7 7 N o ) ) i - 16,245 16,060
Ca; an;:'ash e_q_uivalet;t_s a'mi };laraablf;;ecurifiés - o o ) ) 7 (3,372_) (3,223)
Net financial debt 12,873 12,837
Fun_ds frgﬁr_a operations/net financial debt 50.2% 34.6%
Million CHF 2007 2006
Financial liabilities 16,245 16,060
Cash and ;ash eduivalents and markefable se-curities ) V (3,372) (3.223)
N_eifinancial debt R 12,873 12,837
Tot-al sh-a:elholde‘r‘s' equity 7 - ) ] ) ) ) 21,945 18,725
Gearing 68.6%

58.7%



Financial risk factors - Credit risk

Credit risks arise from the possibility that customers may not
be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this
risk the Group periodically assesses the financial reliability of

customers.

Credit risks, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, are con-
stantly monitored. Counterparties to financial instruments
consist of a large number of major financial institutions.

The Group does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet
their abligations, given their high credit ratings. In addition,
Holcim has no significant concentration of credit risk with any

single counterparty or group of counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset, including derivative

financial instruments, in the balance sheet,

Accounting for derivative financial instruments

and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognizing the
resulting gain or loss is dependent on the nature of the item
being hedged. On the date a derivative contract is entered
into, the Group designates certain derivatives as either (a)

a hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability

{fair value hedge) or (b} a hedge of a particular risk associated
with a recognized asset or liability, such as future interest
payments on floating rate debt {cash flow hedge) or (¢} a hedge
of a foreign currency risk of a firm commitment {cash flow

hedge) or (d) a hedge of a net investment in a foreign entity.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges and that are highly effective
are recorded in the income statement, along with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that is attrib-
utable to the hedged risk.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges and that are highly effective
are recognized in equity. Where the firm commitment results
in the recognition of an asset, for example, property, plant and
equipment, or a liability, the gains or losses previously de-
ferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in
the initial measurement of the non-financial asset or liability.
Otherwise, amounts deferred in equity are transferred to the

income statement and classified as revenue or expense in the

same periods during which the cash flows, such as interest
payments, or hedged firm commitments, affect the income

statement.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as net investment hedges and that are highly ef-
fective are recognized in equity and included in cumulative
translation differences. The amounts deferred in equity are
transferred to the income statement on disposal of the for-
eign entity.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective eco-
nomic hedges under the Group's risk management policies,
may not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific rules
in 1AS 3g. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instru-
ments that do not qualify for hedge accounting under 1AS 39

are recognized immediately in the income statement.

When a hedging instrument is sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting under 1AS 39,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time re-
mains in equity until the committed transaction occurs. How-
ever, if a committed transaction is no longer expected to oc-
cur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is
immediately transferred to the income statement. In the case
of a fair value hedge, however, the adjustment to the carrying
amount of the hedged item is amortized to net profit or loss
from the moment it ceases to be adjusted for in changes to

fair value, with it being fully amortized by maturity date.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objective and strategy for un-
dertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes
linking all derivatives designated as hedges to specific assets
and liabilities or to specific firm commitments or to invest-
ments in foreign entities. The Group also documents its as-
sessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of hedged items including translation gains and losses

in hedged foreign investments.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for
hedging purposes are disclosed in note 21 and 28. Movements
in the cash flow hedging reserve and available-for-sale equity
reserve are shown in the statement of changes in consolidated

equity of Group Holcim,




Fair value estimation

The fair value of publicly traded derivatives and available-for-
sale assets is generally based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The fair value of interest rate swaps is
calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts

is determined using forward exchange market rates at the

balance sheet date.

In assessing the fair value of non-traded derivatives and other
financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date. Other techniques, such
as option pricing models and estimated discounted value

of future cash flows, are used to determine fair values for the

remaining financial instruments.

The amortized cost for financial assets and liabilities with a
maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate

their fair values.




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Changes in the scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation has been affected mainly by the
following additions and disposals made during 2007 and

2006

Disposed of in 2007
Group Holcim South Africa

Effective as at

fune 5, 2007

Newly included in 2006

UK: Foster Yeoman Limited
USA: Meyer Material Company
fndia: Ambuja Cements Ltd.
India: ACC Limited

On June 5, 2007, Helcim disposed of 85 percent of its direct
interest in the parent of the Group Holcim South Africa in the

context of a Black Economic Empowerment transaction.

Since the date of the disposal, Group Holcim South Africa has
been accounted for as an associate based on its 15 percent
interest In accordance with IAS 28 using the equity method of

accounting due to significant influence.

Assets and liabilities of Group Holcim South Africa

at the date of disposal

Million CHF

Cash and cash equivalents 66
Other current assets 165
Property, plant and equipment 298
Other assets 30
Short-term liabilities (169)
Long-term provisions (54)
Other long-term liabilities {62)
Net assets 74
Minority interest (154)
Net assets disposed 120
Total selling price 1,278
Cash 713
Loan notes 565

The sale of the shareholding resulted in a capital gain of
CHF 110 million. Additionally, a special dividend of CHF 150 million
net was received from the Group Holcim South Africa.

Effective as at
September 7, 2006
July 217, 2006

May 3, 2006
January 24, 2006

Business combinations individually not material are included in

aggregate in note 38.




On September 7, 2006, Holcim acquired, through its wholly
owned subsidiary Aggregate Industries Holdings Limited, the
entire issued share capital of Foster Yeoman Limited, a privately-

held UK heavy building materials group.

The identifiable assets and liabilities arising from the acquisi-

tion are as follows;

Assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition

of Foster Yeoman Limited (consolidated)

Million CHF Fair value Carrying
amount

Current assets 153 153

Property, plant and equipment - . 662 230

Other assets R —7 30

Short-term liabilities o (21-3) (113)

Long-term provisions - {1 1-0) {43)

Other long-term liabilities (141) (139)

Net assets 298 118

Minority interest 0

Net assets acquired 298

Total purchase consideration {cash} 668

Fair value of net assets acquired 7 29w8

Goodwill 370

The goodwill is attributable to the favorable presence that
Foster Yeomman Limited enjoys in the UK, including the good
location and strategic importance of the mineral reserves and

synergies that are expected to arise from the acquisition.

Foster Yeoman Limited contributed net income of CHF 1 million
to the Group for the period from September 7, 2006 to Decem-
ber 31, 2006. If the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2006,
Group net sales and net income would have been CHF 388 mil-

lion and CHF 20 million higher, respectively.

On July 21, 2006, Aggregate Industries Inc., a wholly owned
subsidiary of Holcim Ltd, acquired 100 percent of Meyer
Material Company in the US from a private-equity company.

The identifiable assets and liabilities arising from the acquisi-

tion are as follows:

Assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition

of Meyer Material Company (consolidated)

Million CHF Fair value Carrying
amount
Current assets 54 69
Property, plant and equipment 297 135
Other asset; o 7 ) 5 o 4
Short-te-rr_':;_lia?)ilitie; -(_58) o (35)
Long-tern; prvo;risiionsi B (:38) o {6)
Other Io;ag-term liabilities B ' 0 _ 0
Net assets . 240 167
Minority interest 7 0
Net assets acquired 240
Total purchase consideration {cash} 291
Fair;;ll.:;o-f‘r;t-aﬁsieés acquired N 72740 7

Goodwill 51
The goodwill is attributable to the favorable presence that
Meyer Material Company enjoys in the US and synergies that

are expected to arise from the acquisition.

Meyer Material Company contributed net income of CHF 2 million
to the Group for the period from July 21, 2006 to December 3,
2006. If the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2006, Group
net sales would have been CHF 122 million higher. Net income
would have been reduced by CHF g million which reflects the
expected seasonal lower first half-year trading results of Meyer
Material Company.




Holcim took control of Ambuja Cements Ltd. (formerly Gujarat
Ambuja Cements Ltd.) on May 3, 2006, when it obtained the
power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the Board of
Directors. Between January 28, 2006 and May 3, 2006, however,
it was accounted for under the equity method as the Group
was only able to exercise significant influence over the compa-
ny. On the date Holcim acquired control it held 14.8 percent and
an additional abligation {(put) to acquire 0.7 percent of the ordi-

nary shares of Ambuja Cements Ltd.

The identifiable assets and liabilities arising from the acquisi-

tion of control are as follows:

Assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition of control

of Ambuja Cements Ltd. (consclidated)

Holcim took control of ACC Limited {formerly The Associated
Cement Companies Ltd.} on lanuary 24, 2006, when it obtained
the power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the
Board of Directors. Until that date, however, it was accounted
for under the equity method as the Group was only able to
exercise significant influence over the company. On the date
Holcim acquired control it held 33.5 percent of the ordinary
shares of ACC Limited through Ambuja Cement India Ltd. in
which Holcim held 67 percent of the ordinary shares.

The identifiable assets and liabilities arising from the acquisi-

tion of control are as follows:

Assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition of control

of ACC Limited (consolidated)

Million CHF Fair value Carrying Million CHF Fair value Carrying
amount amount
Currént assets S 7 268 23 C;Jr;ent assets 596 7 490
Prop;rty, plantrér;d equip-rnn_ent _ 1,1é4 - 681 - Property, plant aﬁd é@ipment o _"1-,.551 - _890 -
Otherassets g2 38  Otherassets T T s
Shorf-{erm Iiabiiitiesi o o “(215“) - (184} S;c_)rr:(jt;rm Iiabilities ‘ o (377) N "(362)
Long---term provisions’ - i424) (111} L;g-term;rovisions‘ . -(;14;)_7 7 {(111)
Other long-term Iiabiilitiesi - (188) (189} (;fh—é:lo_ng-term liabilities (39‘37)7" i . {351)
Net assets 1,407 814 Net assets 1,297 591
Minority interest {1.189) Minority interest (864)
Net assets acquired i _218 i Net assets a_cqu_ired 433._ o
Total purchase consideration {cash} 620 Total purchase consideration {cash) 669
F‘a};;;rlu.e of ne—t a.s-s_e_t_s.amc_ﬁt;ired - 2-18 7 ) Fair value o.f—r-l-e-t asse;s_acquired o —433 -
Goodwill 402 Goodwill 236

* Fair value includes contingent liabilities of CHF 16 million (carrying amount 0).

The goodwill is attributable mainly te the strong market
position that the acquired company enjoys in India and the

favorable growth potential.

Ambuja Cements Ltd. contributed net income of CHF 122 million
to the Group far the period from May 3, 2006 to December 31,
2006.1f the acquisition of control had occurred on January 1,
2006, Group net sales and net income would have been CHF 372
million and CHF g2 million higher, respectively.

' Fair value includes contingent tiabilities of CHF 97 million {carrying amount Q).

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the strong market
position that the acquired company enjoys in India and the

favorable growth potential.

ACC Limited contributed net income of CHF 244 million to the
Group for the period from January z4, 2006 to December 31,
2006. If the acquisition of control had occurred on January 1,
2006, Group net sales and net income would have been

CHF 117 million and CHF & million higher, respectively.

An overview of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated
companies is included in section “Principal companies” on

pages 162 to 164.



2 Foreign currencies

The following table summarizes the principal exchange rates

that have been used for translation purposes.

Statement of income

Average exchange rate in CHF

Balance sheet

Year-end exchange rate in CHF

2007
1EUR : 165
168 7 | 2.40
w0 1.20
vean T T T 112
womxn 11.00
vzak T 7 0.17
WOINR o 291
100 THB 351
1,000 IDR V‘ 0.13
100 PHP 261

1 AUD

_——— — - [ .- - - -

1.0%

2006

1.58
23

1.25

111

11.50

0.19
2.17
3.32
0.14
2.45
0.95

%

+4.4
+3.9 .

-4.0
+0.9

-4.3

-10.5 .
Tar
A+5.7 .
-7.1
+6.5
+63

2007
1.66
2.25
1.13
1.15

10.32

0.7
2.86
3.32
0.12
274
0.99

2006

1.61
2.40
1.22
1.0%

11.24

017
2.75
3.44
0.14
2.49
0.97

+%
+3.1
-6.3
-7.4 -
+9.5
-8.2

+4.0
=35

-14.3
+10.0

+2.1




3 Segment information by region

Europe Nerth America Latin America

' 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 200
Statement of income, balance sheet
and cash flow statement
Mi”i;;l.CHl;. 7
Net sz;les to external cu-stomers - 10,314 8,587 5,362 5,517 3,920 3,52
Net ;;lles to other segments 87 86 3 3 90 14
Total net sales 10,401 8,673 5,365 5520 4,010 3,67
Cperating EBITDA' 2,399 1,966 999 1,033 1,256 1,24
Operating EBITDA margin in % 234 22.7 18.6 18.7 31.3 33
Depreciation and amortization
of operating assets (686} (564) {(376) (356} {255) (25
Operating profit 1,713 1,402 623 677 1,001 99
Oper:;tiﬁg_profit margin ir;- % 16.5 16.2 1.6 12.3 25.0 27
Depreciation and amortization !
of non-operating assets (2) (4} (3) 2 {1 (
Other (expenses) income {114) {42) {58} (57) {170) (124
Share of profit (loss) of associates 29 33 1 (i
Other financial income 12 74 3 2 6 1
EBITDA 2,318 2,035 947 976 1,094 1,13
Investments in associates 164 171 1 3 2
Net g;;erating assets 10,899 10,577 6,842 6,564 4,485 4,65
Total 7a55et5 - 15,930 14,903 9,791 8,993 6,004 6,01
To-ta.I lfa;bilities 9,722 9,211 7,054 4,682 3,491 3,51
Casr-l flow from operating activities 1,661 1,465 653 532 550 77
Cash flow margin in % 16.0 16.9 12.2 9.6 13.7 21
Acquisition cost segment assets’ 1,221 984 1,544 665 420 41
Cash flow used in investing activities® {1.253) (1,764) {1,927) (909} (402) (19
Impai_rment loss {20} 4) (14)
Capacity and sales
M%III:;\ t ]
Ann;I prbduction capacity cer;len-t_ - 489 46.9 223 22.1 34.0 35
Sa;lé-s_:af ;:er-nent- _ 343 329 16.4 17.7 26.6 25
Sale.s of mineral components 2.4 2.2 23 2.4
Sales of aggregates 108.8 95.4 56.9 65.1 12.5 12
Sales of asphait 6.8 6.0 8.0 9.3
Million m’
Sale; vof ready-mix concrete 19.8 20.0 7.3 7.0 10.6 10
Personnel
Nurﬁber of personn-elh i 22,905 22,006 11,190 11,268 13,409 12,22

'Earnings before interest {financial expenses less interest earned an cash and marketable securities), taxes, depreciation and amortization.

? Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

* Net investments in property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and financial assets.



Africa Middle East Asia Pacific Corporate/Eliminations Total Group

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
1,761 2,003 5,695 4,333 27,052 23,969

70 83 597 412 (847) (730)
1,831 2,086 6,292 4,745 (847) (730) 27,052 23,969
653 692 1,844 1,366 (221) (215) 6,930 6,086
35.7 33.2 29.3 28.8 _ 256 254
{76) (90 (503) {433) {10) 1 (1,906) (1,701)
577 602 1,341 933 (231) (222) 5,024 4,385
31.5 28.9 21.3 19.7 7 18.6 183
(1) (3) ) (@) (15) (13) (22)
(312) {40) 61 27) 1,555 391 1,242 97
1 7 11 - 221 48 : 259 89
B 2 2 3 3 {2) (61) 24 39
624 655 1,918 1,356 1,557 178 8,468 6,333
2 2 61 38 579 486 809 727
1,170 1,042 9,012 7,952 155 48 32,563 30,823
2,265 2440 13,008 11,635 1,213 709 48,211 24,702
1,433 1,386 3,865 3,989 701 3,198 26,266 25,917
542 515 1,491 1,054 426 86 5,323 4,423
296 24.7 23.7 22 19.7 18.5
424 401 1,673 742 - 14 13 5,296 3,234
; (475) (379) (493) (342) {1,015) {795) (5,565) {4,381)
| M (35) @)
13.9 17.7 78.7 75.8 167.8 197.8
145 15.3 64.9 55.0 (1.1) (6.1} 149.6 140.7
0.2 0.8 0.6 0.6 - 5.5 6.0
7 5.7 11.2 4.0 3.2 7 187.9 187.6
: - 14.8 15.3
. 1.7 2.5 5.8 4.6 45.2 44.2
2,795 5,218 38,133 37,212 932 845 89,364 88,783




4 Segment information by product

Cement'

2007 200
Statement of income, balance sheet
and cash flow statement
MiIIi;nCHF S S 7
Net s;zles to external ;uvstt;mérs - 15,882 13,93
Net sales to other segments 1,341 1,27
Total net sales 17,223 15,21
Operating EBITDA 5616 495
Operating EBITDA marginin % 326 32
Operating profit N 4,385 3,83
Net o_perating assets - 7 7 ) 21;650 19,91
Acql;is;ition costrsegmel’ﬂ Véssetsi - D 4,247 2,42
Cash 1"I0w used in inve_s't_i;gmact.i\;ae;’. o - i" _—__j- (4,252) (1,83
Personnel
Number of personnel 57,671 57,87

' Cement, clinker and other cementitious materials.
! Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
! Net investments in property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and financial assets.



Aggregates Other construction materials Corporate/Eliminations Total Group
and services

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

2,208 2,000 8,962- 8,038 27,052 23,969
282 964 573 565 (2,896) {2,808)

3,190 2,964 9,535 8,603 (2,896} (2,808} 27,052 23,969
649 614 665 515 6,930 6,086
20.3 20.7 1.0 6.0 5.6 254
304 301 335: 252 7 5,024 4,385

6,415 6,343 4,498 _ 4,573 32,563 30,833
529 342 503 415 17 49 5,296 3,234

(529) {899) {668) {756) {116) {890) {5,565) {4,381)

7,000 7,136 24,567 23,724 126 45 _89,364‘ 88,783




5 Change in consolidated net sales

Million CHF 2007 2006
Volu-r-n; and price o _ o N o 1,933 1,647
Chair;;: in structure o o T 759 3,608
Currency translation e-ﬁ;ects N ) - 391 246
Total 3,083 5,501
6 Production cost of goods sold

Million CHF 2007 2006
Mat;;ai expenses o o o o {4,448) (3,782)
Fuel elpénses i B o (1,339) (1,071)
Electri-city expenses ) (1,312) (1,152)
Personnel expenses (2,055) (2,054)
Depreciation and amortization (1,480) (1,411)
Other production expenses (3,393) {3,047)
Changﬁ in inventory 7 7 (a6} {99)
Total ) {14,073) (12,616)
7 Distribution and selling expenses

Million CHF 2007 2006
Distribution expenses (5,347) (4,723)
Selling expenses {803) (635)
Total {6,150) (5,358)



8 Summary of depreciation and amortization

Million CHF 2007 2006
Production facilities (1,480 (1.411)
Distribution and sales facilities T os) (214)
Administration facilities T j (121) (76)
Total depreciation and amortization of operating assets (A) _ f {1,906) (1,701)
Impairment of investments in associates 7 t M {(10)
Ord—ir;a_r_y de—p:u‘aat:).nlt-nfkno;r-;piergti’nigi ;lsgets T _; - (s) 4
Unusual write-offs B - S 777 - {7) (8)
Total depreciation and amortization of non-operating assets (B) L ' (13) (22)
Total depreciation and amortization (A+B) T (1,919) (1,723)
Of which depreciation of property, plant and equipment L ey - (ns8y)
9 Change in consolidated operating EBITDA

Million CHF . 2007 2006
\}';:;Iume, price and cost 7 ) s B _::;_:l 660 611
Cha_nge_'lf structure . e o - R L 309
Currency translation effects ‘\ 74 39
Total o g4 1,459
10 Other income

Million CHF o | .. . 2007 2006
Dividends earned '[ ) 6 9
6ther ordinary income net I 1,249 110
Depreciation and amortization of non-aperating assets - . (13) (22)
Total L 1242 97
In 2007, the position other ordinary income net mainly

includes the gain on the sale of Group Holcim South Africa

and gains on the disposal of property, plant and equipment.

11 Financial income

Million CHF P 2007 2006
Interest earned on cash and marketable securities B V! 149
Other financia.l iﬁcome - - o N . ' l 24 39
Total ] S B o o L r 188

The position other financial income relates primarely to

income from loans and receivables.



12 Financial expenses

Million CHF 2007 2006
Interest expenses {902) {869)
Fair value changes on financial instrumeﬁts ) ) ) ) {21) (147)
Amo—r_tized discounts oh bonds and-pr.i_ve;.t_e i)l_a;e}l;eﬁ-ts o N - 4 {11)
Other financial expenses S (105) (62}
Fore-igﬁ e;cﬁan-gé (iogs)- gain net T T S (31} 113
Finaﬁciaf expenses capitalized I o 49 14
Total {1,006) (962)

Of which to associates

The average rate of interest of financial liabilities at Decem-
ber 31, 2007 was 5.1 percent (2006: 5).

The positions interest expenses and other financial expenses
relate primarily to financial liabilities measured at amortized

cost.

The position financial expenses capitalized comprises interest

expenditures on large-scale projects during the year.

The position fair value changes on financial instruments
includes a charge of CHF 21 million (z006:128) on the USD
convertible bonds. The revised IFRS effective January 1, 2005
require in connection with convertible bonds in foreign cur-
rencies that changes in the fair value of the conversion option
rights are charged to the income statement. In 2006, these
changes were driven by the weaker USD exchange rate against
the CHF and the increase of the underlying Holcim share price.

Interest rate sensitivity
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's financial liabilities at

variable interest rates on a post hedge basis.

The Group's sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the interest rate exposure as at December 31, A1 percent
change is used when the interest rate risk is reported internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of a reascnably possible change in interest rates.

At December 31, a +1 percent shift in interest rates, with all
other assumptions held constant, would result in approxi-
mately CHF 6g million (2006: 68) of annual additional/lower
financial expenses before tax on a post hedge basis. The
Group's sensitivity to interest rates remained on the same

level compared to prior year.

(2) (1

Impacts on equity due to derivative instruments are consid-
ered as not material based on the shareholders’ equity of

Group Holgim.

Foreign currency sensitivity
Transaction exposure arises on monetary financial assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency other

than the functional currency in which they are measured.

The Group's sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the Group’s net transaction exposure as at December 31
A5 percent change is used when the net foreign currency
transaction risk is reported internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of a

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

At December 31, a 15 percent shift in the USD against the cur-
rencies the Group operates in would result in approximately
CHF 32 million (2006: 31) of annual additional/lower foreign
exchange gains {losses) net before tax on a post hedge basis
in the income statement. The Group'’s sensitivity to foreign

currency remained on the same level compared to prior year.

A x5 percent change in the CHF, EUR and GBP against the
respective currencies would only have an immaterial impact
on foreign exchange gains before tax on a post hedge basis

in bath the current and prior year.

Impacts on equity due to derivative instruments are consid-
ered as not material based on the shareholders’ equity of

Group Holcim.




13 income taxes

Million CHF 2007 2006
Current taxes (1,255) {1,086)
Deferred taxes ) 54 8
Total L (1,201} {1,078)
Deferred tax by type
Million CHF 2007 2006
Property, plant and equipment 94 {62)
Provisions (11) (35)
Tax losses carryforward (57) 4
Other 28 101
Total o o o 54 8
Reconciliation of tax rate

2007 20086
Group's expected tax rate 28% 30%
Effact of non-deductible items and income taxed at different tax rates (7%} (3%)
increase of unrecognized tax loss carryforwards. ) 1% 1%
Other items ' ' A ‘ 7 (1%) 0%
grﬂl_p's effective tax rate 1% 28%

The Group’s expected tax rate is a weighted average tax rate

based on profits (losses) before taxes of the Group companies.

The reduction is based in particular on lower statutory tax rates

in certain countries and a change of the relative weight of the

profit of the Group companies.

The Group’s effective tax rate in 2007 is substantially impacted

by tax free capital gains from divestments to third parties.

14 Research and development

Research and development expenses continue to be limited

to the existing product range and to investigating production

processes and environmental protection. Basic research

costs of CHF 27 million {2006: 25) were charged directly to the

consolidated statement of income. No significant costs were

incurred for licenses obtained from third parties, nor was any

major revenue generated from licenses granted.



15 Earnings per share

2007 2006
Basic earnings per share in CHF 14.86 8.64
Net income - equity holders of Holcim Ltd — as per income statement (in million CHF) 3,865 2,104

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

260,128,448

243,449,051

Fully diluted earnings per share in CHF 14.73 8.50
Net income - equity holders of Holcim Ltd - as per income statement {in million CHF) 3,865 2,104
Elimination of financial expenses on convr;riibIe_ ;:I-ebt (in-m.illion CHF) 5 25
Net income used to determine diluted e;rmlmgs_p—e_r s-h-a;t.e (i-n m-ill—ion .C-HF) 3,870 2,129
\.;Veighzed average number of shares ougt;n;;;; S - 260,128,448 243,449,051
Adjus-tment for assumed conversi;l; éf‘convertibh dei:tm o o 2,373,244 6,862,193
Adjusiment for assumed exercise of sIr'mraAreioLp:t’ic;nsp - 215,777 164,144
Weighted average number of shares for_;ilﬁtce_a'nz-arninés per share 262,717,469 250,475,388
in conformity with the decision taken at the annual general

meeting on May 4, 2007, a dividend related to 2006 of CHF 2.00

per registered share has been paid on May 10, 2007. This resulted

in a total ordinary dividend payment of CHF 522 million.

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Million CHF 2007 2006
Cash at banks and in hand 832 1,192
Short-term deposits 2,513 2,016
Total 3,345 3,208

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
in hand, deposits heid on call with banks, other short-term

highly liquid investments.




17 Accounts receivable

Million CHF ' 2007 2006
Accounts receivable - trade ) ‘ 3,050 3,089

2 Allowan-ces:—fc-)r doubtfu.l accotlnts‘ o ' (171} 2,879 {(178) 2,911
Accounts r;:ceivab-lt; - associat:e;_" i . o _f 118 94
ath_er r_ec_eivables S S 1,0Mm 648
Derivétive assets ' S ) o o 5 6
Total 4,073 3,659
Of which pledée-d/restricted 128 15
Of which overdue

Within 90 days 922 701
90to180days‘ 121 72
The-reafter - ) 122 119
Total overdue 1,165 892

Due to the local nature of the business, specific terms and
conditions for accounts receivable trade exist for local Group

companies and as such Group guidelines are not required.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The overdue amounts relate to receivables where payment

terms specified in the terms and conditions established with

Holcim customers have been exceeded.

Million CHF 2007 2006
January 1 (178} (175)
Change in structure B o ’ 6 (20)
Allowance recogniz_ea - ) - o {36) (28)
;Qmount-s- used d:n—ng th-e y;ea} S - 3 14
Unused amioari'lts reversed during t“he S/ear - - 15 8
Currency translation effects 19 23
December 31 . {171) (178)
18 Inventories

Million CHF 2007 2006
Raw; rr;ate—ri_als andﬁadrditiv;.sr - o o o 332 364
S'emifinishe&;t-i finishéd -prodt;ct;_ o - 1,155 1,024
Fuels a 348 261
Parts and supplies 631 574
Unbilied servic_es 69 59
Total 2,535 2,282

in 2007, the Group recognized inventory write-downs to net
realizable value of CHF 1 million (2006: 3). The carrying
amount of inventories carried at net realizable value was
CHF 60 millien (2006: 60).



19 Financial assets

Million CHF 2007 2006
Finan;;al investments;tﬁi;d pafties o - S 132 153
Long-;é_rr;l receivables — —aés—ociates ) 134 133
Long-itierm receivables - thiird parties 358 398
Derivative assets 15 5
Total 639 689
Of which pledged/restricted 1

The fair value of long-term receivables amounted to

CHF 470 million {2006: 483).

Long-term receivables and derivative assets are primarily
denominated in EUR, GBP, USD and the repayment dates vary

between one and 37 years.



20 Investments in associates

Million CHF . 2007 2006
January 1 7 o 727 1,391
;S_ha;re of ;-)rofit ofasscE;e: I S - - _' 259 89
Dividends earnea o o 7 _ (228) {63)
Acquisitions net 7 - 62 578
Reclassification 0 (1,230)
Currency translation effects : {11} (38}

December 31 : 809 7217

In 2006, the item “Reclassification” included a decrease of

CHF 1,230 million relating to the first-time consolidation

of ACC Limited and Ambuja Cements Ltd. in India when Holcim
acquired control on January 24, 2006 and on May 3, 2006,

respectively.

Sales to and purchases from asscciates amounted to CHF 137
million (2006: 197} and CHF 32 million {2006: 88}, respectively.

The following amounts represent the Group’s share of assets,

liabilities, sales and net income of associates:

Aggregated financial information — associates

Million CHF ' 2007 2006
Total assets 1,906 1,393
Total liabilities (1,097} (666}
Net assets B 809 727
Net sales ) 1,201 839

Net income : 70 56




21 Derivative assets

Included in financial assets (note 19) are derivative assets with
maturities exceeding one year; derivative assets with maturi-

ties of one year are included in accounts receivable (note 17).

Derivative assets

Fair value Nominal Fair value Nominal
amount amount
Million CHF _ 2007 2007 2006 2006
Fair value hedges
Interest rate 15 666 8 624
Currency ¢ 0 0 0
Cross-currency o 0 0 0
Total fair value hedges 15 666 8 624
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate 0 26 3 148
Currency 1 163 0 o]
Cross-currency 0 0 0 0
Total cash flow hedges 1 189 3 148
Net investment hedges
Currency N 7
Cross-currency - 7 S ‘ -
Total net investment hedges
Held for trading
Interest rate Q ¢ 0 0
Currency 4 334 0 0
Cross-currency 0 0 0 4]
Total held for trading 4 334 0 1]
1,189 1 772

Grand total 20



Fair value

Million CHF 2007

Fair value

2006

Derivative assets related to fair value hedges have the following maturities:

Within 1 year L ; _
Within 2 years 7 0
Within 3 years

Within 4 years o S . 10
Within 5 years 2
Thereafter 3

Total 15

mIO v O o O w

Derivative assets related to cash flow hedges have the following maturities:

Within 1 year 1
Wi-thin-Ziy_eakrsﬂ o T 7 o S

Within 3years T o ommmmmmm o w
;Nigi;n ;1ykearsi
WitHin Syéars

o O o o ©

Thereafter

Total 1

w o O o o © w

Derivative assets related to net investment hedges have the following maturities:

Within 1 year

Within 2 years

Within 3 years
Within 4 years
Within 5 years

Thereafter

Ol o o o o O

Total

o 0o o o o O

Held for trading derivative assets have the following maturities:
Within 1 year

e e e e e - - R — e — . - - - - — e~ = - — =

Within 2 years

Within 3 years

Within 4 years

Within 5 years
Thereafter

O O O o O b

Total

|0 o o o O O

Grand total 20

11

Certain derivative transactions, while fitting into the general The fair values approximate to the future discounted net cash

risk management approach of minimizing potential adverse inflows of the derivatives.
effects of the unpredictability of financial markets, do not
qualify for hedge accounting under the specific rules of 1AS 39.

As such, they have been classified as held for trading.




22 Property, plant and equipment

Land Buildings, Machines Furniture, Construction Total
installations vehicles,  in progress
tools

Million CHE S I .
2006
Net book value as at January 1 5,247 3,800 8,558 1,035 1,127 19,7167
Change in structure 793 627 1,661 376 158 3,615
Additicns 61 ER! 206 52 2,203 2,553
Disposals {100} {12) (20) (16) M (149)
Transferred from construction in progress 76 236 696 283 {1,291) 0
Depreciation (127) (252) {926) (276) 0 (1,581}
impairment loss (charged to income) (1) {(n {2) 0 0 {4)
Currency translation effects (30} {87) (198) {10} (45) (370)
Net book value as at December 31 5,919 4,342 9,975 1,444 2,151 23,831
At cost of acquisition 6,615 7,873 15,230 3,331 2,151 39,300
Accumulated depreciation (696) (3,631) (9,255} (1,887) 0 (15,469)
Net book value as at December 31 5,919 4,342 9,975 1,444 2,151 23,81
Net asset value of leased property, plant and equipment 193
Of which pledged/restricted 2,660
2007 _
iNet hook value as at January 1 5,919 4,342 9,975 1,444 2,151 23,831
Change in structure (121) 69 166 22 40 176
iAdditions 48 148 298 89 3,047 3,630
Disposals (116) (46) (34) (32) 9) (237)
Eﬁan;ferred from construction inrprogressi 40 . 93“0 662 381 {2,013) 0
Depreciation ' {150) ' 7(30.8.) (966)  (321) o (1745)
jmpa-ifrnent loss (charged to income) (1) (% (12) (3} (6} {27) ‘
:'Currency transiation effects 7 (229) (55) (244) “ (22} (67) {617)
ﬂet book value as at December 31 5,390 5,075 9,845 1,558 3,143 25,011 _
iAt cost of acquisition 6,226 8,036 19,550 3,582 3,143 41,537
'Accumulated impairment/depreciation {836) (3.,961) {9,705} {2,024) 0 (16,526) -
ﬂet book value as at December 31 7 5,390 5,075 9,845 1,558 3,143 25,011 :
:Net asset value of leased property, plant and equipment - 196 ‘
Of which pledgedrrestricted N 7 2,030

The net book value of CHF 25,011 million (2006: 23,831)

represents 60.2 percent {2006: 60.6) of the original cost of

all assets. At December 33, 2007, the fire insurance value of
property, plant and equipment amounted to CHF 33,670 million
{(2006: 27,534). Net gains on sale of property, plant and equip-
ment amounted to CHF 105 million {2006: 70).

Included in land, buildings and installations is investment
property with a net book value of CHF g2 million (2006: 83).
The fair value of this investrent property amounted to

CHF 117 million {zo06: 112). Rental income related to investment
property amounted to CHF 2 million {2006: 2).

Non-current assets held for sale of CHF 44 million (2006:119)
are included in the balance sheet item “Prepaid expenses and

other current assets”.




23 intangible and other assets

Goodwill Other Total
intangible
assets

Million CHF o N i 7
2006
Net book value as at January 1 6,500 432 6,932
Change in structure 1,081 675 1,756
Additions 619 62 681
Disposals o 0 0
Amortization 0 {120) {120)
Impairment loss (charged to income)} 0 0 v
Currency translation effects (60} (4) (64)
Net book value as at December 31 8,140 1,045 9,185
At cost of acquisition 8,140 1,520 9,660
Accumulated amortization 0 (475) (475)
Net book value as at December 31 8,140 1,045 9,185
Other assets net i34
Total 9,419
2007
_'INE book value as at January 1 8,140 1,045 9,185
Change in structure 205 25 230
;Additions 1,602 64 1,666 .
i)isposals (2) h 2) {14}
iAmortization _ 0 (i31) (131)
jmpairment loss [charged to income) (8) 0 (8)
;C_urrency translation effects {162) 20 {142)
Net book value as at December 31 9,775 1,011 10,786
At cost of acquisition 9,783 1,617 11,400
JAccumuiated impairment/amortization {8) {606) {614) 7
JNet book value as at December 31 9,775 1,011 10,786
pther assets net 290
Total

The other intangible assets included above have finite useful

lives, over which the assets are amortized.

Included in the additions "Goodwill” for 2007 is the goodwill

resulting from the minority buyouts in both India and Canada.

11,076



Impairment tests for goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
a cash generating unit or to a group of cash generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the respec-
tive business combination. The Group’s cash generating units
are defined on the basis of geographical market, normally
country-related. The carrying amount of goodwill allocated

to the countries or regions stated below is significant in com-
parison with the total carrying amount of goodwill, while

the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the other cash

generating units is individually not significant.

For the impairment test, the recoverable amount of a cash
generating unit, which has been determined based on value-in-
use, is compared to its carrying amount. An impairment loss is
only recognized if the carrying amount of the cash generating

unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Future cash flows are dis-

counted using the weighted average cost of capital (WACC)

adjusted for country-specific inflation risks.

The cash flow projections are based on a four-year financial
planning period approved by management. Cash flows beyond
the four-year budget period are extrapolated based either on
steady or increasing sustainable cash flows. in any event, the
growth rate of the four-year budget period does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the relevant market in

which the cash generating unit operates.

In respect of the goodwill allocated to "Others” the same

impairment model and parameters are used as is the case

with individually significant goodwill positions, except that

different key assumptions are used depending on the risks

associated with the respective cash generating units.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in respect of goodwill 2007

Cash generating unit Carrying Currency Pre-tax Long-term
amount of discount cop
goodwill rate  growth rate
Million CHF _ - Total2007 ) I
India v 7 ] o 2199 INR 12.9% 6.9%
North America - o 2,127 o UsD ;33% N —_3.0%
United Kingdom ] Bl 1,287 ; GBP 9.0% A 2.3%
Mexico 540 MXN 11.0% 3.9%
Others’ 3,622 Various 7.8%-16.5% 1.5%-8.6%
Total 9,775
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in respect of goodwill 2006
Cash generating unit Carrying Currency Pre-tax Long-term
amount of discount GDP
goodwill rate  growth rate
Million CHF - Total 2006 N . -
North America 1,630 usD 9.1% - 2.9%
United Kingdom 1,348 GBP 8.9% 2.4%
India 1,165 INR 13.3% 6.1%
Mexico 582 MXN 11.0% 3.8%
Others! 7 3,415 ) Various  7.4%-17.1% 1.5%-7.0%
Total 8,140 )

'Individually not significant.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of a cash gen-
erating unit or a group of cash generating units, management

believes that a reasonably possible change in the pre-tax

discount rate of 1 percentage point would not cause the

carrying amount of a cash generating unit or a group of cash

generating units to materially exceed its recoverable amount.



24 Joint ventures

The following amounts represent the effect of proportionate
consolidated assets, liabilities and sales and results of

significant joint ventures disclosed on pages 162 and 163.

Balance sheet

The amounts are included in the consolidated balance sheet

and statement of income.

Million CHF 2007 2006
Current assets 372 309
Long-term assets 1,606 1,359
Total assets 1,978 1,668
Short-term liabilities 464 641
Long-term liabilities 727 249
Total liabilities 1,191 890
Net assets 787 778
Statement of income

Million CHF 2007 2006
Net sales 1,217 1,070
Operating profit 335 308
Net income from joint ventures 275 227
Sales to and purchases from significant joint ventures

amounted to CHF 75 million (2006: 75) and CHF 182

million (2006: 144), respectively.

25 Trade accounts payable

Million CHF 2007 20086
Trade accounts payable — associates 17 14
Trade accounts payable —third parties 2,690 2,353
Advance payments from customers 217 0
Total 2,924 2,568
Trade accounts payable are due within one year and the future

contractual cash outflows appraximate to their carrying amount.

26 Current financial liabilities

Million CHF 2007 2006
Current financial liabilities — associates 14 13
Current financial liabilities — third parties 2,936 2,551
Current portion of long-term financial liabilities 660 1.014
Derivative liabilities 6 12
Total 3,616 3,590

The fair values of current financial liabilities are not materially

different from their carrying amounts,



27 Long-term financial liabilities

Million CHF 2007 2006
Long-term financial liabilities — associates 1 8
Long-term financial liabilities — third parties ) 12,605 12,435
Derivative liabilities 7 S 23 27
Total 12,629 12,470
Of v:IEich secured i - - - 352 129
Details of total financial liabilities

Million CHF 2007 2006
Loans from financial institutions 8,091 7,405
Outstanding bonds and private placements 7,936 8,408
Total loans and bonds 16,027 15,813
OI;'nIig—a-tions under finance leases (note 27) S - 189 208
'E;eri;r;tive liabilities (n;té Zé) 7 - 29 39
Total 16,245 16,060
Cuirr-er}t financial Iiabili%ies (note 26) 7 N 3616 3,590
Long-'term financial liabilities 12,629 12,470

Loans from financial institutions include amounts due to
banks and other financial instituticns. Interest rates on these
amounts, which are primarily denominated in EUR, GBP and
USD, average approximately 5.2 percent' (2006: 5.7'). Repayment
dates vary between one and 12 years, CHF 3,221 million {2006:

3,154} are due within ane year.

Total financial liabilities by currency

Unutilized credit lines totaled CHF 8,194 million (2006: 8,332}
at year-end 2007, of which CHF 5,471 million (2006: 5,435}

are committed.

The fair values of long-term financial liabilities amount to

CHF 12,923 million {2006:12,905).

Currency 2007 2006
Million CHF In% Interest rate  Million CHF In % Interest rate
CHF 2,554 15.7 3 2,581 16.1 2.4
EUR l 3,965 24.4 4.6 3,820 238 43
CBP— - 977 6.0 6.9 3,061 19.1 59
VUSDWV 7 7 5911 36.4 5.4 3,905 243 54
Ablg— - - 440 2.1 71 43 2.7 6.7
[NR_i 7 215 1.3 5.0 325 2.0 7.5
.TI-iB— 278 1.7 6.4 279 1.7 6.4
NZD 190 1.2 7.6 173 1.1 8.1
Others 1,715 10.6 6.5 1,485 9.2 6.9
Total 16,245 100.0 5.1° 16,060 100.0 5.07
Interest rate structure of total financial liabilities
Million CHF 2007 2006
Fina;cial liabilities at fixed rates _ _‘ :_i B 6,769 7,490
Finan-cial liabilities at variable rates o ) 9,476 8,570
Total 16,245 16,060

Financial liabilities that are hedged to a fixed or floating rate

are disclosed on a post hedge basis.

' On loans of financial institutions only.
*Nominal interest rate on financial liabilities at December 31.




Contractual maturity analysis

2007 Carrying Total  Loansfrom Outstanding
amount contractual financial bonds and
principal  institutions private
cash flows placements
MiIIion-EHF———_ R - 7
Within 1year S S 3,563 3,574 3,178 396
Within 2 year;—— 7 - . o 2,649 2,650 1,293 1,357
Within 3 years 1,650 1,668 325 1,343
Within 4 years 1,177 1,214 511 703
Within 5 years 1,775 2,121 2,140 581
Thereafter 4,213 4,194 656 3,538
Total 16,027 16,021 B 8,103 1,918 )
2006 Carrying Total  Loans from Outstanding
amount contractual financial bonds and
principal  institutions private
cash flows placements
Million CHF
Within 1 year 3,533 4,166 3,082 1,084
Within 2 years A 1,089 1,217 684 533
Within 3 years A 3,461 3,448 2,059 1,389
Within 4 yearris - S ) o 2,013 2,016 709 1,307
Within-S ye;;s—— - S — S 1,320 1,317 580 137
Thereafter' S - o 4,397 3,560 277 3,283
Total 15,813 15,724 7,39 8,333

The table summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities excluding financial leases {ncte 27), deriva-
tive liabilities (note 28) and trade accounts payable (note 25)
as at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Future minimum lease payments

Both the carrying ameount and the total contractual principal
cash flows are based on contractual maturities. However, the
analysis of the carrying amount does not consider any option
of early repayment whereas the total contractual principal
cash flows are based on the earliest date on which Holcim can

be required to pay.

Operating Finance Operating Finance
teases leases leases leases
Million CHF 2007 2007 2006 2006
Within 1 year 161 51 166 49
Within 2 years - ‘ 133 40 133 a6
Within 3 years o o 110 32 113 36
Within4yea-rs-____“ _ S - 96 29 98 29
Within § years S o 80 22 82 24
Thereafter o S 471 103 453 109
Total 1,051 277 1,045 293
Interest (38} (85}
Total finance leases

Total expenses for operating leases recognized in the con-

solidated statement of income in 2007 was CHF 184 million

189 208

{2006:170). There are no individually significant operating

lease agreements.



Qutstanding bonds and private placements as at December 31

Nominal Nominal Effective Term Remarks Net Net
value interest  interest book book
rate rate value value
Million CHF ’ 2007 2006
Holcim Ltd
CHF 500 4.00% 4.33% 1998-2009 Bonds with fixed interest rate 497 496
CHF 500 2.50%  2.69%  2005-2012  Bonds with fixed interest rate i 4% 495
CHF 250 3.00% 3.19% 2006-2015 Bonds with fixed interest rate ' 247 247
CHF 400 3.13% 3.04% 2007-2017 Bonds swapped into floating interest rates at inception 390 0
Holcim Capital Corporation Ltd.
CHF 0 3.75% 1997-2007 Bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd,
) swapped into USD and floating interest rates at inception ¢ 165
usb 32 6.60% 6.41% 2001-2008 Private placement guar-anteed by Holeim Ltd,
) i swapped into floating interest rates at inception 36 39
UsD 136 6.60% 6.65% 2001-2008 Private placement gua-r_anteed by Holcim Ltd 153 166
ush 150 7.05% 6.70% 2001-201 Private placement guaranteed by Holcim Ltd,
‘ _ swapped into floating interest rates at inception 179 188
uUsD 208 7.05% 7.08% 2001-201 Private placement guafénteed by Holcim Ltd 234 253
uUsD 50 7.65% 7.65% 2001-2031 Privaté placement guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 56 61
Ush 0 5.83% ) 2002-2007 Private placement guaranteed by Ho!cim__Ltd 0 43
uUsh 105 5.93% 5.95% 2002-2009 Privafg placement guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 118 128
UsD 65 6.59% 6.60% 2002-2014 Private placement guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 73 79
usb 100 6.59% 6.59% 2002-2014 Private placement guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 13 122
usD 0 0.00% 2002_—2017 Conv;dible bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd,
fully converted and redeemed in 2007 0 151
Holcim Overseas Finance Ltd. ) )
CHF 0 1.00% 2002-2012 Convertible bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd,
‘ fully converted and redeemed in 2007 o 639
CHF 300 2.75% 2.79% 2006-2011 Bonds:guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 300 300
CHF 250 3.00% 3.03% 2007-2013 Bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd,
swapped into floating interest rates at inception 252 0
Holcim Finance (Canada) Inc. ) ) )
CAD 0 5.86% 2002-2007 Private placement guaranteed by Holcim ttd 0 110
CAD 10 691% 6.92% 2002-2017 Private placement gu_ar'z_)_nteed by Holcim Ltd 12 1
CAD 300 5.90%  6.10%  2007-2013  Bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd ' 344 0
Holcim Finance (Luxembourg) SA
EUR 450 4.38% 4.48% 2003-2010 Bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 744 i
EUR 300 4.38% 5.71% 2003-2010 Bonds‘guaranteed by Holcim Ltd,
swapped into floating interest rates at inception 484 470
EUR 600 4.38% 4.45% 2004-2014 Bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 990 959
Helcim Finance (Australia) Pty Ltd
AUD 175 6.50% 6.79% 2006-2009 Bonds.guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 173 168
AUD 85 7.48% 7.52% 2006-2009 Bonds-guaranteed by Holcim Ltd, floatiné interest rates 84 82
Holcim Capital {Thailand} Ltd. ‘
THB 3,000 6.12% 6.30% 2005-2008 Bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 100 103
THB 2,150 6.48% 6.59% 2005-2010 Bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd n 74
THE 2,450 6.69% 6.78% 2005-2012 Bonds guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 81 84
Holcim US Finance 5.2 r.d. & Cie 5.C.5.
usD 200 6.21% 6.24% 2006-2018 Private placement guaranteed by Helcim Ltd 225 243
usp 125 6.10% 6.14% 2006-2016 Private placement guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 140 152
UsD 125 5.96% 6.01% 2006-2013 Private placement guaranteed by Holcim Ltd 140 152
Aggregate Industries Holdings Limited )
GBP 200 6.25% 5.59% 2000-2009 Bonds, partly swapped into floating rates 457 489
GBP 163 7.25% 581% 2001-2016 Bonds, partly swapped into floating rates 409 538
Subtotal 7,598 7.928



Nominal Nominal Effective Term Remarks Net Net
value interest  interest book book
rate rate value value

Million CHF 2007 2006
Subtotal 7,598 7,928
Holcim (US) Inc. i
usp 27  3.50% 3.50% 1984-2009 Industrial revenue bonds - Midlothian 30 i3
USD 5 3.60%  3.60%  1996-2031 Industrial revenue bonds - Devil's Slide 6 6
ust 22 3.56% 3.58% 1997-2027 Industrial revenue bonds - South Louisiana Port . 25 27
usp 95 6.80% 6.99% 1998-2008 Private placement ) 107 116
usp 1 3.61% 3.61% 1999-2009_ Industrial revenue bonds - Mobile . 1 1
usb 15 3.42% 3.47% 1999-2031 Industrial revenue bonds - Midlothian 17 18
uso '67 3.47% 3.47% 1999-2032 Industrial revenue bonds — Mobile Dock & Wharf 75 82
usb 25 3.58% 3.64% 2003-2033' Industrial revenue bonds - Holly Hill 28 30
St. Lawrence Cement Inc. _
usb 18 3.38% 3.47% 2000-2020 Industrial revenue bonds - Canada 20 22
ACC Limited -
INR 1,000 11.50% 2000-2007 Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate 0 28
INR 750 9.80% 2002—20071 Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate t 0 21
IN 500 9.50% 2002-2007  Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate 0 14
INR  S00 8.95% 2002-2007 Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate 0 14
INR 250 895% 2002—20077 Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate _ 0 7
INR 0 1.00% 2004-2009 USD convertible bends, 1 bond per USD 1,000 nominal amount

is convertible into GDS/ACC India shares at an initial conversion

price of INR 374.42 per share with a fixed exchange rate on

conversion of INR 45.2425 per USD at the option of the

bondholder at any time on or after April 28, 2004 until

March 8, 2009, redeemable on March 19, 2009 at a redemption !

premium of 1.5% and a yield to maturity of 2.5%. :

Until December 31, 2007, all outstanding bonds have been

converted into shares. 0 0
Ambuja Cements Ltd. ) i
INR 650 9.28% 2002-2007 Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate B ) 0 18
INR 250  9.28% 2002-2007 Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate _ : 0 7
INR 200 9.45% 2002-2007 Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate ! 0 6
INR 100 8.10% 2002-2007  Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate | 0 3
INR 1,000 6.85% 6.85% 2005-2010 Non-convertible debentures with fixed interest rate ‘ 29 27
Total ' 3 | 793 8408



28 Derivative liabilities

Included in long-term financial liabilities (note 27} are deriva-
tive liabilities with maturities exceeding one year; derivative
liabilities with maturities of one year are included in current

financial liabilities {(note 26).

Derivative liabilities

Fair value Nominal Fair value Nominal
amount amount

Million CHF 2007 2007 2006 2006
Fair value hedges
Interest rate 16 1,010 15 884
Currency ) _ ] o o 0 0 0
Cross-currency B B 7 5 105 1 114
Total fair value hedges 21 1,115 26 998
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate 1 15 8 334
Currency 1 92 60
Cross-currency o o 0 0
Total cash flow hedges 107 10 394
Net investment hedges
Currency _ ) c ¢ 0
Cross-currency ) 6 86 40
Total net investment hedges 6 86 3 40
Held for trading
Interest rate o 0 0 0
Currency 0 0 0 0
Cross-currency 0 0 0 0
Total held for trading o 0 0 0 0
Grand total ) 29 1,308 39 1,432




Fair value Fair value
Million CHF _ 2007 2006
Derivative liabilities related to fair value hedges have the following maturities:
;V_i-t;in1ye-ar_ T - 1 3
Within 2years s 0 1"
Within3years I 13 !
Withindyears s . 0om
Within 5 years ST - - 0
The;eafte-r S ) ) L 3 0
Total n 26
Derivative liabilities related to cash flow hedges have the following maturities:
Within1year- — S 7 v ' 7 1 9
Within2yeas T T o 0 0
Within 3years T 0 0
Withindyears 0 0
Within S years 7 - B 0 1
Thereafter _ ) 1 o
Total 2 10
Derivative liabilities related to net investment hedges have the following maturities:
Wi;l;in l—year“ T S ) 4 0
-Witmn 27ears S ’ 7 - - 0 3
Within 3years - - 2 0
Within dyears T 0 0
WithinSyears 0 0

-t L L. oo |
Thereafter i o} 0
Total 17 6 3
Held for trading derivative liabilities have the following maturities: [
Wit-hin 'I_year“i T . ) - ) J 0 0
within2yeas T T T T T oo mo T 0 0
within 3years T T T 0 0
Within 4 years B ' - 0 0
WithinSyears T ' 0 0
Thereafter S ] e - } 0 0
Total 0 0
29 39

Grand total

Certain derivative transactions, while fitting into the general
risk management approach of minimizing potential adverse
effects of the unpredictability of financial markets, do not
qualify for hedge accounting under the specific rules of tAS 39,
As such, they have been classified as held for trading.

The fair values approximate to the future discounted net cash

outflows of the derivatives.



29 Deferred taxes

Deferred tax by type of temporary difference 2007 2006
Million CHF - ‘
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 52 36
Provisions 194 189
Tax losses carryforward 270 277
Other 408 379
Total 924 881
Deferred tax liabilities
Prope:ty, plant -and equiﬁment 3,054 3,194
Provisions - 7 44 32
Other 422 389
Total 3,520 3,615
Deferred tax liabilities net 2,596 1,734
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:
Deferred tax assets - {304} (289)
Deferred tax liabilities 2,900 3,023
Deferred tax liabilities net 1,596 2,734
Tax losses carryforward
Loss carry- Tax Loss carry- Tax
forwards effect forwards effect
2007 2007 2006 2006
;\o\illionVCHF i -
Total tax losses carryforward 1,396 416 1,406 443
(Sf whicl'; refle-ct.ed intdeﬂ;red taxesi S (858) (270} (884) (277)
Total tax losses carryforward not recognized 538 146 522 166
Expiring as follows:
1 year 19 2 33 1
2 years 7 2 o 0
3 years 8 3 1
4 years 4 1 7 2
57yea rs ) P 1 2 0
Thereafter ) - 498 137 478 152




30 Provisions

Site restoration Specific Other Total Total
and other environ- business provisions 2007 2006
mental liabilities risks

Million CHE ) ) -
January 1 s 415 567 1,503 1,162
Change in stri:cture (17) 7 4 24 1 268
Provisions recognized 74 10 122 266 264
Provisions used during the year (35) (42) (73) {150) {(110)
Provisions reversed during the year (12} (95) (33) (140) (80)
Currency translation effects (13) 13 (2) (2) (M)
December 31 518 365 605 1,488 1,503
Of which short-term provisions 16 7 169 192 128
| 5b2 358 436 1,296 1,375

Of which long-term provisions

Site restoration and other environmental liabilities represent
the Group’s legal or constructive obligations of restoring a
site. The timing of cash outflows of this provision is depend-
ent on the completion of raw material extraction and the

commencement of site restoration.

Specific business risks comprise litigation and restructuring
costs which arise during the normal course of business. Provi-
sions for litigations mainly relate to antitrust investigations,
product liability as well as tax claims and are set up to cover
legal and administrative proceedings. It includes CHF 120 mil-
lion related to the German antitrust investigation set up in
2002. The total provisions for litigations amounted to CHF 294
million (2006: 329) at December 31.The timing of cash ocutflows
of provisions for litigations is uncertain since it will largely
depend upon the outcome of administrative and legal proceed-
ings. Provisions for restructuring costs relate to various restruc-
turing programs and ameunted to CHF 71 million (2006: 86) at
December 31. These provisions are expected to result in future
cash outflows mainly within the next one to three years.

Other provisions relate mainly to provisions that have been set
up to cover other contractual liabilities. The composition of this
item is extremely manifold and comprises as at December 3,
among other things: various severance payments to employees
of CHF 72 million {2006: 64), provisions for sales and other
taxes of CHF 73 millien (2006: 62), and provisions for health
insurance and pension scheme, which do not qualify as benefit
obligations, of CHF 85 million (2006: 81). The expected timing of

the future cash outflows is uncertain.



31 Employee benefits

Personnel expenses 2007 2006
Mill-ionCHF- T

Production and di‘stribuitrioiﬁ I o i* - 3,068 2,908
Marketing an& sales- ) ‘ ) o ) - - 450 336
Administration 1,040 998
Total 4,558 4,243

Personnel expenses and number of personnel

The Group's total personnel expenses, including social charges,
are recognized in the relevant expenditure line by function

of the consolidated statement of income and amounted to
CHF 4,558 million {2006: 4,243). As at December 31, 2007, the
Group employed 89,364 (2006: 88,783) people.

Defined benefit pension plans

Some Group companies provide pension plans for their
employees which under IFRS are considered as defined benefit
pension plans. Provisions for pension obligations are estab-
lished for benefits payable in the form of retirement, disability
and surviving dependent’s pensions. The benefits offered vary
according to the legal, fiscal and economic conditions of each
country. Benefits are dependent on years of service and the
respective employee’s compensation and contribution. A net
pension asset is recorded only to the extent that it does not
exceed the present value of any economic benefits available

in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan and any unrecognized actuarial
losses and past service costs. The obligation resulting from
the defined benefit pension plans is determined using the

projected unit credit method. Unrecognized gains and losses

Reconciliation of retirement benefit plans to the balance sheet

resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions are recog-
nized as income (expense) over the expected average remain-
ing working lives of the participating employees, but only to
the extent that the net cumulative unrecognized amount
exceeds 10 percent of the greater of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at

the end of the previous year.

Other post-employment benefits

The Group operates a number of other post-employment
benefit plans. The metheod of accounting for these provisions is
similar to the one used for defined benefit pension schemes.
A number of these plans are not externally funded, but are
covered by provisions in the balance sheets of the respective

Group companies.

The following table recaonciles the funded, partially funded
and unfunded status of defined benefit plans and other
post-employment benefit plans to the amounts recognized in

the balance sheet.

Million CHF . 2007 2006
Net Ii-ability-arising from defined beﬁefit pension plans ) 3N 385
Net liability arising frc;rﬁ o.ther post-em-plo;me-nt benefit plans i - 81 k|
Net liability e 192 476
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

Other assets net {note 23)h S i - j - B (24} (12)
Defined benefit obligations 416 488
Net liability

392 476




Retirement benefit plans

Defined benefit

pension plans

COther post-employment

benefit plans

Million CHF 2007 2006 2007 2006
Present value of funded obligations 3,074 3,205 ‘ 12 23
Fair-value of plan assets (3,068) (2,939) (12) (28)
Plan deficit (surplus) of funded obligations 6 266 0 (5)
Present value of ur;funded obligations 218 230 B 100 120
Unrecognized actuarial losses (22) (7) (18) (23)
Unrecognized ;Ems;vic;z costs {6} (7) (1) (1)
Unrecognized plan assets B 115 67 - 0 0
Net liability from funded and unfunded plans B in 385 81 91
Amounts recognized in the income statement are as follows: \ _

Current service costs - 119 127 2 3
Employees’ contributions ‘ ' (26) {24) - 0 0
Interest expense on obligations o 1 161 141 | 6 8
E->-<pe;t_ed return on_pl_an—ass_et; S I (170) (148} ; 0 o
;r-r;;;t;za—t_io-n"o%_a_c_t_u_a—;iz;l—(gains) losses S (34) {15) 1 1
Past service ¢costs - o (5) 7 0 0
Gains;2urtailments and settlements _ (2) {52) N o] o]
Limit of asset ceiling - - 52 29 0 0
gtheﬁ S - 1 3 i) 0
Total {included in personnel expenses) 96 68 9 12
Actual return on plan assets . 188 224 0 0
Present value of defined benefit obligations

O‘p;r;ing balance as per January 1 3,435 3,085 143 162
Current service casts - : 119 127 2 3
Interest cost T ; 161 141 7 6 8
;ct—u;ri‘;(;_ains) losses - h _ \ (176) 39 (3) 0
Currency translation E;ff;cts o l ' (67} 22 {7) {(5)
Benefits paid (180) (152) (8) (9
Past service costs (%) 7 - 0 0
Change in structure 17 21 (21 (16)
Curtailments S ) (54) 0

Settlements - o ‘r -(8) (1) ) 0

Closing balance as per [Ecember 31 wr 3'29{ 3,435 112 143




Retirement benefit plans

Defined benefit

pension plans

Other post-employment
benefit plans

Million CHF 2007 2006 2007 2006
Fair value of plan assets

Openingkba‘laince ;s per Jaﬁuéry 1 ) S 2,939 2,470 28 12
Expecte_d return on pla-n ass_ets o o 170 148 0 0
Ac-tuari:a-l gains “ 16 76 0 0
Currency translation effects {76) 19 0 {1}
Contribution by the employer 145 125 8 1
Contribution by the employees 26 24 0 0
Benefits paid (167} (147) (8} (1)
Change in structure 19 225 (16} 17
Settlements 4) {1} ] 0
Closing balance as per December 31 3,068 2,939 12 28
Plan assets consist of:

Equity instruments of Holcim Ltd or subsidiaries 3 2 0
Equity instruments of third parties 1,315 1,310 0
Debt instruments of Holcim Ltd or subsidiaries 34 30 0
Debt instruments of third parties 1,161 963 12 0
Land and buildings occupied or used by third parties 362 356 0 0
Other N 193 278 28
Total fair value of plan assets 3,068 2,939 12 28
Principal actuarial assumptions used at balance sheet date

Discount rate 5.0% 4.8% 6.2% 6.1%
Expected return on plan assets 5.6% 5.7% 3.0% 1.2%
Future salary increases 3.0% 3.0%

Medical cost trend rate 8.3% 1.9%

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is deter-
mined based on the market prices prevailing on that date
applicable to the period over which the obligation is to

be settled,



Experience adjustments

Defined benefit Other post-employment

pension plans benefit plans

Million CHF 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Present value of defined benefit obligation 3,292 3,435 3,085 112 143 162
Fair value of plan assets (3,068) {2,939) {2,470) (12} {28) (12}
Deficit 224 496 615 100 115 150
Experience adjustments:
On plan liabilities (17) 57 112 3 o 1
On plan assets 13 76 150 0 o 0
Change in assumed medical cost trend rate
A 1 percentage point change in the assumed medical cost trend Increase Increase Decrease Decrease
rate would have the following effects: MilllionCHF  Million CHF  Million CHF  Million CHF
2007 2006 2007 2006

- On the aggregate of the current service cost and interest cost

components of net periodic post-employment medical costs 1 3 1 3
- On the accumulated post-employment benefit obligations

for medical costs 5 4 4 4

Expected contributions by the employer to be paid to the
post-employment benefit plans during the annual peried
beginning after the balance sheet date are CHF 139 million
(2006:149).

32 Share compensation plans

Employee share purchase plan

Heleim has an employee share ownership plan for all employ-
ees of Swiss subsidiaries and some executives from Group
companies. This plan entitles employees to acquire a limited
amount of discounted Holcim shares generally at 70 percent
of the market value based on price month average. The shares
cannot be sold for a period of two years from the date of
purchase. The total expense arising from this plan amounted
to CHF 1.5 million in 2007 (2006:1.5).

Executive share plans

Part of the variable compensation of key executives is paid
in Holcim shares, which are granted based on the market
price of the share in the following year. The shares cannot
be sold by the employee for the next three to five years.
The total expense arising from these share plans amounted
to CHF 6.5 million in 2007 {2006: 5.5).

No dilution of Holcim shares occurs as all shares granted

under these plans are purchased from the market.

Share option plans

Two types of share options are granted to senior management
of the Holcim Group. In both cases, each option represents
the right to acquire one registered share of Holcim Ltd

at the market price of the shares at the date of grant (see

explanations on pages 75 and 76).

The contractual term of the first type of option plan is eight years.
The options cannaot be exercised for the first three years and vest

immediately as there are no vesting conditions attached to them.

The contractual term of the second type of option plan is
twelve years and the options have a vesting period (service-

related only} of nine years from the date of grant.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repur-

chase or settle the options in cash.



Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices for the above two option

plans are as follows:

Weighted average r Number' Number'
exercise price' ' 2007 2006
January 1 CHF 69.93 | 544,462 567,299
Granted and vested (individual I;onus) CHF 127.10 ' 49,674 58,573
Granted and vested (sinélé ai[;}:rrin;ng) - 7 - i 0 0
Féﬁéitéci - S S ‘ 0 ] 0
Exercised i o A CHF 6655 | (56192}  (81.410)
[:Vapsedur o - o - l 0 0
December 31 CHF T75.61 537,944 544,462
E)f whic-h exercisable at th;e ;n& ;Jf t_he yea-r- —-i:__ . ) . ' 89,874 89,760
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dates and give the rights to acquire one regis-
tered share of Holcim Ltd at the exercise prices as listed below:
Option grant date Expiry date Exercise price’; Number' Number'
; 2007 2006
2000 2008 CHF ©8.38 7 0 5775
2601 - - ;0_(;9 CHF 65.74 o 6,600
2002 v 2010 CHF 74.41 0 23,240
2002 -2-014 CHF 68.91 ‘ 201,3007 201,300
2003 i 5011 CHF 35.61 ‘ 48,775 54,145
2003- - ) - _—_-;O—H’;- CHF 68.917 : 33,550 33,550
20-0;1 o ) B S 201-2_‘“ ) EH_F 6511; 41,099 - 56,306
E0_4 __“_—: -'__ o B __‘_7 ::__ - 77*7—“'*;)-76 - jc:if EBLBIT’j 33,550 _- 33,550
72‘(1075777‘ S - o 2013 _EH_F _7_6.30 J 71,423 7 71,423
2006 2014 CHF 102.45 ! 58,573 58,573
27007 N - o - 7 - ) ) _—_——2;1_5 B C-I-;F 127.10 ‘L 49,674 -
Total o | 537944 544,462

Options exercised in 2007 resulted in 56,192 shares (2006: 81,410}
being issued at a weighted average exercise price of CHF 66.55
(2006: 52.99). The weighted average share price of the options
exercised during the year 2007 was CHF 125.95 (2006: 99.81).

The fair value of options granted for the year 2007 using the
Black Scholes valuation model is CHF 24.76 (2006:32.72).

The significant inputs into the model are the share price and
an exercise price at the date of grant, an expected volatility of
25 percent (2006: 26), an expected option life of six years, a
dividend yield of 1.9 percent (2006: 1.3} and an annual risk-free

' Adjusted to reflect former share splits and/or capital increases.
*Valued according to the single allocation in 2002.

interest rate of 2.6 percent {2006: 2.6). Expected volatility
was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the
Group’s share price over the respective vesting period,

All shares granted under these plans are either purchased
from the market or derive from treasury shares. The total
personnel expense arising from the grant of options based on
the individual bonus plan amounted to CHF 1.8 million in 2007
{(2006: 1.6}, There were neither in 2007 nor in 2006 any alloca-
tions of options upon appointment of members of the Execu-

tive Committee.




33 Construction contracts

Million CHF . 2007 2006

Contract revenue recognized during the year [ 1,851 1,760
- I A

Contract costs incurrg_d a_nd recggpiz?‘d_ Er(_)fits_(_le‘_ss recog_nized_lqii?es) to dai_:e_ L 2,695 2,336

Progress billings to date ‘L (2,727) (2,310)

Due (to) from contract_ fﬁ'?tf’merf g'F Ifa_lanfg srneet dgter o 3 ) J 7 (32) 26

Of which: . e ____L;:

Due from customers for contract work [ 106 81

Due to customers for contract work o o 77 : (-'I 38) - (55)

34 Details of shares

Number of registered shares

December 31 ‘r 2007 2006

Total outstanding shares { 262,917,241 254,668,713

higduhihith i Lo _ e — e — ] :

Treasury shares 3

Shares reserved for convertible bonds - __-37 7 0 0

Shares reserved for call options I - 537,944 544,462

Unreserved ;éasury sha?f:s N v 156,905 7 135,450

Total trea_sury shares 668,849 679,912

Total issued shares

263,586,090 255,348,625

Shares out of conditional share capital

S
!
[
i
|
I

_d

Reserved for convertible bonds | 1422350 9,659,815
Unreserved { 0 0
Total shares out of conditional share capital ' 1,422,350 9,659,815

Total shares

The par vatue per share is CHF 2. The share capital amounts
to nominal CHF 527 million (2006: 511) and the acquisition

price of treasury shares amounts to CHF 67 million (2006 62).

The annual general meeting of shareholders of May 12, 2006
approved a CHF 42,150,094 capital increase through the issuance
of 21,075,047 fully paid-in registered shares with a par value

of CHF 2. The net proceeds of the transaction amounted to

CHF 1,710 million.

During the year 2007, USD convertible bonds (0%, 2002-2017)
with a nominal value of USD 130 million and CHF convertible
bonds (1%, 2002-2012) with a nominal value of CHF 600 million
were converted into 8,237,465 newly issued, fully paid-in registered
shares of Holcim Ltd with a par value per share of CHF 2 (through

| 265,008,440 265,008,440

the use of conditional share capital). As a result, the share capital
increased by CHF 16,474,930 to CHF 527,172,180. The related

increase in capital surplus amounted to CHF 7g2 million.

During the year 2006, convertible bonds (0%, 2002-2017) with a
nominal value of USD 486 million were converted into 4,348,060
newly issued, fully paid-in registered shares of Holcim Ltd with
a par value per share of CHF 2 {through the use of conditional
share capital) and 566,753 treasury shares. As a result, the share

capital increased by CHF 8,696,120 to CHF 510,697,250.

As most of both USD convertible bonds and CHF convertible
bonds have been converted, Holcim exercised its right to redeem

the remaining outstanding bonds.




35 interests of minority shareholders

The Group issued in 2001 through one of its Group companies
preference shares to an independent third party investor.

The total subscription value of the preference shares

was USD 450 million and was fully repaid by the Group in

December 2006.

36 Contingencies, guarantees and commitments

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is involved in
lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings, including
product liability, commercial, environmental, health and
safety matters, etc. There are no such matters pending that
the Group expects to be material in retation to the Group’s
business, financial position or results of cperations. Subject to
certain conditions that are still outstanding at year-end 2007,
Holcim has agreed to subscribe to a private placement issued
by its associated company Huaxin Cement Co. Ltd. amounting
to USD 282 million.

The Group operates in countries where political, economic,
social and legal developments could have an impact on the
Group's operations. The effects of such risks which arise in the
normal course of business are not foreseeable and are there-
fore not included in the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

37 Monetary net current assets by currency

Guarantees
At December 31,2007, guarantees issued to third parties in
the ordinary course of business amounted to CHF 276 million

(2006:300).

Commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Group enters purchase
commitments for goeds and services, buys and sells invest-
ments, asscciated companies and Group companies or portions
thereof. It is common practice that the Group makes offers or
receives calt or put options in connection with such acquisitions

and divestitures.

At December 31, 2007, the Group's commitments amounted to
CHF 2,036 million (2006: 775), of which CHF 750 million (2006:
338) relate to the purchase of property, plant and equipment.

Cash and Accounts Trade Current Other Total Total
marketable receivable accounts financing current 2007 2006
securities payable liabilities liabilities
Mmilion CHF T
EUR o - -SB: 1_035— 107 - .96-1 - 30-8_ .(437). (753)
Gep 7 169 5377 u549 — 85 -288 (276) (319)
CHF 583 61 88 94 8 454 (140)
usb 568 1,137 416 1,392 485 (588) (222)
CAD 41 251- 160 173 17 (158) (103)
MXN ) 121 134 168 0 14 (27) (20)
INR o é47 23-2“ _ --1'5; ) 35 v 576 316 337
TI-;BV o 7 o ) __5—3 S ;9_ 26 ‘I_IB. S 25- (77} 13
IDR- o ___-52_--_ N 7'5m4'77 N ) ;40 7 51 - 4'8 (3) 25
P;P‘ . 12 ] 3::' - 24 12 25 (12) (1
AUD 27 86 2?; 9 82 (1) {109)
Others 425 470 571 686 409 (771) (337)
Total 3,3 4,073 2,924 3,616 2,485 (1,580) (1,739)




38 Cash flow used in investing activities

Million CHF 2007 2006
Purchase of property, plant and equipment net
Re-p-lacemer;ts 7 7 {1,384) {1,282)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ELa| 220
Capital expenditures on property, plant and equipment to maintain
productive capacity and to secure competitiveness {1,043) (1,062)
Expansion investments (2,245) {1,265)
Total purchase of property, plant and equipment net (A) (3,288) {2,327)
Purchase of financial assets, intangible and other assets
Acqﬁisition C_Jf new G_roup co-mpa-nies {net of c.';sh and cash equivaler;ts acquired)’ {a08) {982)
Increase in participétion in e_xisting Group companies (763) (193)
Increase in financial investments including ass-ociates {180) {680)
Increase in other assets? (1,830) (905)
Total (3.181) (2,760)
Disposal of financial assets, intangible and other assets
Dispogal of Group cémpanies (net of cash aﬁd cash equivalents disposed of) 635 3
Decr;sase in participation in ex-isting Group companies ‘ o) 13
Decréase in fiﬁancial investments inéluding associates 49 152
Decrease invother assets - 220 538
Total 904 706
Total purchase of financial assets, intangible and other assets net (B) (2,277) (2,054)
Total cash flow used in investing activities (A+B) {5,565} (4,387)
Cash flow from acquisitions and disposals of Group companies

Acquisitions Disposals
Million CHF 2007 2006 2007 2006
Current assets (77} {222} 3 0
Property, plant and equipment (233) (940) 302 0
Other assets {50) (12} 30 0
Short-term liabilities 57 309 (169) 0
Long-term provisions 24 M (54) o
Other long-term liabilities ) 10 130 (62) 0
Net assets (269) {564) 278 0
Mino‘rity interest T N N - 39 14 (154} ]
Net assets (acquired) disposed (230) (550) 124 0
Goodwill {acquired) disposed (187) (432) 1 0
Net result from disposals® 0 o 1,141 3
Total {purchase) disposal consideration (a7 (982) 1,266 3
ACC]l-Ji-rE.:d (di;;c-ased) c-ash and cash eqhivalents 9 0 (66) o
Loan_notes - - 0 4} {565) ]
Net cash flow_ {a08) (982) 635 3

' Including goodwill of new Group companies.
! Includes the goodwill from minority buyout.
*Including transaction costs,



39 Transactions and relations with members

of the Board of Directors and senior management

Key management compensation

Board of Directors

In 2007, twelve non-executive members of the Board of Directors
received a total remuneration of CHF 3.2 million (2006: 3} in

the form of short-term employee benefits of CHF 1.g million
(2006: 1.8), post-employment benefits of CHF 0.2 million

(2006: 0.3), share-based payments of CHF 1 million (2006: 0.9)

and other compensation of CHF 0.4 million.

Senior management

In 2007, the total annual compensation for the 17 members of
senior management (2006:16) amounted to CHF 32.8 million
(2006: 26.1) and comprises base salary and variable cash
compensation of CHF 18.6 million {2006: 14.9), share-based
compensations of CHF 8.3 million (2006: 7.4}, employer contri-
butions to pension plans of CHF 5.1 million (2006:3.6) and other
compensations of CHF 0.8 millien (2006: 6.5). In accordance with
Art. 663b™ of the Swiss Code of Obligations (transparency law),
the base salary and the variable cash compensation are disclosed
including foreign withholding tax. Further included in the
contribution to pension plans are the employers contributions
10 social security (AHV/IV).

The following table provides details on the total compensation
awarded to the individua! members of the Board of Directors,
the highest compensation paid to a senior management member

and the total amount of senior management compensation.




Compensation Board of Directors/senior management 2007'

Name Base salary Variable compensation Other compensation Total
Cash Shares’ Cash Shares' Options’  Employer Others  compensation
contributions
to pension plans

Rolf Soiron* Number 740

CHF 545,000 80,000 87,957 50,000 762,957
And-rez;ls vo-rﬁ’lanta‘—_ It;mberi - 7 740 e - - R o

CHF 300,000 80,000 18,169 10,000 408,169
Lord Norman Fowler Number ) 740 -

CHF 80,000 80,000 a 10,000 170,600
Erich Hunziker* Number - - 740 ) 7

CHF 100,000 80,000 8,069 10,000 198,069
Willy R Kissling® ‘Number - 7 I

CHF 100,000 80,000 8,069 10,000 198,069
PeterKiipfer ~ Number 740 T oo

CHF 180,000 80,000 12,108 10,000 282,109
Adrian Loader Number 740 B

CHF 80,000 80,000 0 10,000 170,000
Gilbert J. B. Probst Number ~ 740

CHF 80,000 80,000 1,059 10,000 177,059
H.O.nno Ruding® Nu-mbe-r B - 740 _ ) o ) I

CHF 110,000 80,000 8574 10,000 208,574
Thomas Schmidheiny  Number 10 T T

CHF 144,100" 80,000 9,401 10,600 243,501
Wolfgang Schirer ~ Number 7490 T T 0T

CHF 80,000 80,000 1,059 10,000 177,059
Dieter Spalti Number 7 740 -

CHF 80,000 80,000 7,059 10,000 177,059
Total Board of Directors Number 8,880
(non-executive members)  CHF 1,879,100 960,000 173,525 160,000 3,172,625
Markus Akermann®®  Number o 1094 1wz

CHF 1,859,130 0 812,785 1,183,268 448,207 551,243 48,340 4,902,973
Total senior management"” Number 0 59,801 71,083

ﬂ: E444.'I30 0 _&98,04_3_9,46&{!9 @,@8‘ 5,142,057 846,493 32,757,59

' Compensation for the Board of Directors and senior management is disclosed gross of withholding tax and employee social security contsibutions.

“Other compensation” includes employer contributions to pension plans (state o!d age and survivors insurance {AHV)/disability Insurance(lV), pension funds)

as well as a lump sum allowance, long-service benefits, government child payments, etc. The parameters for the fair value calculation of shares and options

allocated in the year under review are disclosed on page 153 under “Share compensatian plan”.
" The shares were valued at the average market price in the period from January 1, 2008 to February 15, 2008.
*Value of the options according to the Black Scholes model at the time of allocation.
* Chairman, Chairman of the Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee,
* Deputy Chairman and Member of the Audit Committee.
* Member of the Governance, Nomination & Compensation Committee,
?Chairman of the Audit Committee.
' Member of the Audit Committee.
* Executive member of the Board of Directors, CEO.
* Member of senior management recelving the highest corpensation.
""including executive member of the Board of Directors, CEQ.
" Including director’s fees from subsidiary companies.



Compensation for former members of governing bodies
In the year 2007, compensation of CHF 263,700 was paid to two

former members of governing bodies.

Leans

As at December 31, 2007, there were loans outstanding, which
were granted to five members of senior management. There
were no loans to members of the Board of Directors outstanding.

The table provides details on the loans granted.

Borrower Position Original Loan amount  Interest Maturity Collateral
currency in CHF rate date
Thomas Knopfel Mémber of the Executive Committee CHF 32,000 variable 31.12.10 yes
Benocit-H. Koch Member of the Executive Committee  CHF 1,450,000 3.25% 31.01.10 yes
Benoit-H. Koch Member of the Executive Committee EUR 205,400 variable open yes
Urs Béhlen Area Manager CHF 93,000 variable 31.12.45 yes
Roland Kdhler Corporate Functional Manager CHF 300,000 variable 31.12.15 yes
Stefan Wolfensberger Corporate.Functional Manager - CHF 471,800 variable 31.12.22 yes
Total CHF 2,552,200
Shares and options owned by senior executives
The tables show the number of shares and options held by
senior executives as at December 31, 2007.
Board of Directors
Name Position Total number Total number
of shares of call options

Rolf Soiron Chairman, Governance, Nomination &

Compensation Committee Chairman 28,177 ) -
Ancire-as von Plant_a_ - bieputy Ehai;ma; - - '4,566 . -
Lord- Norma|_1 Fa_)wl-e.r A_Aembe; - - A ) -1,087 -
Eriéh Hunziker 7 Membe; o 4,763 -
Willy R. Kissling Member . 4,922 -
Peter Kipfer Member, Audit Committee Chairman 4,762 80,000
Adrian Loader Member 2,154 -
Gilbert ), B. Probst Member 5,340 -
H. Onne Ruding Member ‘ 2,124 -
Thomas Schmidheiny ~ Member R 53,741,950 -
W-olfgang Schiirer _ ;/\;:mbe; ) ) 31,081 -
Dieterispéltii o 'Kn-emb;r— o _ ) ‘ ; ' -3,775 -
Total Board of Directors
{non-executive members) 53,834,701 80,000

The total number of shares and call options comprise privately
acquired shares and call options, and shares allocated under
profit-sharing and compensation schemes. Non-executive
members of the Board of Directors did not receive any options

from compensation and profit-sharing schemes,

' Exercise price: CHF 110; Ratio 1:1; Style: European; Maturity: 21.5.2010.




Senior management

Name Pasition Total number Total number

of shares of call options
Markus Akermann Executive Member of the Board of Directors, CEQ 61,161 138,983
Tom Clough Member of the Executive Committee 13,744 44,588
Hansueli Heé Member of the Executive Committee 25,080 55,293
Paul Hugentobler Member of the Executive Committée 46,992 56,344
Thomas Knépfel Member of the Executive Committee 19,995 46,135
Benoit-H. Koch Member of the Executive Committee 25,080 48,873
Theophil H. Schlatter Member of the Executive Committee, CFO 35,803 65,971
Urs Bohlen Area Manager 7,944 4,91
Bill Bolsover Area Manager and Corporate Functional Manager 1,553 1,550
lavier de Benito Area Manager 8,229 5114
Bernard Kueng Area Manager and Corporate Functional Manager 2,294 0
Gérard Letellier Area Manager 4,375 2,570
Bernard Terver Area Manager 9,724 8,616
Jacques Bourgon Corporate Functional Manager 4,515 2,740
Beat Fellmann Corporate Functional Manager 2,297 2,700
Roland Kéhler Corporate Functional Manager 3,300 3,088
Stefan Wolfensberger Corporate Functional Manager 2,368 2,625
Total senior management 274,458 490,101

The total number of shares and call options include both pri-
vately acquired shares and call options, and those aliocated
under the Group’s profit-sharing and compensation schemes.

Options are issued solely on registered shares of Holcim Ud.

Other transactions

As part of the employee share purchase plan, Holcim manages
employees’ shares, by seiling and purchasing Holcim Ltd shares
to and from employees and on the open market. As a result,
the company purchased Holcim Ltd shares of CHF 0.6 miilion
{2006: 0.4} at stock market price from members of the senior

management.

No compensation was paid or loans granted to parties closely

related to members of the governing bodies.

40 Post-balance sheet events

On January 23, 2008, a competitor acquired 100 percent of the
outstanding shares of Orascom Cement, an affiliated company
of Orascom Construction Industries {OCI). Orascom Cement
owns 53.7 percent of the shares in Egyptian Cement Company.
As a result of a joint venture agreement with OCI, Holcim pro-
portionately consolidated its 43.7 percent interest in Egyptian
Cement Company. Given the acquisition of Orascom Cement
by a competitor, the joint venture agreement between OCl and
Holcim became void and Holcim will apply equity accounting
to its investment as of this date. Holcim’s stake remains
unchanged, so this bookkeeping change will have no impact on

consolidated net income,

In February 2008, Holcim subscribed to the private placement
issued by its associated company Huaxin Cement Co. Ltd.
amounting to USD 282 million which resulted in an increase in

its participation from 26.1 percent to 39.9 percent.

41 Authorization of the financial statements for issuance

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for
issuance by the Board of Directors of Holcim Ltd on February 22,
2008 and are subject to shareholder approval at the annual
general meeting of shareholders scheduled for May 7, 2008.




Principal companies of the Holcim Group

Region Company Place Nominal share capital Participation
in 000 (voting right)
Europe Holcim France Benelux S.A.S. France EUR 303,834 100.0%
- 7H7t£;n (?spaﬁa), S.A. Spain o EUR 1_5,882 9‘9.78;:7
"~ HoldmTradingsA © spain U RKR 19600 100.0%
Aggregate Indust-ri;as— UK Ltd Un-ited Kingdom (_JEP 32,891 7 100.0%
Holcim (Deutschland) AG Ge}many EUR 47,064 88.9%
Holcim (Sﬁddeutsch|-and) GmbH .Ge-rmany ‘EL;IR 6,450 100.0%
©Holdm(Schwei)AG  Switzerland chHr 142200  100.0%
o Holciim Gruppo {Italia) 5.p.A. Italy EUR o 1,000 100.0%
- Holcim Group Support Ltd Switzerland CHF o 1,008 100.0%
Holcim (Cesko) a.s. Czech Republic CZK ) _4.86.297 100.0%
Ho1_ci7r|-(5|ovensko) a.s. Slovakia - SKK -1,2-7_5;,—0—68 i 9_8_0';6_
_ Holc;n limgéria Zrt. o Hungary o "—TUF—_ 3.1{6,865 B 9;7%l
Holcim (Hrvat-sI;a)“dj).'o.r ) bC’r;:atié ) -HéK 94,000 99.8%
Holcim (Srbija) a.d. 7 Se-rbia csD 2,300,000 92.3%
Holcim (Romani;) SA ifo;nar;ia éON 274,243 99.7%
“____Eo‘lcir:n (éuTgaria) AD o Bulg;r;- “~—B—GN 1,093 S _1(_)(5.0%
S * Alpha Cement 1.5.C. Russia RUB 8,298 79.6%
o “Garadagh” Sement O.T.J.5.C. Azerbaijan - AZN - 31,813 79.4%
North America Holeim {US) inc. USA uso - 100.0%
o Aggregat;z Industries Inc. T USAT - usp o 194,058 160_(':)‘;€.
i I !';_t.nl.;lwrer:ce Cement Inc. - Canad;_ - N CAD - 167,769_ _—__—10_0.-0-%
Latin America Helcim Apasco S.A. de C.V. Mexico MXN 5,843,086 100.0%
Cemento de El Salvat-:lor S.A.deCV. El Salvador U;‘;D 78,178 64.3%
Holcim (Nicaragua-) SA Ni-caragua ;\HO 41,469 80.0%
" Holcim {Costa Rica) SA. "~ CostaRica CRC 8604056  59.8%
- Panama Cement Holding S.A.‘h - Panama o US_D_ o 11;‘7,1_35 ﬁof%"
o W&:r.i;;;ent Antilles N.v. Curagao usD B 53,899 ‘IOO.(E
Cemer;;s_Colén S.A Dominican RepL]inc Dop —__'ISS,OOO 35.5%
o Holcim {Colombia) 5.A. Colombia CoP 72,536,776 —9;8;
’ o Vi;icﬁcim (\;e_r:ezuela) C.A. o o Vene;gla. B o VEBﬁ 7 7,792,i77 1070_.0‘2
Holcim (Ecuadom . ”EcAuadorr -FSD 102,405 - 9i.1%
Holcim (Brasil) 5.A. ' Brazil _B_RL 455,675 99.9%
Jua;l Minetti 5.A, ; Ar-gentina AR§ 352,057 - 78.9%
S -C—e-l.'nentoA Polp_ai—co_S.Al S ﬁhcgilé j o 7 —_TP ) 7,047,991- o ;3%

' Joint venture, proportionate consclidation.



Region Company Place Nominal share capital Participation
in 000 {voting right)
Africa Middle East Holcim (Maroc) S.A. Morocco MAD 421,000 51.0%
Egyptlan-éer;eintiéom[;any S A E ! o Eg;rpt B o 7EGP7 7 Aygl ;.000 o 4;;%
Clments de Guinée S.A. Guinea GNF 46,393,000 59.9%#
‘Société de Ciments et Matériaux Ivory Coast XOF 907,000 T 99.9%
United Cement Compan;;f_l\ilg;:rmt-ci:_-_ Egea-__ - NGN 1,040,000 39.0%
- —-—---|ZJ|EIE;EH) S.AL o I:eba;)nr - - IBIT? ) 234,192,509 ) 5;;9;-
- Holcim {Outre-Mer) S. A s. La Réunion EUR ) 37,74& 100.0%
Aden Cement Enterprises Ltd. Republic of Yemen YER 106,392 100.0%
Asia Pacific ACC Ltimited? India INR 1,873,264 43.0%
S Ambuja Cements Ltd.” India INR 3,044,751 45.-7%
- i H-olcim (-l:i-ll'-lk'a) Lfd Sn Lanka LKR N ;.657,6';57 - 98.9%
Holcim (Bangladesh)_Ltd o Bangladesh Y —"_;20,000 59.6%
~ Siam City Cement (Publlc)Eomp;nyiL;nlaa;iT :I';I';I;;diﬁf o ;HB 2,375,000 36.8%
Holcim {Malaysia} Sdn Bhd o T\ﬂ;ia—ys; S ;\? - 10,450 IOBE
7 " Holcim (Singapore) Pe. Ltd Singapore 5D 28,754  100.0%
- . Jurong Cement Limited Singapore SGD ' 44,322 55.2%
F;T Holcim Indonesia Tbk, Indonesia IDR 3,83'1.,450.006 78.2%
Holcim {Vietnam} Ltd Vietnam uso 189,400 65.0%
- Holcim {Philippines) Inc. Philippines PHP g.452,099 78.7%
S (':ement Australia Holciings Pty Ltd' Australla AUD o ;95,746‘ - 5(370%
 Holcim(NewZealand)Ud  NewZealand _ NzD 22004 100.0%
Principal listed Group companies
Region Company Place of listing Market capitalization Security
at December 31, 2007 code number
in local currency
Europe Holcim (Deutschland) AG Frankfurt EUR 644 million  DEQOQ5259006
Latin America Holcim (Costa Rica) S.A. 5an José CRC 197,119 miilion CRINCOOAO010
Holeim (Ecuador) S.A. Quito, Gu;;]uil usD 1,105 mitlion ECiPa;iﬁa_S-;ﬁ
Juan Minetti S.A. N Buenos Ai; ARS 845 million  ARP6806N1051
Cemento Po_lpaico S.X.Fi - ;;ntiiagoﬁ" T -C'IF_'218,969 million  CLP221611070 -
Africa Mlddle East Holcim (Maroc) S.A. Casablanca MAD 10,736 million MA00000103 32
o I:Iolcim (L-iban) SAL Beirut usp 465 miI!ior-l Sicovam 921890
Asia Pacific ACC Limited Mumbai INR 192, 221 mllhon INEQ12A01025
) ) Ambuja Cements Lid. Mumbai INR 223, 637 million  INEO79A01024
T Sla}n_C_lt; C_e—ment {Publlc) Company Limited  Bangkok - T-HB_ 61.Sa)lmmon_47TH00210100(L)-27 7
PT Holcim Indonesia Tbk. ;k;rta—— o IDR 1_3—410 075 mnllmn _ID100007_2309
meIam {Philippines) In’c.‘ir - ”M;’Jlinllaﬁi - I;;;’“ 49,681 mllllon PHY3232G1014 i

' Joint venture, proportionate consolidation.

* Control obtained because of the power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the Board of Directors.




Principal finance and holding companies

Holcim Ltd

Aggreg‘:ate Industries Holdihgs Limited
Holcibel S.A.

Holcim Auslandbeteiligungs GmbH (Deutschlan.d-)
Holcim Beteiligungs GmbH {Deutschland)
Holcim Capital Corporation Ltd.

Holcim Capital (Thailand) Ltd.

Holcim {Centroamérica) B.V.

Holcim European Finance Ltd.

Holcim Finance {Australia) Pty Ltd

Holcim Finance (Belgium} SA

Helcim Finance (Canada) Inc.

Holcim Finance {Luxembourg} SA

Helcim GB Finance Ltd.

Holcim (India) Private Limited

Holeim Investments (France) SAS

Holcim Investments (Spain} S.L.

Holcim Overseas Finance Ltd.

Holcim Participations (UK) Limited
Holcim Participations (US) Inc. i
Holcim Reinsurance Ltd.

Holcim US Finance S.a r.l. & Cie 5.C.5.
Holderfin B.V.

Principal associated companies

Place

Switzerland

U-n‘ited-l(-ingaom

Belgium
Germany
Germany
Bermuda
Thaitand
Netherlands
Bermuda
Australia
Belugium
Canada
Lu.iemburg
Bermuda
India

France
Spain
Bermuda
United Kingdom
usa
Be}mu&a-
Luxemburg

Netherlands

Nominal share capital

in 000
CHF
GBP
EUR
EUR
EUR
UsD
THB
UsD
EUR
AUD
EUR
CAD
EUR
GBP
INR
EUR
EUR
CHF
GBP
UsD
CHF
UsD
EUR

527,172
505,581
831,000

2,556
102,000
2,630
1,100
655,019
25

0

62

0

1,900

8
18,474,775
15,551
60,003
16

0

67
1,453
10
3,772

Participation

(voting right)

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

Region Company Country of incorporation Participation
or residence {voting right)

North America Lattimore Materials Company, L.P. USA 49.0%
Latin America Cementos Progreso S.A, Guatemala 20.0%
Africa Middie East AfriSam (Pty) Ltd' South Africa 15.0%
Asia Pacific Espandar Cement Investment Company (PJS) tran 49.9%
Huaxin Cement Co. 1td. v China 26.1%

' Due to significant influence.




Report of the Group auditors to the general meeting of Holcim Ltd

As Group auditors, we have audited the consolidated financial statements {consolidated statement of income, consolidated
balance sheet, statement of changes in consolidated equity, consolidated cash flow statement and notes presented on pages 104
to 164} of Holcim Ltd for the year ended December 31, 2007. Certain financial statements of subsidiaries have been audited by

other auditors.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Cur responsibility is to express an epinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning

professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards and with the International Standards on Auditing (ISA},
which require that an audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement. We have examined on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant estimates
made and the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial positicn, the results of operations

and the cash flows in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.
We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

4)0/@64 L W

Christoph Dolensky Willy Hofstetter
Swiss Certified Accountant Swiss Certified Accountant

Auditor in charge

Zurich, February 22, 2008




Cement
Aggregates
Other construction

materials
and services

Principal companies of the Holcim Group

Holcim France Benelux $.A.S., France

Helcim Trading SA, Spain

Karl Gernaﬂdt

Vmcent Lefebvre

Regional General Manager:

Country Manager France:

Jose Canhllana

Chlef Executlve

Personnel: 103

Country Manager Belgium: Lukas Epple  Seaborne clinker and cement trading
Countr;_Manager_Netherlands: Gitta Hoogeveen  and others A
Perso:;n;h 3,475

Production capacity: 8.8 million t of cement

KEu;hiplant - 7- T Aggregate Industries UK Ltd, United Kingdom

D_annes p]a:t o S __. S Chief Executive: Bill Bolsover
Héming plaﬁt - - B -. o Pers;nnel: B ) ) . 6,554
Lumbres plant [ | Bardon ® A
Obourg plar:trlr S __- o Bardon Vech;v S o A
Rochefortplant W BradstonesstoneFlair A
Ba;kérque grigg;ng plant n Charcon A
Ebange grinding plant [ | Concrete Developments A
H—ac-c_ourt grir;d_in_g plant [ | Express A;ﬁalt ‘;
;h;re;f;;ldings: ) London Concrete B - ;
Greocyclé SA o B [ | B Masterblock 7 7 o A
Gralex S.A, . . - Ronez B - ® A
Holcim Betonmortel BY A a _A Shareholdings: ) ) L

Holcim Betonproducten B.V. A Foster Yeoman Limited @A
Holcim Bétons (Belglque}SA - 7 Halsvik Ag-greg:;; AS S . 7
chutnﬁBetons (France) 5.A.5. R 7 Paragon Materials Ltd N -‘
Holcim Granulats {Belgique) @ o
El—c;r;l_cranulats (France) S.A.S. ®

;’o_lcglrirrorondstoffen B.V. _A_ Holcim {Deutschland) AG, Germany

Holcim {Espaia), 5.A., 5pain

Chief Executlve Saverio A. Banchini

Personnel: 1,922

Chief Executive:

Leo Mittelholzer

Personnel: 1,155

Production capacity: 3.3 million t of cement

Production capacity: 6.1 million t of cement

Hover plant [ |
Lagerdorf plant [ |
Bremen grinding plant [ |

Carboneras plant [ ] Shareholdings:

Gddor plant [ ] Hannoversche Silo-Gesellschaft mbH A
Je—m;[ant [ | Holcim Beton und ‘Z:sc;uiagsstoffe GmbH oA
Ecz:;;ant - o ." Hutte-n-lsand Salzgltter GmbH & CO—E o __.
Torredonjimeno plal-1-t_— - [ ] SBU Kieswerk Zeithain GmbH & Co. KG ) _.
Yeles plant B [ |

Shareholdlngs

Holcim Aridos S.L. ® Holcim (Siddeutschland) GmbH, Germany
Holcim Hormigones S.A. A Regional General Manager: Carlo Gervasoni
Holcim Morteros S.A. A  Country Manager: Reto Willimann

Personnel: 286

Production capauty 1.6 million t of cement

Dotternhausen plant B

Shareholding:

@A

Holcim Kies und Beton GmbH



Holcim (Schweiz) AG, Switzerland

Holcim (Cesko} a.s., Czech Republic

Regional General Manager: Carlo Gervasoni

Regional General Manager: Kurt Habersatter

Country Manager: Kaspar Wenger

Country Manager: Roland van Wijnen

Personnel:

Production capacity:

1,225

3.9 million t of cement

Personnel: 425

1.5 million t of cement

Production capacity:

Brunnen plant Be Prachovice plant n [ ]
Eclépens plant - m Aéé-rega';:s operations _ e )
Siggenfhal p!a;\; i o m Ready-mix conch:te-;:})_e;ati(;;s - - A
Untervazplant W sharcholdings
Loriins grinding plant, Austria [ | Lom Klecany s.r.o A
Shareholdings: Transbeton Skanska s.r.o

Holcim BF+P SA A

Holcim Gradisles SA )

Haam Kies und Beton AG 7 ® ; Holcim (Slovensko) a.s., Slovakia

H-tiim- (_V—orarlb_erg) G:b;l A.u_s-t;a— - .-_ Regional General Manager: Kurt Habersatter

Holcim Gruppo (Italia) S.p.A., Italy

Country Manager: Roland van Wijnen

Personnel: 608

Production capacity:

2.1 million t of cement

Regional General Manager: Carlo Gervasoni  Rohoinik plant . |
Country Manager: Domenico Salvadore  Aggregates operations L
Personnel: 671 Ready-mix concrete operations 7 A—
Production capacity: 4.1 million t of cement  Shareholding: -
Merone plant B [ | o Holcim Wien GmbH, Aust;a 7 o _A—
Ternate plant R B T
M;_rano grinding plant“ 7 . - - .7

Shareholdings:

Holcim Hungéria Zrt., Hungary

Eurofuels [ | Regional General Manager: Kurt Habersatter
Holcim Aggregati S.r.l. ® Country Manager: Richard Skene
Holcim Caleestruzzi S.r.. A  Personnel: 703

Holcim Group Support Ltd, Switzerland

Personnel: 770

Management services A

Production capacity: 2.1 million t of cement

Hejdesaba plant [ |
Labatlan plant [ |

Aggregates operations
Ready-mix concrete operations A
Shareholding:

Pannonbeton Kft A

Holcim (Hrvatska) d.o.0., Croatia

Regional General Manager: Kurt Habersatter

Albert Szabo

Country Manager:
Personnel: 319

Praduction capacity: 1.0 million t of cement

Koromaéno plant [ |

Aggregates operations @

Ready-mix concrete operations A

Shareholding:

Holcim Mineralni Agregati d.o.o. ®




Cement
Aggregates
Other construction

materials
and services

Holcim {5rbija) a.d., Serbia

“Garadagh” Sement 0.7.).5.C., Azerbaijan

Regional General Manager:
Country Manager:
Persannel:

Production capacity:

Novi Popovac plant

Ready-mix concrete operations

Holcim (Romania) $.A., Romania

Kurt Habersatter
Gustavo Navarro
466

1.4 million t of cement

|
A

Regional General Manager:
Country Manager:
Personnel:

Production capacity:

Alesd plant

Campulung plant

Turda grinding plant
Aggregates operations

Ready-mix concrete operations

Holcim (Bulgaria) AD, Bulgaria

Kurt Habersatter
Markus Wirth
1,389
4.9 million t of cement
=
|
=
®

Regional General Manager:
Country Manager: -
Personnel:

Production capacity:

Beli lzvor plant

Pleven plant

Aggregates operations
Ready-mix concrete operations
Shareholdings:

Holcim Karierni Materiali AD
Karierl AD Plovdiv

Plevenski Cement A[S

ZCK Kremikovei

Alpha Cement ).5.C., Russia

Kurt Habersatter
Todor Kostov
885

1.8 million t of cement

Regional General Manager:
Country Manager:
Personnel:

Production capacit.y:
Shurovo plant -

Volsk plant

Gareth Babbs

Uwe Koehler

2,034

4.4 million t of- cement
|
|

Regional General Manager: Gareth Babbs
Country Manager: Horia Adrian
Personnel: 565
Production capacity: 2.0 millioﬁ t of cement
Garadagh plant [ |

Holeim {US) Inc., USA

Chief Executive: Patrick Dolberg
Personnel: 2,557
Production capacity: 17.1 millien t of cement
Ada plant

Artesia plant

Clarksville plant

Devil's Slide plant

Dundee plant

Holiy Hill plant

Mason City plant
Midlothian plant

Portland plant

Theodore plant

Trident plant

Birmingham grinding plant

Chicago grinding plant

Aggregate Industries Inc., USA

Chief Executive: Bill Bolsover
Coo: Nabil Bouris
Personnel: 4,984
Central Regfon ® A
Mid Atlantic Region ® A
North Central Region @A
North East Region @ A
South West Region @A
West Central Region oA
Shareholdings:

Hardaway Concrete A
Meyer Material Company ® A



St. Lawrence Cement Inc., Canada

Holcim (Costa Rica) S.A., Costa Rica

Chief Executive: Philippe Arto

Chief Executive: Sergio Egloff

Personnel: 3,624

5.3 million t of cement

Production capacity:

Catskill plant ]
Hagerstown plant 7 - 'R
Joliette plant [ ]
Mississauga plant - . 7
Sharehéla}ngs: _ -

Demix group . e aA
Duﬁérin grou;v)i 7 . k

Holcim Apasco 5.A. de C.V., Mexico

Chief Executive: Eduardo Kretschmer

Personnel: 3,956

Personnel: 1,474

1.5 million t of cement

Production capacity:

Cartago plant [ |

Shareholdings:

Hidroeléctrica Aguas Zarcas 5.A.
Holcim Agregados S.A. ®
Holcim Concretera S.A.

A
A
Productos de Concreto S.A. A

Panama Cement Holding S.A., Panama

Chief Executive: Sergio Egloff

Personnel: 458

Production capacity: 0.8 million t of cement

Production capacity: 10.9 million t of cement  Quebrancha grinding plant - [ ]
Acapulcorplant o o .- - 'Shénr_tzr;oldings: - o o
Apaxcoplant T m Cemento Panams Comercializadoras.a. W
Macuspana plant n CementoPanamisa. W
Orizabaplant W ConcretosA A
Ramos- l;;zpe plant - S . o &orporiaciéu; In;f:;—STA. - —_- 7
Tecomsn plant N GravasA. - e
Shareholdings: ] B o o
Cementos Apasco 5.A. de C.V. [ |

Concreto-s Apasco 5.A. de C.V. - 7 A Caricement Antilles N.V., Curagao

Gravasa S.A. de C.V. o 7 - N __. Chief Executive: Juan Miglﬁl Lahitte

Cemento de El Salvador 5.A. de C.V., El Salvador

Chief Executive:

Ricardo A. Chavez Caparroso
an

Personnel:

Preduction capacity: 1.7 million t of cement

Personnel: 43

Antilles terminals .

Cementos Colén $.A., Dominican Republic

Chief Executive: luan Miguel Lahitte

El Ronco plant - | Personnel; - 93

Maya plant ) . ) Proddction capacity: 0.6 million t of cemenf

Shareholdiﬁés: o 7 D —' E‘fjiy‘o grinding_pia_ﬂf ____ :.: _ 4

Bolsas de Centroamérica S.A. de C.V. ) A

Concretera Mixto Listo S.A. de C.V. A

Cc;ncrete?S_alv;&o_re;_S;. d;CV o A Holcim (Colombia) 5.A., Colombia

B o o N Chief Executive: Moisés Pérez
Personnel: s

Holcim {Nicaragua) S.A., Nicaragua ProdIJ-ction capacit-y: o 14 miIIion_t o;cemeni

Chief Executive: Sergio Egloff NoI;sa plant 7 ) .

PersonneI: o ) o 82 Agér;éates operations N 7 @

ProdﬁétTt;ﬁ capacity: T }):ﬁﬁlio;\ t_;—cc;.ment ke_a;)r_-_rnix concre—tg operatio_ns—A - A

Nagarote grinding plant [ |




Holcim (Venezuela) C.A., Venezuela

Juan Minetti 5.A., Argentina

Chief Executive:
Personnel:
Production capacity:
Clj};mé-rebo plant
Sa_n—St-abastién plant

Aggregates operations

Ready-mix concrete operations

Holcim {Ecuador) $.A,, Ecuadoer

Louis Beauchemin
774

2.9 million t of cement

Chief Executive:

Personnel:

Production carpua;i-ty: _
Guiaryaquil plaﬁ-t:‘
L-a;cunga griﬁding plant_ o
Ag‘g}egates operations N
Ready-mix concrete operations

Shareholdings:

Distribuidora Rocafuerte (Disensa) S.A.

Generadora Rocafuerte S.A.

Holcim {Brasil) 5.A., Brazil

Andreas Leu
902

3.5 million t of cement

> >

Chief Executive:
Personnel; .
Production capacity:
Barroso plant
Cantagalo plant
Pedro Leopoldo plant
Sorocaba grinding plant ;
Vit:‘)ria grinding plant o
Agg_r:t;g-atef ;Jp'?rations

Ready-mix concrete operations

Cement

Aggregates

Other construction
materials
and services

Carlos Biihler
1,850

4.5 million t of cement

Chief Executive: Otmar Hibscher
Personnel: 1,071

4.3 million t of cement

Production cag;acity:
a:-pdeville plant

a;lagueﬁo_p_lgnt B
;LIEStO Viejo Ja_nt

Yocsina plant

E
\
EEaEs

Campana grinding plant
Ready-mix concrete operations A
Shareholdings:
Ecoblend S.A.

Hormix S.A. h

> >

Cemento Polpaico S.A., Chile

Chief Executive: Oscar Parada
Personnel: 1,061

Production capacity: 2.3 million t of cement

Cerro Blanco plant [ ]
Coronel grinding plant [ ]
Melillones grinding plant [ ]

Shareholding:
Pétreos S.A. ® A

Holcim (Maroc) 5.A., Morocco

Chief Executive: Dominique Drouet
Personnel: 649
Production capacity: 5.2 million t of cement
Qujda plant - -
Eas Bl Ma plgi
;;t;at plantili I
ﬁédor grind-in_g i:)lémtv
S;hareholdiﬁ;
Ecoval B [

Holcim AOZ |

Holcim Bétons A

Holcim Granulats ]

Egyptian Cement Company 5.A.E., Egypt

Chief Executive: MNassef Sawiris

Personnel: 1,247

Production capacity: 8.2 million t of cement

El Soukhna plant |



Ciments de Guinée S.A., Guinea

Aden Cement Enterprises Ltd., Republic of Yemen

Chief Executive: Mohamed Ali Bensaid

Personnel: 233

Production capacity:

0.6 million t of cement

Conakry grinding plantr - [ |

Société de Ciments et Matériaux, Ivory Coast

Chief Executive: Johan Pachler
Personnel: | 193
Production capacity: 0.8 million t of cement

Abidjan grinding plant [ |

United Cement Company of Nigeria Ltd, Nigeria

Chief Executive: Jaafar Skalli
Personnel: 142
Aden terminal B

ACC Limited, India

Chief Executive: Sumit Banerjee
Personnel: W 17,686
Production capacity: 22.7 million t of cement
Bargarh plant

Chaibasa plant

AEE'N

Chanda plant

Gagal plants

|
+
v
|
1

Jamul plant

Chief Executive:

Joey Ghose
Personnel: 304

Production capacity: 0.4 million t of cement

Calabar grinding plant [ |

Holeim (Liban) S.A.L., Lebanon

Chief Executive: Vincent Bouckaert

Personnel: 373

Production capacity:

2.6 million t of cement

Chekka plant - | ]
ér;a-;e-holai_ngs: o
Holcim Béton S.A.L. ) A
Société Libanaise des Ciments Blancs l [ | |

Bogaz Endustri ve Madencilik,
Northern Cyprus [ |

Holcim (Qutre-Mer) 5.A.5., La Réunion

Kymore plant

Lakheri plant
Madukkarai plant

Wadi plants

Da;'nodhar grinding plant
Sindri grinding plant

Tikaria grinding plant

S

Ready-mix concrete operations

Ambuja Cements Ltd,, India

Chief Executive: Amrit Lal Kapur

Personnel: 10,116

Production capacity: 20.1 million t of cement

Ambujanagar plants

Bhatapara plant
Darlaghat plant [ ]
Maratha plant [ ]

'
1
'
3
1
y
i
I
|

Rabriyawas plant

Chief Executive: Andreas Rogenmoser
P—e;'sc_mnelz o 7 7 ;9;
Production capacity: 0.9 million t of cemen-t
Ibity plant '
Le Port grinding plant

Nouméa grinding plant
f:hiariehrcnidiﬁgs: .

Holcim MadagascarsA. Ml
ﬂol_cinl(_Ma_’L;ritirus) Ltd A' o

Bhatinda gﬁrinding plant

Roorkee grinding plant

Ropar grinding plant

[
[
Farakka grinding plant - i
[
[
Sankrail grinding plant [ |

Holcim {Lanka) Ltd, Sri Lanka

Chief Executive: Peter Spirig

Holcim (Nouvelle Calédonie} $.A.

Holcim Précontraint S.A. A
Holcim (Réunion) 5.A. [ |

Personnel: 655

Production capacity: 1.4 million t of cement

Palavi plant [ |

Ruhunu grinding plant [ |



Halcim {Bangladesh) Ltd, Bangladesh

PT Holcim Indonesia Tbk., Indonesia

Chief Executive:

Personnei:

Production cépacity:
Menghnaghat grinding plant
Mongla grinding plant
Shareholdings:

Cemcor Limited

Saiham Cement Industries Ltd

United Cerment Industries Limited

1.3 million t of cement

Pn lyer
508
|
|
A
-
L

Siam City Cement {Public) Company Limited, Thailand

Chief Executive:
Personnel:
Production capacity:
Saraburi plants
Shareholdings:
Conwood Co. Ltd.

Siam City Concrete Co. Ltd.

Holcim {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, Malaysia

Marcel Smit

3,944

14.8 million t of cement

A
A

Chief Executive:
Personnel:

Production capacity:

Allan Cheah
131

1.2 million t of cement

Pasir Gudang grinding plant |
Ready-mix concrete ope_rations ) o A
Holcim (Singapore) Pte. Ltd, Singapore

General Manager: Sujit Ghosh
Personnek: 159
Ready-mix concrete operations A
Jurong Cement Limited, Singapore

Chief Executive: o _Jo_e_KEgr
Personnel: - _ ‘-_ o ___- 134
R.ead-y-m|:x concrete opefatlic;ns; A

Cement

Aggregates

Gther construction
materials
and services

Chief Executive: Tim Mackay
Personnel: 2,324
I;)aa;;io;_cz;;aa—c_itry:ﬁ N 8.0 million t of cement
Cila‘cap pl‘a;1t S [ |
ﬁarogong plant [ |
Shareholdings:

PT Holcim Beton @ A
P-TmWah%riz; 'fr:iré_ten}a ) _ [ |

Holcim {Vietnam) Ltd, Vietnam

Chief Executive: Aidan Lynam
I;rsoﬁr;étz 1,346

Production capacity: 4.1 million t of cement

Hon Chong plant [ ]
Cat Lai grinding plant [ ]
Tuh-i -\.;'ai gr-i-ndil;lg- plar;t -.
Ready-mix concrete operations - A

Holcim (Philippines) Inc., Philippines

Chief Executive: lan Thackwray

Personnel: 1,363

Production capacity: 9.9 million t of cement

Bulacan plant

Davao plant
La Union plant

Lugait plant

Shareholding:

Trans Asia Power Corporation A




Cement Australia Holdings Pty Ltd and

Cement Australia Partnership, Australia

Chief Executive: Chris Leon
1,479

Production capacity: 3.8 million t of cement

Personnel:

Gladstone plant

Kandos plant

Railton plant
Rockhampton plant

Bulwer Island grinding plant
Shareholdings:
Australian Steel Mill Services Pty A

Cement Australia Packaged Products Pty Ltd. [l
P;::‘zzolanic Industries Pty L;&.- - o |.

TI_1e Cornwall Coal M_ining C;:;n;)a-n;r bty Ltd. o A
Holcim {New Zealand) Ltd, New Zealand

Chief Executive: Jeremy Smith
Personnel: 825
Production capacity: 0.6 million t of cement
Westport plant [} ]
Christchurch grindhing_rpml-an-t m
Aggreéates operations - 7 L
Ready-mix concrete opé;atiic{ns_ B - A

Shareholdings:

AML Ltd. ' - A
McDonald's Lime Ltd. A
Millbrook Quarries Ltd - ®




Statement of income Holcim Ltd

Million CHF 2007 2006
I;i‘ﬁa:\ncriall_i;lcome - - o S 2,454.3 410.0
i)the-r c;r_dTna_ry income - - o o i 35.4 20.7
Extra;)rni;n;r;r inco;e- B ) o 11.4 3,482.3
Total income i 2,501.1 3,913.0
Firancial expenses (95.4) (77.6)
Other ordinéry expenses (42.3) (26.0)
Change.i_r.:_pl:f;\—risvio-ns and valuatibn adjus_tn:e-n—t;r_)r} finar{ciél.i-nv;fstments 7 o 0 (2.1}
Taxes o S ) _ (54.3) (2.8)
Tofa!_expenses L o {192.0) (108.5)
Net income 2,309 3,804.5



Balance sheet Holcim Ltd as at December 31

Million CHF 2007 2006
Cash and cash equivalents 457.0 269.5
Accounts receivable - Group companies 753.5 583.9
Accounts receivable — third parties 0.3 3.7
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 10.6 11.4
Total current assets 1,221.4 868.5
Loans - Group companies 1,780.4 1,370.4
Financial investments — Group companies 13,472.2 11,2039
Other financial investments 6.3 ¢
Total long-term assets 15,258.9 12,574.3
Total assets 16,480.3 13,442.8
Current financing liabilities — Group companies 279.0 202.7
Other current liabilities 6105 676.0
Total current liabilities 889.5 878.7
Long-term financing liabilities — Group companies 1451 114.2
Debentures 1,650.0 1,250.0
Total long-term liabilities 1,795.1 1,364.2
Total liabilities 2,684.6 2,242.9
Share capital 527.2 510.7
Legal reserves

— Ordinary reserve 7,292.0 6,505.2
— Reserve for treasury shares 67.1 61.8
Free reserve 3,462.8 262.8
Retained earnings 2,446.6 3,859.4
Total shareholders’ equity 13,795.7 11,199.9
Total liabilities and sharehelders’ equity 16,480.3 13,442.8



Change in shareholders” equity Holcim Ltd

Share Ordinary Reserve for Free Retained Total
capital reserve treasury reserve earnings
shares

Mil-lion CMF S - - o
January 1, 2006 459.9 4,399.6 59.3 262.8 437.3 5,618.9
Capital increase 50.8 50.8
Capitat surplus 2,108.1 2,108.1
Increase reserve for treasury shares {2.5) 25 0
Dividends {382.4) (382.4)
Net income of the year 3,804.5 3,804.5
December 31, 2006 510.7 6,505.2 61.8 262.8 3,859.4 11,159.9
;January 1, 2007 510.7 _ 6,505.2 61.8 262.8 3,859.4 11,199.9
ZCapitaI increase 165 16.5
Capital surplus ' 792.1 792.1
:Increase reserve for treasury shares {5.3) 5.3 0
Dividends (521.9) (521.9)
Allocation to free reserve 3,200.0 (3,200.0) 0
:Net income of the year 2,309.1 2,309.%
Pecember 31, 2007 527.2 7,292.0 67.1 3,462.8 1,446.6 13,795.7




Data as required under Articles 663b and c of the Swiss Code of Obligations

Contingent liabilities 31.12.2007 31.12.2006
Million CHF o - - o o

Holcim Capital Corporation Ltd. 4

Guarantees in respect of holders of )

3.75% CHF 0 million bonds due—n;\_2(307 - S . ) ;____ ) 1 0 218
5.83% USDO mllllon pnvatéﬁplacemea;:i:ne il-'l 2_0_07 - ) ) _ 7 o 44
6.60% USD 168 million private placement due in 2008 - o _' 197" 214
5.93% USD 105 million private placement due in 20-69—__- R - - ) 126 133
7.05% USD 358 million private placement due in 2011 - _ 459’ 481
6.59% USD 165 million private placement due in 2014 217 225
0.00% USQ 0 mllllon convertlble bonds due in 2017" _— i _ ) -___i" - _-“7_“___‘ 0 159
7.65% USD 50 million private pl_ac;me_nf due-in 2031 n o 31 84
Holcim Capital (Thailand) Ltd.

GL;arant;z;s: Ees;;ezt df holdersioifw T R

6.12% THB 3,000 miilion bonds due in 2008 100? 103
6.48% THB 2,150 million bonds dueln 2010 - - - - - Ak 74
6.69% TI-E EES_O—n‘;Ill_lon bonds‘d[l;l; 2012 - S i o ) S 8 84
Holcim Fmance (Australla) Pty Ltd

Guarantees in respect of holders of o o

6.50% AUD 175 million bonds due in 2000 - ' 173 169
6.76% AUD 85 million bonds due in 2009 84 82
Holcim Finance (Belgium) SA

Commercial Paper Program, guarant-ee based on utlla;_;tlon EURLSOO m||l|on maximum R 365* 294
Holcim Finance (Canada) Inc.

Guarantees in respect of holde:s of" 7 ‘ S 7 - - f ,

5.86% CAD 0 million private placement due i in 2007 0 13
6.91% CAD 10 million private placement dueln 2017 _ 14 13
5.90% CAD 300 million bonds due in 2013 - o ] 380° 0
Holcim Finance (Luxembourg) SA

Guarantees in respect of holders of ) o

4.38% EUR 750 million bonds due in2010 o 1367 1,326
4,38% EUR 600 million bonds due in 2014 - 1,094* 1,061
Holcim Overseas Finance Ltd.

Guarantees in resprecrt 6f holders m: - T o T S

2.75% CHF 300 million notes due in 2011 - 330 330
1.00% CHF 0 mllllon convertlble bonds due in 2012 D S ) ) 1] 719
3.00% CHF 250 million notes due in 2013 S T ' 275 0
Holcim US Finance 5.3 r.l. & Cie 5.C.5.

Guarantees in respect of hold;;s of ) I - o —

5.96% USD 125 million private placement due in 201-3 - o o - a7 152
6.10% USD 125 million private placement due in 2016 - 47 152
6.21% USD 200 million private placement due in 2018 T - s 244
Guarantees fc for com_mltted credit Ilnes utilization CHF 2, 255 mllllon - 5,480 5,537
Other guarantees, utilization CHF 54 ;I”]Oﬂ o I 735 1,095

Holcim Ltd is part of a value added tax group and therefare jointly liable to the Swiss Federal Tax Administration for the value added tax

liabilities of the other members.

' Exchange rate USD: CHF 1.1263.
*Exchange rate THB: CHF 0.033239.
* Exchange rate AUD: CHF 0.991.
*Exchange rate EUR: CHF 1.6573.
*Exchange rate CAD: CHF 1.1514.



Issued bonds
The outstanding bonds and private placements as at Decem-

ber 31, 2007 are listed on pages 144 and 145.

Principal investments

The principal direct and indirect investments of Holcim Ltd
are listed under the heading “Principal companies” on
pages 162 10164,

Treasury shares Number Price per share in CHF Million CHF
01.01.06 Treasury shares 828,998 71.58 59.3
01.01.t0 31.12.06 Movement (149,088) 99.60 2.5
31.12.06 Treasury shares 679,912 90.84 61.8
01.01.07  Treasury shares 679,912 9084 618
b1.01. to 31.12.07 Movement {11,063) 124.82 5.3
:31.1 2.07 Treasury shares 668,849 100.27 67.1
Conditional share capital Number Price per share in CHF Million CHF
01.01.06 Conditional shares par value 14,007,875 2.00 28.0
01.01.t0 31.12.06 Movement {4,348,060) 2.00 (8.7)
31.12.06 Conditional shares par value 9,659,815 2.00 19.3
01.01.07 Conditional shares par value 9,659,815 ' 2.00 193
p1 .01.1t0 31.12.07 Movement (8,237,465} 2.00 (186.5) _
.‘31.12.0'{_ Conditional shares par value 1,422,350 .00 2.8

Share interests of Board of Directors and senior management
As at December 31, 2007, the members of the Board of Direc-
tors and the senior management of Holcim held directly
and indirectly in the aggregate 54,309,159 (2006: 54,001,051}
registered shares and no rights to acquire further registered
shares and 570,101 {2006: 496,61g) call options on registered

shares.

Important shareholders'
As at December 31, 2007, Thomas Schmidheiny directly and
indirectly held 53,741,950 or 20.39 percent {2006: 53,698,257

or 21.03 percent) registered shares.?

Capital Group Companies Inc. held 13,173,185 or 4.99 percent
shares as at October 19, 2007.

' Shareholding of morse than 3 percent.

! Included in share interests of Board of Directors and senior management.

The information disclosed complies with all Swiss tegal
requirements. Further information can be found in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 161.
Specific information in accordance with Art. 663b™ and

Art. 663c para. 3 of the Swiss Code of Obligations (transparency
law) are disclosed in Note 3g on pages 158 to 161



Dividend-bearing share capital 2007 2006

Shares B B 7 Number MillionCHF  Number  Million CHF

Regfs?e;:d_sr;;;r;s:f_éﬁﬁ_i_ﬁ»;r—value S S —f 263,586,090 527.2 5§10.7

Total o | 263,586,090 521.2 510.7
!

Appropriation of retained earnings

CHF _

Retaine;d earnings brought forward ) [ 137,511,293 54,906,182

Net income of the year

2,309,086,321

3,804,481,989

Retained earnings . 2,446,597,614 3,859,388,171

:I'he E«Ej of_l_)i_rzjr_s p-;oposes t;the annual_g;:e—ral_ o

meeting of shareholders of May 7, 2008 in Diibendorf \

the following appropriation: }

Gros;aaend‘ o o - o o T {867,626,895) (521,876,878)

Appropriation to free reserves i ; (1,500,000,000) (3,200,000,000)

Balance to be carried forward ‘[ o i _78,91_0.719 ) 137,511,293

This results in the following dividend per share:

Dividend Gross Net?
Regist;r;d Vsharei 7 - o o - B o CHF 3.307- a o CHF 21—45-

On May 13, 2008, the dividend on registered shares will be paid

in accordance with shareholders’ instructions.

' No dividend is paid on treasury shares held by Holcim. On January 1, 2008,

treasury holdings amounted to 668,849 registered shares.
* After deduction of 35 percent withholding tax.






Report of the statutory auditors to the general meeting of Holcim Ltd

As statutory auditors, we have audited the accounting records and the financial statements (income statement, balance sheet
and notes presented on pages 174 to 17g9) of Holcim Ltd for the year ended December 31, 2007.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning professional qualification

and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards, which require that an audit be planned and performed to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free fram material misstatement. We have examined on
a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting
principles used, significant estimates made and the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for cur opinion.

In our opinion, the accounting records and financial statements and the proposed appropriation of available earnings comply with

Swiss law and the company's Articles of Incorporation.
We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Jowf; A WA

Christoph Dolensky Willy Hofstetter
Swiss Certified Accountant Swiss Certified Accountant

Auditer in charge

Zurich, February 22, 2008






5-year-review Group Holcim

2007 2006 2005' 20047 2003"
Statement of income
Net sales Million CHF 27,052 23,969 15,468 13,215 12,600
Gross-ﬁrofit - i o ) 7 Millior; éHFf 12,979 11,353 Mg,'fZQ - 6,577 - 6,017
Operating€TDA  Million CHF 6,930 6086 4627 3588 3311
Operating EBMDA margn % 256 254 250 272 263
E-BITD—A— - S —”Milli;;a:ﬁ: 8,468 6,333 _—4,757 -_"3,6-19"_' 3.738737‘
Oper—a-ting pro%it-_ - o - o —Million éHF ' 5,024 4,385 _-—;,316 - 2,251 ) 1,925 ‘
Operating profit margin %. 18.6 18.3 7-18.0 17.0 15.3
Depreciation and amortization Million CHF 1,919 1,723 1—,339 1,444 1,446
EBIT Million CHF 6,549 4,610 3,418 2,175 1,937
Income taxes Million CHF 1,201 1,078 865 ) 510 510
Tax ra_te ‘ ) N - % 20.9 28.4 ) -32.6 ) 311 35.5
Net i;coi'ne _ o - - —Millic;:;a:l'F 4,545 2,719 . 41‘,789 o 1,128 B 928 .
Nétincom;: mairlg;;i S _'56 16.8 11.3 - 9.7 o -8.5 o _7.4--
NéﬁﬁrTcorﬁ; —'eqTity I:mIdel:off Holcim - o m-vMiIIi;J:;EHF 3,865 2,104 A"‘I-,‘51 li o 889 o u682 -
Cash flow statement
Cash flow from operating activities Million CHF ' 5,323 4,423 ;.405 2,622 2,619
Cash flow margin 7 % 19.7 18.5 18.4 19.8 20.8
Investments in property, plant and equipment for maintenance  Million CHF 1,043 1,062 7 879 755 802
Investments in property, plant and equipmen;‘. for expansion l Million CHF 2,245 1,265 607 368 490
Financial investments in financial assets_, - -
intangible assets and other assets net Million CHF 2,277 2,054 4,853 1,279 442
Balance sheet
Cur;e_r\t_éssets . o R A _‘Million CH;' 10,372 9,747 - .8,849 - 7,396 ) 6,028
Long-térm assets N B N 7 MillionWCHF 37,839 34,955 7 ;9,262 7 7i8,454 7 18,786 7
Total -assets A o o ) Million—CHF 48,211 44,702 3.8,1 11 - 25,850 24,814
Short-term liabilities Million CHF 9,025 8,621 '6,782 5,350 5,224
Long-term liabilities Million CHF 17,241 17.356 1;1,079 9,839 10,127
Total shareholders’ equity Million CHF 21,945 18,725 1.;'1,250 - 10,661 9,463
Shareiholders' equ_ity as % ofgotal assets‘_ ) - 45.5 41,9 o 37.4 a 41.2 381
Minority interest © MillionCHF 3,163 3548 2783 278 2666
N-et-—mnc_i-ai dglst__— - o __—_-.'\}iillion CHF 12,873 12,837 _1.2_,693 o 6,‘846;7“ B 8,37247
Capacity, sales and personnel
Annual };rodugti;ca'p;citﬁrﬁent_ - " Miltiont 197.8 1978 1604 154.1 1452
Sales of cement 7 Million t 149.6 140.7 41 10.6 ) 102.1 94.3
Sales of mineral components Million t 5.5 6.0 i 5.5 4.4 32 .
Sales of aggregates Million t 187.9 187.6 VL‘I 69.3 104.2 95.9 ‘
Sales of ready-mix concrete Million m’ 45.2 442 ) 38.2 293 27.0
Personnel - e B 3%.12. 89,364 88,783 ?9,901 - 46,909 7 48,220 )
Financial ratios
Retur_rl-c;nAequity’k - o 7 % 228 15.8 - 175:1 o 11.767 o 10.72 )
Gearing' % 57 686 891 642 880
Funds from operaitic;ns’/net'f'ihancial'd;b-t - o __‘56 50.2 346 - 24.6 o 37.67 ) 28.5 )
EBITDA net intere;st cvverag; ) ) X 11.0 6.8 - 6.0 B 6.8 6.8-
EBIT net interest coverage X 5.0 4.3 4.1 3.9 .

' Restated in line with 1AS 21 amended.

P Restated in line with new and revised (FRS, effective January 1, 2005.

* Excludes minerity interest.

* Net financial debt divided by total sharehelders’ equity.

* Net income plus depreciation and amortization.

8.5



Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements
This document may contain certain forward-fooking state-
ments relating to the Group’s future business, development
and economic performance. Such statements may be subject
to a number of risks, uncertainties and other important
factors, such as but not limited to (1) competitive pressures;
(2) legislative and regulatory develepments; (3) global, macro-
economic and political trends; (4) fluctuations in currency
exchange rates and general financial market conditions;

{5) delay or inability in obtaining approvals from authorities;
{6} technical developments; (7} litigation; {8) adverse publicity
and news coverage, which could cause actual development
and results to differ materially from the statements made in
this document. Holcim assumes no obligation to update or
alter forward-looking statements whether as a result of new

information, future events or otherwise.

Holcim Ltd

Ziircherstrasse 156
CH-B645 Jona/Switzerland
Phone +41 58 B58 86 00
info@holcim.com
www.holcim.com

© 2008 Holcim Ltd — Printed in Switzerland on FSC paper

L




Holcim is a worldwide leading producer of cement and aggregates.
Further activities include the provision of ready-mix concrete and asphalt

as well as other services. The Group works in more than 70 countries
and employs aimost 90,000 people.
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Key figures Group Holcim

January-March 2008 2007 % +%
- like-for-like
Annual production capacity cement million t 195.1 197.8° ~1.4 +0.5
Sales of cement million t 34.2 346 -1.2 +4.0
Sales of mineral components million t 0.7 1.1 -36.4 -17.9
Sales of aggregates million t 327 36.2 -9.7 -5.5
Sales of ready-mix concrete million m’ 10.5 9.4 +11.7 +11.7
Sales of asphalt million t L 2.1 -9.5 -9.5
Net sales million CHF 5,509 5,728 -3.8 +7.4
Operating EBITDA million CHF 1,151 1,342 -14.2 +0.6
Operating EBITDA margin % 20.9 234
EBITDA million CHF 1.239 1,382 =103
Operating profit milliogn CHF 737 904 -18.5 -0.7
Operating profit margin % 13.4 15.8
Net income million CHF | 513 530 -3.2
Net income margin % ‘ 9.3 9.3
Net income ~ equity holders of Holcim Ltd million CHF 370 356 +3.9
Cash flow from operating activities million CHF (158) 130 -221.5 =2215
Cash flow margin % (2:9)_ 2.3
Net financial debt million CHF 13,455 12,873 +4.5 +15.6
Total shareholders’ equity millien CHF 19,771 21,945 -9.9
Gearing? % ~ 68.1 58.7"
Personnel 88,954 89,364’ -0.5 +0.1
Earnings per dividend-bearing share’ CHF 1.41 1.40 +0.7
Fully diluted earnings per share’ CHF 1.41 139 +1.4
Principal key figures in USD (illustrative)*
Net sales million USD 5,247 4,657 +12.7
Operating EBITDA millionUSD | 1,096 1,091 +0.5
Operating profit million USD 702 735 -4.5 ' As of December 31,
e .
Net income — equity holders of Holcim Ltd million USD 352 289 +21.8 200
Cash flow from operating activities million USD {150) 106 -2415 ! Net financial debt
Net financial debt millionUSD | 13591 11,392'  +19.3 divided by tota|
- shareholders
Total shareholders’ equity million USD 19,971 19,4207 +2.8 equity.
Earnings per dividend-bearing share’ usD 134 1.14 +17.5
- e ¥ EPS calculation
based on net
Principal key figures in EUR {illustrative)’ income attribut-
able to equity
Net sales million EUR | 3,443 3,536 -26 holders of
Operating EBITDA million EUR 719 828 -13.2 Holcim Ltd
K y — = weighted average
Operating profit million EUR 461 558 -17.4 number of shares.
Net income — equity holders of Holcim Ltd million EUR 231 220 +5.0
. L Sy * Income statement
Cash flow from operating activities million EUR B 7(99) 80 ~-223.8 figures translated
Net financial debt million EUR 8570 7,755! +10.5 at average rate;
. : i ’ balance sheet
Total shareholders’ equity million EUR 12,593 13,2200 -4.7 fi :
- igures at closing
Earnings per dividend-bearing share? EUR 0.88

0.86 +2.3 rate.




The Group has achieved further organic growth. But the strong

Swiss franc and expensive energy are having an impact.

Dear Shareholder

There are difficulties in making comparisons between the first quarter of 2008 and the previous year's results
because of substantial changes in the company. Since the sale of the majority stake in June 2007, Holcim South
Africa has been deconsolidated from the Group. Egyptian Cement - in which we maintain a 44 percent interest -
has also been deconsolidated. These changes have resulted in total cement capacity being reduced by approxi-
mately 8 million tannes and also substantially decreased volumes of aggregates and ready-mix concrete. The
deconsolidations have both affected the region’s weighting within the Group and the financial results. In addition,
the financial results were impacted by the weakening of most foreign currencies by approximately 7 percent.
Nevertheless, Holcim was able to achieve positive organic growth® at operating level in the first quarter of 2008

with contributions from three of the five Group regions.

Group - ] Jan-March Jan-March &% %
2008 2007 like-for-like

Sales of cement in million t T 342 34.6 1.2 +4.0
Sales of aggregates in million t | 327 36.2 =-9.7 -5.5
s_a!es of ready-mix concrete in million mr_ B A_j]' - 10.5 9.4 :t :+1_li +E.7_-
Sales of asphalt in miltion £ : 1.9 2.1 -9.5 -9.5
NetsalesinmilionchF | 5509 5728 =38 474
Operating EBITDA in million CHF | 1151 1342 -142 406
Operating profit in million CHF | 737 904  -185 0.7
ﬁei—in_t:omein milliorzl:ll; S ___j 513 530 S -§.2 S

‘ ;\Iét income - equity holders of Holcim Ltd o 7 - -

‘ in million CHF L 370 356 +3.9
Cash flow from operating activities in million CHF | (158) 130 —2215 —2215

| L
Europe’s construction industry overall turned in a solid performance. Spain was the anly country which faced
a massive fall-off in activity. Demand for building materials remained robust in the majority of central and
eastern European countries. But in North America, the real estate crisis had serious repercussions for building
activity. Holcim US and Aggregate Industries US were affected more severely than Canadian St. Lawrence
Cement. Latin America reported an encouraging level of organic growth, Business was good above all in Brazil
and Central America. The different Group region Africa Middle East posted strong gains. Holcim Morocco
benefited from the building boom and the additional cement capacity available at the Settat plant. Dynamic
construction activity in Asia Pacific supported sales volumes at a number of Group companies. However, pressure
on costs has increased, negatively affecting the results of the two Group companies in India in particular, where
energy prices, especially for coal, clinker purchases and transportation have witnessed strong price rises.

This increase in costs could not be fully passed on to customers.
Group-wide deliveries of cement decreased by 1.2 percent to 34.2 million tonnes and consolidated sales of
aggregates by 9.7 percent to 32.7 million tonnes. Volumes of ready-mix concrete increased by 11.7 percent to

10.5 million cubic meters. Sales of asphalt fell by 9.5 percent to 1.9 million tonnes.

* Factoring out currency translation effects and changes in the scope of censolidation.




Consolidated net sales decreased by 3.8 percent to CHF 5.509 billion. Operating EBITDA fell off by 14.2 percent
to CHF 1151 billion. Factering out changes in the scope of consolidation totaling CHF 109 million and negative
currency translation effects of CHF 9o million, operating EBITDA increased by 0.6 percent. The operating EBITDA
margin reached 20.9 percent (first quarter 2007: 23.4). The lower operating EBITDA and a quarterly increase in
net current assets pushed cash flow from operating activities into negative territory at CHF —158 million. Due
to a better financial result, Group net income was only slightly lower, down 3.2 percent to CHF 513 million. Net

income attributable to equity holders of Holcim Ltd increased by 3.9 percent to CHF 370 million.

Stable demand for construction materials in Europe
Group region Europe made a good start at the beginning of 2008. Many Group companies increased sales of

construction materials despite the early Easter holiday, which fell in the first quarter this year.

Europe Jan-March  Jan-March +% =%
2008 2007 like-for-like
Sales of cement in million t - ';‘73 7.2 +1.4 +1.4
Sales of aggregates in million t _218_ 22.9 -4.8 -7.4
Sales of ready-mix concrete in million m? 4.7 4.3 - +9.3 +7.0
Sales of asphalt in million t 15 16 -63 63
Net sales in—rr;iTIi:)_n—EHF 72,7243 7 2,237 o _+_O.§_-——_+—5_.§—
Operating EBITDA in million CHF R 424 435 _“-__—E.S____—_—-;i._ii'
Operating profit in miltion CHF 270 278 -2.9 +1.8

Cement sales in northern France and Belgium remained almost unchanged compared to the previous year's
first quarter. In the UK, Aggregate Industries UK almost maintained its deliveries of aggregates. Taking into
account the weather-related decline in exports from the quarries in Scotland and Norway bound for markets
along the North Sea and the Baltic, sales of aggregates of this Group company decreased. Ready-mix concrete
volumes picked up due to brisk construction activity in and around London. Holcim Spain felt the impact of the
marked decline in residential construction, which was only partially offset by deliveries to other segments of
the construction sector. As a result, volumes of cement and aggregates declined significantly. However, sales of
ready-mix concrete rose slightly. Holcim Germany sold more cement both within Germany and in export, while
at the same time increasing its deliveries of aggregates. Holcim Switzerland benefited from the favorable
weather conditions for construction. Holcim italy alsc delivered more cement and ready-mix concrete, but less

sand and gravel.

In eastern and southeastern Europe, investment in construction projects increased almost without exception -
supported by robust ecanomic conditions. In cement, Holcim Romania reached the highest growth within
Group region Europe. The Group companies in Slovakia and Serbia also performed successfully. Sales of aggre-
gates rose above average throughout eastern Europe, the top performers being Croatia, Romania and Slovakia.
In ready-mix cencrete, Romania and Serbia stood out particularty. Despite some major repair work in the
Russian plants —including also for environmental protection measures - Alpha Cement held up well in the

domestic market. In Azerbaijan, the Garadagh plant operated at its capacity limit.

-Overall in Europe, consclidated cement deliveries only marginally increased by 1.4 percent to 7.3 million tennes
due to Spain and Russia. Sales of aggregates decreased by 4.8 percent to 21.8 million tonnes. However, ready-
mix concrete volumes rose by 6.3 percent to 4.7 million cubic meters, reflecting brisk demand in London, France
and Italy, as well as in the east European markets. Sales of asphalt decreased by 6.3 percent to 1.5 million

tonnes.




The operating EBITDA of Group region Europe deciined by 2.5 percent to CHF 424 million. This reflects the
weaker construction activity on the Iberian Peninsula and a lower contribution to results from Aggregate
Industries UK. Additionally, Holcim France Benelux posted extraordinary expenditures in connection with
IT optimization measures. All other Group companies reported improved results. The internal operating EBITDA

growth reached 2.3 percent.

North American market in decline

The US real estate crisis persisted without let-up and was exacerbated by the turmoil in the credit markets.
The decline in residential construction continued. The government’s multi-year infrastructure program provided
for some correction. Commercial and industrial construction activity just missed the previous year's level.

On balance, however, there was a significant decline in construction activity in the US. In contrast, the majority
of the construction companies experienced a good workload in Canada. A large velume of construction work

still continues in St. Lawrence Cement’s core market of Quebec.

North Ameri.ca— _Ja-n—March_- lan—March - - -:% S i%r

2008 2007 like-for-like
Sates of cement in milliont 2.7 29 -69 69
Sales of aggregates in milliont 6.5 70 71 -1
gal_es c.Jf—ready-mix concrete in million m? ﬁ 1.1 0.9 B +22; 0.0
Sales of asphalt in million t - 0.4 0.5 B -20.0 -20.0
Net sales in million CHF o 647 773 -16.3 7.9
Operating EBITDA in million CHF ‘ (1) 17 1824 1824
Operating loss In million CHF I (88) (62)  +419 4565

Consolidated cement deliveries in Group region North America decreased by 6.g percent to 2.7 million tonnes,
with the north eastern United States and the Great Lakes region bearing the brunt of the cyclical decline. Sales
in Texas and Oklahoma were more stable. Holcim US responded to the changed economic conditions by halting
imports of cement from overseas and reducing local production selectively. As announced, Holcim US took over
the cement business of St. Lawrence Cement in the north eastern US at the beginning of the year. Consequent-
ly, sales reported by the US Group company declined less than the market average. 5t. Lawrence Cement saw

a slight increase in cement sales in Canada, its newly defined home market. The Group company succeeded in
supplying more cement in Quebec, thus offsetting some of the decline in residential and industrial construction

activity in Ontario.

Aggregate Industries US, too, was hit by the decline in canstruction activity and sales of aggregates and asphalt
decreased accordingly. Last summer’s acquisition of Hardaway Concrete in South Carolina led to a slight increase
in sales of ready-mix concrete. St. Lawrence Cemnent also sold less aggregates, but the volume of ready-mix
concrete was significantly higher than the previous year. The Group company is currently supplying a number

of concrete-intensive road building sites.

Consolidated deliveries of aggregates in North America decreased by 7.1 percent to 6.5 million tonnes, while

sales of ready-mix concrete rose by 22.2 percent to 1.1 million cubic meters.

Intensified by the depreciation of the dollar, consolidated operating EBITDA fell by 182.4 percent to CHF —14 mil-
lion. Also internal operating EBITDA growth was negative at —182.4 percent. Holcim US was not able to offset
the decline in demand by productivity gains. As in the previous year's first quarter, St. Lawrence Cement posted

aloss due to seasonal fluctuations. Aggregate Industries US again reported a negative result due to the tradi-




tionally weak road building activity at the beginning of the year. However, the operating loss was reduced com-

pared to the first quarter of 2007, confirming the effectiveness of the measures taken to cut costs.

Continued growth in Latin America

The construction sector in this Group region remained in robust condition. Despite the “Semana Santa” falling
into the first quarter this year, cement consumption increased in all of Holcim’s markets. Investment once
again focused on public and private residential construction, Major transport and utitity infrastructure projects
were also an important factor.

fan-March  Jan-March +% +%

Latin America

‘ 2008 2007 like-for-like
Sales o;e_r;gnt i-n rr;illion t S _—'_: 6.6 6.3 ) +4.8 ‘ +4é
Sales of agg-regates in million t 7 ’ 3.0 3.0 . c.0 ) O.l:.)
Sales of ready-mix concrete in milfion m* i 28 2.4 67 +167
Net sales in miltion CHF - . 977 933 +4.7 +15.5
Operating EBITDA in million CHF 284 304 -6.6 . +5.9
Operating profit in million CHF ' ‘ 229 242 5.4 479

Halcim Apasco in Mexico posted higher volumes in all segments. The increase was particularly noteworthy in
ready-mix concrete, but clinker exports also rose significantly. All Group companies in Central America benefited

from the sound order situation, and especially Holcim Costa Rica’s cement deliveries picked up significantly.

There was sustained strong demand for cement in Venezuela. In Colombia, Holcim was able to further lift
deliveries of cement and ready-mix concrete. Holcim Brazil increased its sales in all segments, focusing more
on high-margin products. Business also picked up in Chile. In Argentina, Minetti was operating at its capacity
limit. Here, ready-mix concrete deliveries rose by more than one third due to a large highway project.

Consolidated cement deliveries in Latin America grew by 4.8 percent to 6.6 million tonnes. Sates of aggregates
remained unchanged at 3 million tonnes, while volumes of ready-mix concrete rose by 16.7 percent to 2.8 mil-

lion cubic meters.

Despite rising energy costs, most Group companies improved their results in local currency terms. This reflects
the positive development in sales volumes and the predominantly favorable pricing environment. A series of
measures to streamline operations also helped, as did the increased use of alternative fuels. Mowever, due to
unfavorable exchange rates, operating EBITDA decreased by 6.6 percent to CHF 284 million. Internal operating
EBITDA growth reached 5.9 percent.

In April, the Venezuelan government informed Holcim Venezuela of its intention to nationalize alt foreign
cement producers operating in the country, stating that it aimed to take into public ownership a minimum

of 60 percent of the share capital of the companies concerned. In the course of the ongoing negotiations,
Holcim will defend its interests and those of its employees also within the scope of the existing foreign direct
investment treaty between Switzerland and Venezuela. Holcim Venezuela will continue to produce normally

and supply the market efficiently for the time being.



Solid markets in Africa and the Middle East
Group region Africa Middle East showed solid economic perfarmance in the first quarter of 2008. The canstruc-
tion sector remained an important source of momentum for economic development, particularly on the North

African coast and in the Indian Ocean region.

Africa Middle East Jan-March Jan—li/r'.arrrch +% +%

2008 2007 like-for-like
sales of cement in million t 25 40 -375 +10.0
Sales of aggregates inmilliont | 04 25 -84.0 0.0
Sales of ready-mix concrete in million m® 02 06 -66.7 0.0
Net sale_s in_million CHF B i 314 538 -41.6 +1 3.877
Operating €BITDA in million CHF 105 196 -46.4 +133
Operating profit in million CHF S 9 177 —49.2 +12.4

Due to the new Settat cement plant, Holcim Morocco benefited above average from the nationwide construction
boom. Sales volumes of cement were up by almost 5o percent. Sales of aggregates and ready-mix concrete also
saw double-digit growth rates. In Lebancn, the construction sector lacked urgently needed stimuli. Cement sales
also increased in West Africa and the Indian Ocean region; cn La Réunion, the ready-mix concrete business

benefited from road and residential construction.

following the transfer of the majority of shares in Egyptian Cement to new owners and the discontinuation
of the joint venture agreement, Holcim included previously proportionately consolidated volumes only up
toJanuary 23, 2068, Since the sale of the majority stake in Holcim South Africa in June 2007, the remaining
15 percent shareholding has been accounted for using the equity methed.

As a result of the sizable changes in the scope of cansolidation, cement sales decreased by 37.5 percent to
2.5 million tonnes. Deliveries of aggregates declined by 84 percent to 0.4 million tonnes, and ready-mix
concrete volumes fell by 66.7 percent to 0.2 million cukic meters. On a like-for-like basis, cement sales in this

Group region rose by 10 percent. Deliveries of aggregates and ready-mix concrete remained unchanged.

Operating EBITDA of this Group region decreased by 46.4 percent to CHF 105 million. Both Holcim Morocco and
Holcim Qutre-Mer increased their contribution to the result. On a like-for-like basis, the Group region posted an
impressive 13.3 percent internal operating EBITDA growth.

Group region Asia Pacific feels inflationary pressure from rising costs

This Group region saw further growth in the construction sector in the first quarter of 2008, Cement consump-
tion rose in virtually alt the markets supplied by Holcim, with particularly brisk construction activity in India,
Vietnam, the Philippines and Indonesia.

Asia Pacific fan-March ' Jﬂa-;—-March % +%
2008 2007 like-for-like
Sales of cement in million t ) "1é8 15.9 +5.7 +5.0
Sales of aggregates in million t 10 0.8 +25.0 +25.0
Sales of ready-mix concrete in million m? __‘I';‘ 1.2 +41.7 +33.3
Net sales in million CHF 1537 1,451 +5.9 $11.7
Operating EBITDA in million CHE | 403 444 9.2 38
Operating profit in million CHF 289 324 ~10.8 5.6




Deliveries of cement by the two Indian Group companies were up significantly on the previous year, despite
seasonal fluctuations in demand in some regions. Rising demand for building materials was driven mainly by
residential and commercial construction activity and major infrastructure projects. There were above average
increases in cement deliveries in Malaysia, Bangladesh and Vietnam. in Thailand, the investment climate
remained subdued. At the end of 2007, Siam City Cement temporarily shut down two smaller kiln lines at the
Saraburi plant to reduce costs. As a consequence, the Group company exported less clinker and cement, The
Group companies in Indonesia and the Philippines concentrated on their more attractive domestic markets.
Singapore-based Jurong Cement Limited, acquired as of end of May 2007, almost doubled sales of ready-mix
concrete in this city state.

Cement Australia and Holcim New Zealand reported cement sales on a par with the previous year's period.

in New Zealand, deliveries of aggregates and ready-mix concrete declined.

In Asia Pacific, consolidated cement volumes improved by 5.7 percent to 16.8 million tonnes. The 25 percent
increase in sales of aggregates to 1 million tonnes was mainly due to newly consolidated velumes from quarries
in Thailand and the encouraging state of the market in Indonesia. Ready-mix concrete enjoyed the strongest
growth, rising 41.7 percent to 1.7 million cubic meters. The increase reflects the expanded market presence in

Singapore and other major urban centers in the region.

Despite the positive development in sales volumes, operating EBITDA decreased by g.2 percent to CHF 403 mil-
lion. Internal growth was also negative at —3.8 percent. Although operational improvements have been achieved
in several locations, it proved impossible to pass on the price rises. The main cost increases were due to

the higher prices for coal, clinker purchases and the steep increase in freight rates. These factors particularly
affected the two Group companies in India. In addition, in parallel with the weakening US dollar, several
important currencies in the region significantly lost in value against the Swiss franc. The Group companies

in the Philippines, Indonesia and Singapore increased their contributions to profits.

In February 2008, the Chinese company Huaxin Cement completed its capital increase through a private
placement. In this context, the Group was able to raise its stake in this major cement manufacturer from
26.1 percent to 39.9 percent. This makes Holcim the largest shareholder of this dynamic company with an

annual capacity of currently 32 million tonnes of cement.

OQutlook

It is difficult to gauge how the economy will develop in the various regions during the course of the year. It must
be noted that growth forecasts from notable international economics institutions have recently been lowered.
However, thanks to the Group's global presence and its firm foothold in the emerging markets, Holcim is very
well positioned. Our goal in the coming months is to offset the impact of rising inflation and, in particular,
higher energy prices with cost-saving measures and price adjustments in order to once again reach the long-

term growth target of 5 percent in internal operating EBITDA in 2008.

7). Arccron —

Rolf Soiron Markus Akermann

Chairman of the Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer

May 6, 2008



Consolidated statement of income of Group Holcim

January-March Notes 2008 2007 +%
Million CHF Unaudited Unaudited

Net sales 5 5,509 5,128 -3.8
l;r-oduct'iojcost of goods sold 7 i T ) o (3,020} (2,969)

Gross profit 2,489 2,759 -9.8
Distribut};)n and selling expenseﬁsr o o - o (1,320) (1,442)
Administfation expenses i 7 {432) {413)
Operating profit 737 904 -18.5
Other income 7 35 14

Share of profit of associates 44 19
Financial income 8 46 45
Financial expenses 9 {214) {(238)

Net income before taxes 648 744 -129
Income-;xes - - ) o N {135) (214} i

Net incom_e 513 530 -3.2
Attributable to:

Equity holders of Holcim Ltd 370 356  +39
Minority interest 143 174 =178
CHF

Earnings per dividend-bearing share’ ) ) N 1.41 1.40 7+0.7
i‘ully dilu_te:;i eamings-per share‘r ) - 7 ; ; : 1.41 139 +1.4
Million CHF

Operating EBITDA? 6 1,151 1,342 -14.2
EBITDA’ 1,239 1,382 -10.3

' EPS calculation based on net income atiributable to equity holders of Halcim Ltd weighted average number of shares,

? Operating profit CHF 737 million (2007: 904) before depreciation and amortization of operating assets CHF 414 million (2007: 438).

! Net income CHF 513 million (2007: 530} before interest earned on cash and marketable securities CHF 39 million (2007: 39), financial expenses

CHF 214 million (2007: 238), taxes CHF 135 millien {(2007: 214) and depreciation and amaortization CHF 416 million (2007: 439).




Consolidated balance sheet of Group Holcim

Million CHF 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2007

Unaudited Audited Unaudited
C-;s_h and c—ains_h-'équivna-l;an_ts— - _ B - 3,014 3,345 2,843
Er;e-tab;s—e;uritie:‘_ o - N o o 43 27 17
A;cc;nts re?cie‘i-\;ait':ile - o ) o o - 3,847 4,073 3,752
Irq\.;er_'nto-rie; S S o o N o 2,389 2,535 2,399
f;r'épﬁid expe';s;as and otfhf.;r curren?asseté - o - 510 392 776
Tc_btal current_assets 9,803 10,372 9,787
Financial assets 800 639 635
In-vestments in associates 1,284 809 129
Pr_c;perty, plant and equﬁavment ) _ 22,641 25,01 24,198
It;tél;;gib1e allt;:li)thier ass-;ts 7 B o o 9,955 11,076 9,560
béf-erred t;x assets o - o o o S o 230 304 355
Total long-term assets 34,910 37,839 35,477
Total assets 44,713 48,211 45,264
Trade accounts payable 2,274 2,924 2,178
Current financial liabilities 4,622 3,616 3,330
C;rrent tax I;abilitesr o ) ) 188 332 306
OEe-r cur;e?IAiabiliti;s— o o - o B 1,767 1,961 2,063
shio;t-térm p;oﬁsibns - - - o T o 148 192 95
Titil current Iiabiljtlei_ B L 8,999 9,025 7,872
L;n-é;term E;amncial Iiat;i_iitiés - - . 11,847 12,629 13,038
Defined benefit obiigations ) 387 416 479
D;eferred tax liabilities 2,522 2,900 3,073
Long-term p;ovisions ) 1,187 1,296 1,393
Tital Iong-tim liabilities 15,943 17,241 17,983
Tojl_liabilities L 24,942 26,266 25,955
Share capital - - o - o o 527 527 511
_C;Jital su;bis - o - - o o B 6,876 6,879 6,104
Treasury shares (71} (67) (53)
R;_-serves B ) ) 9,676 11,443 9,120
Total equity attributable to sharehotders of Holcim Ltd 17,008 18,782 15,682
Minority interest B o N o 2,763 3,163 3,627
Tital shareholders’ equil . 19,771 21,945 19,309
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 44,7113 48,211 45,264



Statement of changes in consolidated equity of Group Holcim

Million CHF Share
capital

Capital Treasury
surplus shares

Equity as at December 31, 2006 5N
Currency translation effects

Taxes related to equity items

Change in fair value

- Available-for-sale securities

~ Cash flow hedges

- Net investment hedges

Realized gain (loss) through income statement

- Available-for-sale securities

- Cash flow hedges

6,085 (62)

Net income recognized directly in equity

Net income recognized in consclidated statement of income

Total recognized net income
Share capital increase
Conversion of convertible bonds
Dividends

Change in treasury shares
Share-based remuneration
Capital paid-in by minorities
New minorities assumed

Buyout of minorities

25

(6)

Total of other equity movements

Equity as at March 31, 2007 (unaudited) 51

iEquIty as at December 31, 2007 7 7 527

t

Currency translation effects

g X

{faxes related to equity items

[
Change in fair value

[E' Available-for-sale securities

(

+ Cash flow hedges

E— Net investment hedges

Realized gain {loss) through income statement

i[— Available-for-sale securities

Ea;h flow h;:dges

—
Net loss recegnized directly in equity

r
Net income recognized in consolidated statement of income

4

Total recognized net income (loss}
r

Share capital increase

r

Fonversion of convertible bonds
r

pividends

{ i

}Change in treasury shares
ISI‘I.‘alrE:-based remuneration

' . sy . .
Fapntal paid-in by minorities
iI\Iew minorities assumed

4
Buyout of minorities

(4)
(3}

Jotal of other equity movements

{3) (4

Equity as at March 31, 2008 (unaudited) 527

6,876 (1




Attributable to equity holders of Holcim Ltd Minority

interest

Total
shareholders’
equity

Retained Available-for-sale
earnings equity reserve

Cash flow Currency Total
hedging translation reserves
reserve effects

9,914 3

{5) (1,269)
114

8,643 3,548
114 ) 47

18,725
161

356

119 47
356 174

166
530

356

475 221

{96)

{54)

696

25
(96)
1
{6}

8

(54) |

2

2 (142)

(112)

10,272 3

0 (1,155} 9,120 3,627

19,309

1 (1,824) 1,483 3,163

21,945

. B _  emse e @1 s
B s e ]
- ] D e - @
: - e ] -
- 6 @ emua ewve 6 (519
| 370 370 143 513
e e @ @ (e (3 (2005 |
o S R ey Y
2 o i i 27 o ._=_=(2.2_.
. L _ ) o o i i L {3}

(1 (3,958)




Consolidated cash flow statement of Group Helcim

January-March 2008 2007 +%
Million CHF Unaudited Unaudited

Net income before taxes 648 744 -12.9
Other income_ N o o (35) (14) o
Share dgprofit of associates B (44) {19) -
i=_ir_13n_cial expenses net 168 193 -
Operating profit 737 904 -18.5%
Depreci;t_ion and amortiza’;ioﬁ of op-érétin_g_a;e;s i A T M 414 438 7
Other non-cash items - _ o o (57) (50)

Change |n net working capitai {883) (788}

Cash generated from operations 21 506 -58.3
EV|;1;n;; rec;ived V S 7 o T R 12 13 )
m& (exper;;s-) a | 47 {8) -
Interest paid D (163) (1a3)
fncome taxes paid - N (269) (28)
at;e:i;c;r;le (7expense57]7w—" - o - ) 4 (9) N
Cash flow {used in} from operating activities (A) . {158) 130 -221.5
Purchasé —of property, plant and equipment (809) (577}
I-)isp;osaI.Of property, plant an;:i Vequirpmtrarr{t“ - _ o 20 18 )
Pﬁr;hasé ;f-financial assets, intaﬁgibi;: ;rgsthfe;aﬁs_se_ts S - - o (774) (337} .
I_Di_sp-o;a:fvf-i;na_l é;fs: i;tangi.b.lc; a—r;i other assets R 162 176 o
C_ajhjloviused in investing activities (B} {1,401) {720) +_9‘4_‘6‘
Dividends paid to minority shareholders i N (18) on
Capital paid-in by minority interest o g
Movements of treasury sha‘res B {2) 11
in{De)crease in current fin;;ncial liabilities net ) ) 1,108 (172}
Proceedg from long-term fi;lancial Iiabiiitieﬁ o ) 1,284 1,117
Repayment of long-term financial liabilitles (862) (662)

Cash flow from financing activities {C) . 1,510 205 +636.6
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) : (49) _ (385) _
Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1 N ) 3,345 3,208
-De-cré;-s-;—i_r; cash and cash e'qlgivalents S 7 7 ) (49) (385}
-Ci:l.rrenc;?ranslation effect; . T ) (282) 20

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31 3,014 2,843




1 Basis of preparation

The unaudited consolidated first quarter interim financial
statements (hereafter “interim financial statements”) are pre-
pared in accordance with (AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.
The accounting policies used in the preparation and presenta-
tion of the interim financial statements are consistent with
those used in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2007 {hereafter “annual financial
statements”). The interim financial statements should be read
in conjunction with the annual financial statements as they

provide an update of previcusly reported infarmation.

The preparation of interim financial statements requires man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the interim
financial statements. If in the future such estimates and
assumptions, which are based on management's best judg-
ment at the date of the interim financial statements, deviate
frorn the actual circumstances, the original estimates and
assumptions will be modified as appropriate during the pericd

in which the circumstances change.




2 Changes in the scope of consolidation

On January 23, 2008, a competitor acquired 100 percent of the
outstanding shares of Orascom Cement, an affiliated company
of Qrascom Construction Industries (OCI). Orascom Cement
owns 53.7 percent of the shares in Egyptian Cement Company.
As a result of a joint venture agreement with OCt, Holcim pro-
portionately consolidated its 43.7 percent interest in Egyptian
Cement Company. Given the acquisition of Orascom Cement by
a competitor, the joint venture agreement between OC} and
Holcim became void and Holcim applies equity accounting

in accordance with |1AS 28 to its investment as of this date.
Since Holcim's stake remains unchanged, the above event will

therefore have no impact on consolidated net income.

The impact of the above resulted in Group Holcim derecognizing
its proportionate interest of total assets and liabilities amount-
ing to CHF 933 million and CHF éos million respectively and the
recognition of an investment in an associate of CHF 223 million.

On June 5, 2007, Holcim disposed of 85 percent of its direct
interest in the parent of the Group Holcim South Africain the

context of a Black Economic Empowerment transaction.

Since the date of the disposal, Group Holcim South Africa has
been accounted for as an associate based on its 15 percent
interest in accordance with [AS 28 using the equity method of

accounting due to significant influence.

Assets and liabilities of Group Holcim South Africa

at the date of disposal

Million CHF

Cash and cash equivalents 66
Other current assets - - 16§
Property, plant and equipm;r;tﬁi - k_‘TQ_si
Ot—luar assets S 30
Short-term liabilities {169)
Long-term provisions (54)
Other long-term liabilities {62}
Net assets 74
Minority interest {154)
Net assets disposed o _LZO
Total selling price 1,278
Cash N 713
Loan notes 565

The sale of the shareholding resulted in a capital gain of
CHF 1,10 million, Additionally, a special dividend of CHF 150 mil-
lion net was received from the Group Holcim South Africa.




3 Seasonality

Demand for cement, aggregates and other construction mate-
rials and services is seasonal because climatic canditions affect

the tevel of activity in the construction sector.

Holcim usually experiences a reduction in sales during the
first and fourth quarters reflecting the effect of the winter
season in its principal markets in Europe and North America
and tends to see an increase in sales in the second and
third quarters reflecting the effect of the summer season.
This effect can be particularly pronounced during harsh

winters.




4 Segment information

Information Europe North Latin Africa Asia Corporate/  Total
by region America America Middle East  Parific Eliminations  Group
January-March (unaudited}) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Capacity and sales
Million t o ) o
Product|::; -c-a-pauty cemeimz‘v 489 489 22.3. 223 340 340 102 139 797 787 195.1 197.8
Sales of cement 7.3 7.2 2.7 29 6.6 6.3 2.5 40 168 159 {(v.7) (1.7} 342 346
‘-Sales ;f‘;n_rneAr; componem:sw 0.5 0.4 0.1 0.4 0.2 0.1 3.1 0.7 1.1
gle-s_of_;gg;regates o 21.8 229 6.5 7.0 30 3.0 0.4 2.5 1.0 0.8 32.7 362
Sales of asphalt - 1.5 1.6 0.4 05 1.9 21
h—l\ﬁlicm m? 7 7 7
Sha:ﬂz;:)f_r;cllyﬁr;rxic’onc;etiew 47 43 1.1 0.9 .- 28 2.4 - 0.2 0.6 1..7 1.2 10.5 9.4
Income statement
M||I|on Cl:|;
Net sales to-external custor;lzars- 2,207 2,223 647 772 846 903 314 525 1,395 1,305 5,509 5,728
N;twsélegc;ther segments 36 14 1 31 30 13 142 146 (209) (204)
Total net sales 2,243 2,237 647 773 977 933 314 538 1,537 1451 (209) (204) 5,509 5,728
Operating EBITDA’_ 424 435 (14) 17 . 284 304 105 196 403 444 (51}  (54) 1,151 1,342
OperatlrEEE‘FDA mairgln in% 189 194 (2.2} 2.2 . 29.1 326 “33.4 364  16.2 306 209 234
Operatmg proflt (Ioss) 270 278 (88) (62) 229 242 90 177 289 324 (53) (55) 737 904
Operating profit margin !é-‘?gi 120 124 {13.6) (8.0) 234 259 287 329 188 223 13.4 158
Information Cement® Aggregates  Other Corporate /  Total
by product construction Eliminations Group
materials
and services

January-March (unaudited) + 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Income statement V
Million CHF B _ _ )
N;t;alvesvt'orexterngl customers o o ) 3432 3,537 345 464 1,732 1,727 5,509 5,728
N‘e_t_s;ies-t; -c)ther segments o o - . 305 286 162 183 242 186 (709) (655)
Total net sates 3,737 3,823 507 647 1,974 1,913 (709} {655) 5,509 5,728
Operatlng EBITDA’ . 1,073 1,241 51 58 27 43 1,151 1,342

DAmarginin% ! 287 . 9.0 14 22 208 234

Operatmg EBITDA margm |n %

' Prior-year figures as of December 31, 2007.

? Operating profit before depreciation and amortization of operating assets.

! Cemnent, clinker and other cementitious materials.

325
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S Change in consolidated net sales

January-March i 2008 2007
Million CHF \

Volume and price ] - 421- 483
-C_r;e-l_nge; structure o _ o S —i 7(222} 722
Currer;cyrtre‘msl-at_ion -eff_ects - - o i ) —i (418} {105)
Total _ (219) 1,100
6 Change in consolidated operating EBITDA

January-March 2008 2007
Million CHF

Volume, price and cost S S 8 194
&;;n;e}n structure . o T v o (109) 189
drrency translation effects - — - {90) (a2)
Total {191) 341
7 Other income

January-March 2008 2007
Million CHF

Dividends earned - o i 2 1
EJEhEr t;id_ina_r)f fpicgm‘; r;t o _7_ _7_" o ; N ] o ‘ : 4 35 14
Depreciation and amortization of non-operating assets : (2) (1)
Total ~ 35 14
8 Financial income

January-March : 2008 2007
Million CHF [

interestiea}r.led on cagh énd marke'tat;.-_selc;;it_ies- - ST ) ( 39 39
at_h_c:r f-ihanci'aiincom-e - S 7 7 o ?\ 7 6
Total 1

46
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9 Financial expenses

lanuary-March 2008 2007
Million CHF

Interest expenses (204) : (212)
Fair value changes on financial instruments 7 0 7 (14}
Amortized discounts on bonds and private placements __6_; (8)
Other financial expenses . W: (:1_8)7; (19)
Foreign exchange {loss} gain net ) 7 (8) 8
Financial expenses capitalized h 16 - 5
Total (214) (238)

10 Investments in associates

In February 2008, Holcim subscribed to the private placement
issued by its associated company Huaxin Cement Co. Ltd.
amounting to USD 282 million which resulted in an increase

in its participation from 26.1 percent to 39.9 percent.

11 Contingent liabilities

No significant changes.

12 Post-balance sheet events

On April 1, 2008, Holcim US Finance 5.ar.l. & Cie 5.C.5. issued
private placements of EUR 358 million with floating interest
rates {(2008-2013), EUR go million with a fixed interest rate
(5.118%, 2008-2013) and EUR 202 million with floating interest
rates (z008-2015). All notes are guaranteed by Holcim Ltd.

The proceeds were used to refinance existing debt.

in April 2008, Holcim Venezuela has been officially informed
by the Venezuelan government that it plans to nationalize
all foreign cement producers operating in the country. The
acquisition of at least 60 percent of the share capital of the
companies affected should be instigated as soon as possible.
Holcim currently holds 100 percent of the share capital

of Holcim Venezuela.




13 Principal exchange rates

Income statement

Average exchange rates in CHF Jan-March

Balance sheet

Closing exchange rates in CHF

| 2008
1EUR ] 1.60
1GBP I 2.09
s ] 1.05
a0 ] 1.06
A R
100 INR 2.65
100THE 3.25
1,00010R 0.12
e = e

i

1 AUD ! 0.97

Holcim securities

The Holcim shares (security code number 1221405) are listed on
the SWX Swiss Exchange and traded on virt-x. Telekurs lists the
registered share under HOLN. The corresponding code under
Bloomberg is HOLN VX, while Reuters uses the abbreviation
HOLNVX. Every share carries one vote. The market capitaliza-
tion of Holcim Ltd amounted to CHF 27.5 billion at March 31,
2008,

Financial reporting calendar

2007 4% | 31.3.2008  31.022007  31.3.2007
162 12 157 1.66 162
241 133 ] 197 2.25 239
123 146 0.99 113 1.22
1.06 - 0.97 1.15 1.06
1n1s 124 | 9.28 10.32 11.08
280 54l 249 2.86 2.80
364 -107 | 314 3.32 378
018 143 | 011 0.12 0.13
254 +16 238 274 253
097 -] 091 0.99 0.99

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements
This document may contain certain forward-looking state-
ments relating to the Group's future business, development

and economic performance.

Such statements may be subject to a number of risks, uncer-
tainties and other important factors, such as but not limited
to (1) competitive pressures; (2) legislative and regulatory
developments; (3} global, macroeconomic and political trends;
(4) fluctuations in currency exchange rates and general finan-
cial market conditions; (5} delay or inability in obtaining
approvals from authorities; (6) technical developments; (7) liti-
gation; (8} adverse publicity and news coverage, which could
cause actual development and results to differ materially from

the statements made in this document.

Holcim assumes no obligation to update or alter forward-
looking statements whether as a result of new information,

future events or otherwise.

General meeting of shareholders

Dividend payment {ex date)
Half-year results for 2008

Press and analyst conference for the third quarter 2008

May 7, 2008
May 13, 2008
August 21, 2008

- S o ﬁgvember12:2w

Press and analyst conference on annual results for 2008

March 4, 2009

Results for the first quarter 2009

747May 6,772009

General meeting of shareholders

May 7, 2009




Holcim Ltd

Zlrcherstrasse 156
CH-8645 Jona/Switzerland
Phone +41 58 858 86 00
Fax+41 58 858 8609
info@holcim.com

www.holcim.com

Corporate Communications
Roland Walker

Phone +41 58 858 87 10
Fax +4158 858 8719

communications@holcim.com

Investor Relations
Bernhard A. Fuchs
Phone +41 58 858 87 87
Fax +41 58 858 80 09

investor.relations@holcim.com

The German version is binding

& 2008 Holcim Ltd
Printed in Switzerland on FSC paper




Holgim is a worldwide leading producer of cement and aggregates.
Further activities include the provision of ready-mix concrete and asphalt
as well as other services, The Group works in more than 70 countries

and employs almost 90,000 people.




